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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Crown International Corporation Limited (the “Company”, together with
its subsidiaries, collectively referred to as the “Group”), I am pleased to
present the final results of the Group for the financial year ended 31 March

2024 (the “Current Year”).

As of 31 March 2024, the total assets of the Group reached approximately
HK$1,438.2 million, and the loss attributable to the shareholders of
the Company (“Shareholders”) for the Current Year was approximately
HK$126.8 million, which is decrease by approximately HK$942.6 million
compare to that of the financial year ended 31 March 2023 (the “Last
Year”).

In the Current Year, the Group is principally engaged in the businesses of
property investment, property development, hotel operations, financial
consultancy service, provision of comprehensive healthcare planning and
management services and trading and developing of premium white spirit in

the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

Coronavirus disease with the greatest fallout in a recent century broke out,
it has an unprecedented infectiosity and it had spread to every corner of the
world in just two to three months, including the largest economies such as
the United States, China, Europe and Japan. To fight against the outbreak,
the strictest isolation measures have been introduced all over the world,
including the lockdown and closure measures, which up to this date, have
not been entirely lifted. The daily activities of the people have been forced to
suspend, and more importantly, the production activities have been halted,
which has seriously affected the global economy. So far, the priority of the
governments around the world is still to combat the outbreak. Although the
central banks of various countries have introduced massive bailout measures
to boost the weak economy, it is believed that the global economy can only

gradually recover after the outbreak is contained and demand rises.
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Chairman Report (Continued)
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The Group’s property development project Golden Beach No. 1 project (the
“Golden Beach No. 1 Project”) located in Weihai, Shandong, the PRC is
originally expected to be completed in full in the fourth quarter of 2020.
However, affected by the outbreak of coronavirus, the construction progress
was substantially delayed. The current expected completion time for the
project will be delayed to 2024/2025. The Golden Beach No. 1 Project will
have a total of approximately 195,000 square metres of the gross floor area
with over 1,600 apartment suites and 360 car parking spaces. Among which,
approximately 130,000 square metres of the gross floor area will be available

for sale as serviced apartments.

According to a report issued by the independent valuer engaged by the
Group, based on (among other things) the current property price levels in
Weihai, the aggregate market value of the whole project including serviced
apartments, hotel and related retail premises and car-parking spaces is valued
at approximately RMB800 million at the current stage. The Group believes
that the Weihai property will become a new source of income and generate

stable cash flow for the Group.

In coming years, the Group will launch a new business, namely trading
and developing of premium white spirit in China. I believe that the white
spirit business will provide the Group with another sustainable business

development opportunity.

The Group creates long-term value based on its prudent and sound
governance principles and risk management. It has laid a solid foundation
for its long-term development by continuously ensuring asset quality and

financial resources.

On behalf of the Board, I would like to take this opportunity to extend our
utmost gratitude to our valued clients, Shareholders and all of the business
associates for their continued support for and confidence in the Group.
I also wish to express our sincere appreciation to our management and

employees as a whole for their positive efforts over the past years.

Wei Zhenming

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2024
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

Introduction

During the Current Year, the Group was principally engaged in the business
of property investment, property development, hotel operations, financial
consultancy service and comprehensive healthcare business and trading and

developing of premium white spirit in the PRC.

Property development

The Group’s current investment in property development comprises
approximately 1,400 serviced apartment units in the project located at
Golden Beach No. 1, Golden Beach Garden, south of Bei Huan Hai Road
and east of Ren Tai Garden, Gao District, Weihai city, Shandong province,
the PRC (the “Weihai Property”) currently under development and to be
sold by the Group. The Weihai Property is wholly-owned by the Group.

Hotel operations

The Group’s current investment in hotel operations consist of the hotel

development in the Weihai Property.

The Group’s hotel operations comprise approximately 200 hotel suites in the
Weihai Property to be managed by a world-renowned hotel group as hotel
manager under the management agreement between the Group and the said

hotel group. The hotel is currently under construction.

Comprehensive healthcare business

The business segment, comprehensive healthcare business was established in
prior years. Currently, this business segment includes mainly provision of
comprehensive healthcare planning and management services to healthcare
business operators, including preliminary planning, research, establishment,

staff training, post-establishment operation and management.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

BEEEFRR DT @

Trading and developing of Premium White Spirt

The Group started trading and developing the premium white spirt in

2023 and the Group believe the new business will provide the Group with

sustainable business development opportunity.

A.

8

The Group’s investment in Property Development

The Weihai Property

The Weihai Property consists of three high rise hotel buildings with
a total gross floor area of approximately 195,000 square metres, of
which the entire area were originally intended for hotel use. The
Group’s management observed that Weihai has become an increasingly
popular destination for the retired population in recent years which,
coupled with the rapid growth of the tourism sector, has resulted in a
consistent influx of migrants and an increased demand for properties.
The Group’s management considered such development in Weihai will
continue to benefit its hotel industry and the local property market. In
light of the above, the Group’s management resolved in the financial
year of 2017/18 that approximately 130,000 square metres of the gross
floor area of the Weihai Property shall be renovated and utilized as

serviced apartments.

B EUR AR EE AR AR (Weihai Guosheng Runhe Property
Development Co. Ltd.*) (“Weihai Runhe”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, obtained the Commodity Housing Pre-sale
Permit in the third quarter of 2018, after which pre-sale of the serviced

apartments of Weihai Property started.

As at the date of this report, the accumulated total pre-sales by Weihai
Runhe amounted to approximately RMB207 million, and the total
saleable area pre-sold is approximately 17,000 square metres. The
relevant pre-sale amounts are expected to be recognised as revenue
in the financial year of 2024/25, as the construction and renovation
works of the serviced apartment units are currently expected to be

completed in 2024/25.

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Financing of development of the Weihai Property

It is expected that the preliminary initial costs (excluding the land
costs which was paid by the Group through acquisition of the offshore
holding company of the PRC company for development of the Weihai
Property) for development of the Weihai Property will exceed RMB1
billion. Part of the Group’s plan to finance the development of the
Weihai Property is pre-sale of the serviced apartment units as disclosed

above.

In November 2018, Weihai Runhe entered into an entrusted debt
investment agreement (the “Asia Alliance Asset Loan”) with 5ii
HEEEMAMRAT (AFCA AMC Co., Ld.®), through Harbin Bank
Tianjin Branch, pursuant to which Weihai Runhe obtained a loan
facility of RMB660 million (equivalent to approximately HK$715.4
million) for a term of 3 years, bearing interest at 6.6% per annum.
The final drawdown amount was RMB500 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$542.0 million) with the remaining undrawn facility

amount lapsed.

The Management considered that the Weihai Property would be
sufficiently financed through (i) the cash flow generated from pre-
sale of the serviced apartments; (ii) loan facilities such as the facilities
mentioned above: (iii) financing of the development costs by
contractor for obtaining interest return from the Group; and (iv) other
capital arrangements as may be entered into by the Group from time to

time.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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The Group’s Hotel Operations

The Weihai Property

Among the three buildings of the Weihai Property, the highest
building of which would partially be built into a hotel. Affected by
the outbreak of COVID-19, the construction progress was severely
hindered. The estimated completion time will be postponed from 2021
to 2024/2025. The main building of the Weihai Property is expected
to stand approximately at 149.8 metres height, making it a landmark
along the Golden Beach in Weihai. It is also expected to be the highest
building in Weihai.

When the Group completed the acquisition of the Weihai Property in
September 2017, it included a management agreement with a world-
renowned hotel group as hotel manager. Under the management
agreement, the hotel manager will provide consultancy, design
and monitoring services in the course of the development of the
hotel floors, and manage the operations of the hotel premises upon
completion. The hotel is expected to be 5-star international standard

and target high-end business and leisure travelers.

The hotel complex is under construction at the moment. Upon
completion of the construction and renovation works (expected to
be in 2024/2025), the hotel is expected to provide about 200 luxury

suites and rooms.

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

The Group’s Financial Consultancy Service

Due to the sustained slowdown in the economy of the PRC, the
provision of financial consultancy services business to the real estate
developers in need of financing, which was the main service provided
by the Group under this segment in the past, was also greatly affected
in the Current Year and thus did not record any revenue for the
Current Year. However, the Group believes that the PRC market
potential is still huge and it may adjust its operating model in future
to not only focus on providing financial consultancy services to real
estate developers, but also build more financing platforms for other
companies with a view to capturing market opportunities and increased

income therefrom.

The Group’s Comprehensive Healthcare Business

The business segment, comprehensive healthcare planning and
management services was established in recent years. The Group
successfully engaged in attracting professional teams with extensive
experience in these sectors and has comprehensive project resources
with customer network. This business is aiming to operate with the
goal of building the brand of “Grandlife Healthcare Group”. Currently,
this segment services mainly focus on provision of comprehensive
healthcare planning and management services such as preliminary
planning, research, establishment, staff training and post-establishment

operation and management to healthcare business operators.

Trading and developing of premium white spirit

The white spirit business in China is a enormous market. The Group
started trading and developing the premium white spirit in 2023
and the Group believe the new business will provide the Group with

sustainable business development opportunity.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Key Performance Indicators

U 55 Il
R BUER

For the year ended 31 March
BE A =1+—HILEE

2024 2023
SEOYE —E
HKS$’000 HK$’000
FiE T
Revenue &= 183,461 —
Loss attributable to owners of the Company ARNEHEA N EAL R (126,785) (1,069,359)
Losses per share (HK cents) SRR GEALD (3.59) (30.54)
As at 31 March
RB=H=1T—H
2024 2023
T YLE —E =
HK$’000 HK$°000
T T#T
Total assets B 1,438,155 1,656,507
Net assets attributable to owners of the Company ARANE A NEMTTE E 121,198 164,779
Cash and bank balances & FORAT &S R 179,213 4,260
Borrowings EH=1 808,726 861,362
Net borrowings/net assets attributable to owners of KT A NEAS
the Company FAEETFEE 519.4% 524.2%
Revenue Wi
Revenue amounted to approximately HK$183.5 million for the Current RS IR &Y 2183.5H B st » i B4
Years as compared to Nil revenue for the Last Year. The revenue increase F B o N ULES I Ty HR EE B
during the year due to the development of trading and developing of EOYE IS

premium white spirit.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses amounted to approximately HK$8.3 million
for the Current Year, representing an decrease of approximately HK$11.2
million or approximately 57% as compared to that of approximately
HK$19.4 million for the Last Year. The decrease during the year due to

decrease in the related cost on sales of properties.

Finance costs

Finance costs amounted to approximately HK$47.4 million for the
Current Year, representing a decrease of approximately HK$46.9 million
or approximately 49.7% as compared to that of approximately HK$94.3

million for the Last Year.

Loss attributable to owners of the Company

For the Current Year, the Group recorded a net loss attributable to owners
of the Company of approximately HK$126.8 million (Last Year loss:
approximately HK$1.069 billion).

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

For the Current Year, the Group’s sources of fund primarily included income

generated from business operations and financing from external parties.

The Group expects that income generated from business operations and
borrowings will continue to be the main sources of funds in the coming year.
Therefore, the Group will continue to strengthen cash flow management,
improve the efficiency of capital returns on projects and stringently control
the cost and various expenses. Besides, the Group will continue to look for
opportunities to cooperate with foreign and domestic investors, in order to
provide other sources of funding for the expansion of projects and business

development.

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had bank balances and cash of
approximately HK$179.2 million as compared to the bank balances and
cash of approximately HK$4.3 million as at 31 March 2023.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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The Group had net current liabilities amounting to approximately HK$31.0
million as at 31 March 2024, against approximately net current assets of
HK$5.4 million as at 31 March 2023. The Group’s current ratio (i.e. current
assets divided by current liabilities) was approximately 0.97x as at 31 March

2024 and approximately 1x as at 31 March 2023.

GOING CONCERN

In preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Group, the
Directors have given consideration to the operations of the Group and
considered that the Group can continue as going concern notwithstanding
that the following matters are identified that may cast significant doubt
about the Group’s ability to generate sufficient cash flows to meet its

liquidity needs and continue as a going concern:

Since the outbreak of the Novel Coronavirus (“COVID-19”) pandemic
in March 2020, the lockdown and various quarantine measures and
travel restrictions in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) have
adversely affected the local property market, the operations of the Group
has deteriorated as a result that the Group has to take a longer time
than expected to realise the properties under development for sale. The
performance of the Group has not improved even though the lockdown
measures were released after the pandemic situation improved as economic
conditions have not returned to the level before the COVID-19 pandemic,
and together with the prevailing slow-down of the property market, coupled

with the limited source of financing from the capital market.

The Group incurred a loss of HK$127,200,000 for the year ended 31
March 2024 and the current liabilities included an entrusted loan of
HK$541,950,000 and related interest payable of HK$264,766,000 and
these amounts were repayable on demand as the Group had failed to make
certain instalments of principal and interest when they became due and
these amounts remained unsettled up to the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements. Further, as at 31 March 2024, the Group

had cash and cash equivalents of HK$177,587,000 only.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

These events or conditions indicate that a material uncertainty exists that
may cast significant doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and, therefore, that it may be unable to realise its assets or discharge

its liabilities in the normal course of business.

The consolidated financial statements were prepared based on the
assumption that the Group can operate as a going concern and the Directors
have prepared cash flow projections covering a period of not less than twelve

months from the reporting date, after having considered the following:

(i) the Group has been communicating with the bank to remedy the late
payment issue and to restructure the payment terms for the remaining
amount of the entrusted loans. Given the loan is secured by the Weihai
Runhe construction-in-progress, the Directors consider that should
the bank opt to take possession of the Weihai Runhe construction-
in-progress, its realisable value would be sufficient to cover the
outstanding principal, interest and penalty totaling HK$806,726,000
as at 31 March 2024. Alternatively, the Group might seek suitable
opportunities to dispose of the equity interest of Weihai Runhe which
is the group company borrowing the entrusted loan in order to reduce
the Group’s liabilities. Had the disposal been proceeded, construction
costs payable amounting to HK$332,498,000 as at 31 March 2024

would also have been disposed of; and

(i) the Group has prepayments on new project amounted to
HK$262,948,000 respectively, providing sufficient cash flow to meet

its short-term liquidity needs during the forecast period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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The Directors, after making due enquiries and consider the basis of
management’s projections described above, believe that, taking into account
the above mentioned actions and planned measures and their progress, the
Group will have sufficient funds to finance its operations and to meet its
financial obligations when they fall due within the next twelve months from
31 March 2024. Accordingly, the Directors are satisfied that it is appropriate

to prepare the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.

Notwithstanding the above, the going concern of the Group depends
upon the uncertainties associated with the future volatility of the property
sector in the PRC, the outcome of communication with the banks to
obtain continuous support for not demanding immediate repayment of
the entrusted loan, the ability of the Group to realise the properties under
development for sale to generate sufficient cash flow and to realise those
investment properties within the expected time frame and the ability of
the Group to seck buyers should the Group decide to dispose of the equity
interests in Weihai Runhe and whether the disposal could be transacted in

the appropriate price.

Should the use of the going concern basis in preparation of the consolidated
financial statements be considered to be inappropriate, adjustments would
have to be made to write down the carrying amounts of the Group’s assets to
their net realisable values, to provide for any further liabilities which might
arise and to reclassify non-current assets and liabilities to current assets and
liabilities. The effect of these adjustments have not been reflected in the

consolidated financial statements.

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 March 2024, the Group’s net debt gearing ratio (i.e. net
debt divided by equity attributable to owners of the Company) was
approximately 519.4% (31 March 2023: 524.2%). Net debt comprises total

borrowings less cash and cash equivalents and restricted bank balances.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Capital expenditure of the Group for the Current Year included expenditure
on fixed assets of approximately HK$0.89 million (Last Year: approximately
HK$2.9 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND
COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2024,

(a) the Group did not have any material contingent liabilities or

guarantees (31 March 2023: Nil); and

(b) the Group has capital expenditure for hotel properties contracted
for but not provided in the consolidated financial statements in
the amount of approximately HK$112.3 million (31 March 2023:
HK$119.5 million) in respect of the construction of the hotel

properties.

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, the Group’s interests in the Weihai
Property, and the equity interests in a PRC subsidiary which control the
Weihai Property were pledged to an independent third party as security for
borrowings with outstanding amount of RMB500.0 million (equivalent
to: approximately HK$542.0 million (31 March 2024); approximately
HK$571.4 million (31 March 2023)).

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Company is listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and is mainly responsible
for corporate financing and administration, and engaged in investment
holding. The business of the Company’s subsidiaries primarily involves
operations and investments in the PRC, with revenue and expenditure
denominated in Renminbi. If necessary, the Group will consider using
forward exchange contracts to hedge against foreign exchange exposures. The
main foreign exchange exposure is from Renminbi; however as both revenue
and expenditure of the Group’s business are dominated in Renminbi, the
Directors believe that the Group does not have significant foreign exchange

exposure.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS, DISPOSALS AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

There was no material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries and associated

companies by the Group for the Current Year.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2024, the Group did not hold any
significant investments (31 March 2023: Nil).

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had a total of 19 employees (31 March
2023: 19 employees), including executive Directors. The remuneration and
staff cost for the Current Year were approximately HK$5.1 million (Last
Year: approximately HK$5.9 million). The Group’s remuneration policy
and packages for the executive Directors and senior management were
determined by the remuneration, quality and nomination committee of
the Company while those for other employees were reviewed and approved
by the chief executive officer of the Company. The Group remunerates
its employees based on industry practice and the performance of each
individual. The Group also offers discretionary bonuses, medical insurance
and defined contribution retirement plans, and provides a share option

scheme for its employees and executive Directors.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The current and future principal business of the Group includes property
investment, property development, hotel operations, provision of
comprehensive healthcare planning and management services and trading

and developing of premium white spirit in the PRC.

For the property investment, due to the adverse economy in the PRC, the
Board disposed the investment property in order to generate positive cash

flow and significant increase in the Group’s revenue during the year.

For the property development, pre-sale of the apartment units of the Golden
Beach No. 1 Project phase I located in Weihai, Shandong province, the key
project of the Group, has commenced in the third quarter of 2018. The
project was expected to be completed and delivered in the fourth quarter of
2021. However, affected by the outbreak of COVID-19, the construction
progress was delayed and the latest estimated completion time will second
half of 2024. The Group will then be able to recognise sales revenue from
the Golden Beach No. 1 Project phase I in the financial year of 2024/25.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

For the hotel operations, the hotel of the Golden Beach No. 1 Project phase I
located in Weihai, Shandong province is under construction. Also affected by
the outbreak of COVID-19, the hotel is expected to be completed and start
operating in 2025. The hotel of the Golden Beach No. 1 Project phase I will
be a new landmark and being the highest building of Weihai city, Shandong
province. The hotel will be managed by a world-renowned hotel management

company, making it the first international five-star hotel of the city.

Suffering from the global weak economy, the financial consultancy service
business remained dormant and management will monitor the market

situation to adjust its business direction.

The business segment of comprehensive healthcare planning and
management services business is progressing steadily since its establishment
in 2020. Currently, the comprehensive healthcare planning and management
services business includes provision of services to healthcare business
operators, including preliminary planning, research, establishment, staff
training and post-establishment operation and management. The Group
has professional teams with extensive experience in these sectors and has
comprehensive project resources and customer network. The Group is under
the development to cooperate with property owners to modify property
projects into high-end healthcare projects and combined with the capital
operation of insurance companies and financial institutions to jointly

operate healthcare projects.

Starting from 2023, the Group has engaged in trading and developing of
premium white spirit and providing the Group significant increase in its

cash flow and revenue.

The COVID-19 pandemic that broke out in early 2020 has seriously
affected the global economy. It has been more than a year since the outbreak
began. In the coming years, global economic recovery is very much
dependent upon the efficiency of rapid mass vaccination programs and

sustainable recovery policies rolled out by the respective governments.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The main businesses of the Group include property investment,
property development, hotel operations, financial consultancy service
and comprehensive healthcare business in the PRC. Since substantial
of the businesses of the Group are located in China, the main risks and
uncertainties of the Group have been closely related to the demand,

economic performance and political environment in China.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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The outbreak of the novel coronavirus pneumonia in China in early 2020
severely affected the normal life in China with unprecedented measures
such as the nationwide lockdown and the closure of customs, the suspension
of production activities and markets and the prohibition of foreign entry.
During the epidemic, normal business transactions, factory production
activities and other activities were forced to suspend. The entire economic
circle and supply chain suffered heavy losses and demand was severely
weighed down. However, under the sturdy and effective control of the
Chinese government, the epidemic has gradually eased, and therefore, China
has recovered faster than the European countries and the United States,
taking the lead in the economic recovery. However, if the novel coronavirus
pneumonia epidemic relapses in the future or even becomes endemic which
will continue to affect the economic environment, the longer the duration,

the more it will affect the operations of the Group.

Since a large portion of the Group’s business resources are invested in
property investment and property development, China’s macro-control
policies on the real estate industry are also the main source of risks for
the Group. Based on the experience of the past ten years, the Chinese
government’s regulation of the domestic real estate industry highly
depends on the economic situation. When the economy is overheated, the
government will introduce regulatory policies such as restricting purchases
and prices, restricting project loans and restricting mortgages to curb an
overheated economy. On the other hand, in times when the economy
suffers, the government may relax the relevant policies again. The domestic
economy has been greatly damaged because of the outbreak of the novel
coronavirus pneumonia. It is expected that the Chinese government will
launch many economic stimulus measures to save the economy, from which

the real estate industry is expected to benefit.

China has a wide range of taxes for the real estate industry, such as land
value-added tax, real estate tax, value-added tax, urban construction tax and
education surcharges and corporate income tax. The real estate industry is
far more taxed than other industries. Thus, changes in taxation policies will

have a significant impact on the profitability of the Group.

As the Group’s assets mainly located in China and denominated in RMB,
the changes in currency rate between RMB and HKD will have certain

impact to the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

In addition to the aforesaid risks and uncertainties, the Group’s analysis on
the credit risk and liquidity risk are detailed in the note 3.2 financial risk

factors of the consolidated financial statements.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance with a view to enhancing the management of the
Company as well as preserving the interest of its shareholders as a whole.
The Company has adopted and adhered to the principles in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”). Throughout the year ended 31 March 2024 and up to the date of
this report, the Company has complied with all the code provisions of the
CG Code.

The Board periodically reviews and continues to enhance the Company’s
corporate governance policies to ensure compliance with the code provisions

of the CG Code.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises that employees are its valuable assets. The Group’s
employee management focuses on recruiting and developing talents. Staff
performance is measured on a regular and structured basis to provide
employees with appropriate feedback and to ensure their alignment with the
Group’s corporate strategy. The Group also understands that maintaining
a good long-term relationship with business partners is one of its primary
objectives. Accordingly, the management has used its best endeavours to
maintain good communications, promptly exchanged ideas and shared
business updates with them when appropriate. During the Current Year,
there was no material or significant dispute between the Group and its

customers, suppliers and business partners.
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Directors’ Biographies

EEM[{N

Executive Directors

Mr. Wei Zhenming, Chairman of the Board and Chairman of the
Executive Committee of the Company

Mr. Wei, aged 61, has over 40 years of business experience in Mainland
China. Mr. Wei has acted as the President of Beijing Sheyangtang Health
Management Co., Ltd. (Jb 5l i e 5 1 jE 45 PS5 PR A |]) which has been

operating a comprehensive healthcare business since 2020.

Mr. Chan Yuk Charm, Member of the Executive Committee

Mr. Chan, aged 69, is the chairman and director of C Y C Green Holdings
Limited and Lightning Energy Technology Group Limited. Mr. Chan
has gained extensive business experience over the last 40 years from
his engaging in hospitality operation, real estate investment and auto
component manufacturing and selling businesses. Mr. Chan together with
his colleagues invented an energy-saving and emission-reduction devise for
multifuel engines that are applied to vehicles, vessels, as well as Engineering
machinery. This device was granted patent certificates of energy saving and
emission reduction utility models respectively by China, Japan, and Hong

Kong relevant authorities.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Liu Ting, Chairman of the RQNC and Member of the Audit
Committee

Ms. Liu, aged 34, graduated from Xian Jiaotong University with a
Bachelor of Engineering in 2011. She then obtained a Master of Science
in Engineering (Energy Engineering) from The University of Hong Kong
in 2013. Ms. Liu had extensive knowledge and rich practical experience in
the financial markets and capital markets. Ms. Liu was the Vice President
of the Business Terms of Zhongzhi International Financial Holding
Company Limited, Associate Director of Guotai Junan Securities (Hong
Kong) Limited and the Senior Vice President — Financial Advisory of the
Wealth Management Department of Haitong International Securities
Company Limited. Ms Liu is a committee member of the Young Executives’
Committee of The Chinese General Chamber of Commerce, Hong Kong,
Deputy Director of the Policy Research and Training Committee of the
Hong Kong CPPCC Youth Association and the Director of Hong Kong

Jiangsu Youth Federation.
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Mr. Xiao Ganghua, Member of the Audit Committee and Member of the
RQNC

Mr. Xiao, aged 35, graduated from Jiangxi Business School in 2004. Mr.
Xiao has extensive experience in marketing and advertising planning. Mr.
Xiao started his own business in 2014, and the business scope includes
finance, advertising media, marketing, online e-commerce and other

businesses.

Mr. Ng Ki Man, Chairman of the Audit Committee and Member of the
RQNC

Mr. Ng, aged 38, obtained a Bachelor of Business Administration (Honours)
degree in Information Systems from the City University of Hong Kong in
November 2008 and a Postgraduate Certificate in Professional Accounting
in July 2009. Mr. Ng is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and an associate member of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales. Mr. Ng has more than 10 years of
experience in auditing and accounting. Mr. Ng was an independent non-
executive director of Goal Forward Holdings Limited (now known as China
Wantian Holdings Limited) (stock code: 1854) and Basetrophy Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8460) from September 2016 to September
2022 and from June 2017 to June 2023 respectively.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEREBRS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES

The Board presents the corporate governance report of the Group for the

Current Year.

While focusing on its business development with full force, the Company
places great effort in upholding its corporate governance standards as we
believe good corporate governance is an important component in striving for

the highest returns to the Shareholders.

The Company’s principles of corporate governance emphasise on a
quality Board, sound internal controls, independence, transparency of
information and accountability to all stakeholders. Both the Board and the
Group’s management are committed to continuously improving corporate
governance practices and an ethical corporate culture as the intrinsic value of

the Company.

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance with a view to enhancing the management of the
Company as well as preserving the interest of its Shareholders as a whole.
The Company has complied with the applicable code provisions set out
in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) and Corporate
Governance Report contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) save as

disclosed below.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

THE BOARD

Board Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises a total of five
Directors, being two executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors. The list of Directors is set out in the section headed
“Report of the Directors” of this annual report. The Company has also
maintained on its website and on the Stock Exchange’s website an updated
list of the Directors identifying their role and function and whether they are

independent non-executive Directors.

Mr. Meng Jing Long resigned as executive Director on 10 November 2023.
Mr. Ren Guo Hua resigned as independent non-executive Director on 3
April 2023. Mr. Chen Fang resigned as independent non-executive Director
on 26 April 2023. Dr. Cheung Ka Yue resigned on 1 August 2023. Mr.
Wei Zhenming appointed as executive Director on 10 November 2023.
Mr. Wei Zhenming was appointed for a term of three years and shall be
renewed automatically for consecutive periods of one year each subject to
termination by either party with one month’s written notice. Mr. Chan Yuk
Charm appointed as executive Director on 28 February 2023. Mr. Chan
Yuk Charm was appointed for a term of three years and shall be renewed
automatically for consecutive periods of one year each subject to termination
by either party with one month’s written notice. The executive Director and
independent non-executive Directors shall be subject to retirement at the
following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible
for re-election at that meeting, and shall also be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years at the annual general meetings of the
Company since his last re-election pursuant to articles of association of the

Company.

The Board is committed to maintaining a balanced composition in terms
of its diversity of experience, expertise and independence. The Directors’
biographical information is set out in the section headed “Directors’

Biographies” on pages 22 to 23 of this annual report.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERBT @

Each Director gives sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the Group.
All Directors are required to disclose to the Company at the time of their
appointment and annually the number and the nature of offices held in
public companies or organisations and other significant commitments with

an indication of the time involved.

The Board currently comprises three independent non-executive Directors.
Each independent non-executive Director, pursuant to the guidelines set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, has confirmed he had been independent
of the Company throughout the year ended 31 March 2024 and up to the
date of this report, and the Company also considers that they have been
independent. Save as disclosed, there is no relationship (including financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationship) between each
Director (including non-executive Director and independent non-executive
Director) and the other members of the Board or the senior management
and between the chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of the

Company.

Save for those as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ Biographies”
of this annual report, the Board members do not have any other financial,

business, family or other material/relevant relationships with each other.

Directors’ continuing professional development

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, the Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. The purpose of the code provision is to get
the Directors involved in the Board with an awareness of contribution
thereto. Directors are continually updated on the latest development
of the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory requirements to ensure
compliance and upkeep of good corporate governance practice. During the
Current Year, all Directors, have participated in appropriate continuous
professional development activities by ways of reading materials relevant
to the Company’s business or to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities.
All Directors have been required to provide the Company their records of

training received for the Current Year.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Board diversity policy

The Board adopted the board diversity policy on 4 September 2013
which sets out the approaches to achieve diversity on the Board. The
Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board
to enhance the quality of its performance. Further, the Company sees
increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of its strategic objectives and sustainable development. In
designing the Board’s composition, board diversity has been considered
from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills and
knowledge. All the Directors’ appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against the objective criteria, having due

regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises five members
coming from various professional backgrounds including property
development, accounting and corporate governance, etc. The Board is of
the view that the current Board has provided a good balance of skills and
experience to the Company and will continue to review its composition

from time to time.

The board diversity policy is posted on the website of the Company.

Directors’ nomination and appointment

Since April 2006, the Company has adopted the “Procedures on Directors’
Nomination, Appointment and Re-appointment” which sets out the
procedures, processes and criteria to select and recommend candidates for

directorship.

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles of
Association”), the Board is empowered to appoint a Director to fill a
casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Shareholders (being two or
more Shareholders together holding not less than ten per cent. of the entire
issued shares of the Company) are empowered to nominate candidates for
directorship and subject to Shareholders’ approval at the general meeting of
the Company. The RQNC can also nominate candidates for directorship for
appointment by the Board. Any Director appointed by the Board during the
year shall hold office until the next annual general meeting of the Company

and be eligible for re-election.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERBT @

The determination of the emoluments of Directors is based on the duties
and responsibilities of the individual Director by reference to the prevailing

market conditions.

The Company has purchased directors’ and officers’ liability insurance for all

Directors.

Remuneration of Directors

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration for the Current Year are set out in

Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

Board practices

The Board holds meetings regularly at least four times a year. Additional
meetings will be arranged, if and when required. All Directors are given
opportunities to include matters in the meeting agenda. Generally, notice
of at least 14 days is given for a regular Board meeting. Reasonable notice
will be given for all other Board meetings. Minutes are kept by the company
secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) and available for
inspection by the Directors. Directors have separate and independent access
to the Company’s senior management, and full and unrestricted access to
relevant information in a timely manner with appropriate information in
such form and of such quality as will enable them to make an informed
decision and discharge their duties and responsibilities. The Board ensures
that Directors are provided with sufficient resources in the furtherance of
their duties as Board/committee members, including access to independent

professional advice, if necessary, at the Company’s expense.
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During the Current Year, 17 Board meetings were held and the attendance H g R A B
W WO EAI T

record is set out below:

No. of Attendance/

Eligible to Attend
B /P eg< ¢t Rl i

Board General
Directors Meeting Meeting*
H E LN
Mr. MENG Jin Long' B REE A 8 N/A
Mr. REN Guo Hua? B S A 0 N/A
Mr. CHEN Fang? Pei ik e A3 0 N/A
Mr. Wei Zhenming* RS e 9 N/A
Mr. Chan Yuk Charm® ok I St A 5 17 N/A
Ms. Liu Ting® B 1o 17 N/A
Mr. Xiao Ganghua’ I e A 17 N/A
Mr. Ng Ki Man® SPLEEA 13 N/A
Dr. Cheung Ka Yue’ TR M 10 4 N/A

! resigned on 10 November 2023

2 resigned on 3 April 2023

? resigned on 26 April 2023
appointed on 10 November 2023
> appointed on 28 February 2023
6 appointed on 3 April 2023

7 appointed on 26 April 2023
appointed on 1 August 2023

? appointed on 15 December 2022 and resigned on 1 August 2023

* The 2023 AGM held on 28 June 2024.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERBT @

According to article 133 of the Articles of Association, one-third of the
Directors who served longest on the Board since they were last elected, shall
retire but shall be eligible for re-election at the annual general meeting.
Pursuant to code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code, every Director shall retire
by rotation at least once every three years. The Board will ensure that each
Director shall retire by rotation in the above manner in order to comply

with the code provisions of the CG Code.

According to article 133 of the Articles of Association, a Director appointed
to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board is subject to re-
election by Shareholders at the first annual general meeting after his/her

appointment.

Any re-election of an independent non-executive Director who has served
the Board for more than nine years, should be subject to a separate

resolution to be approved by Shareholders.

Independent non-executive Directors

Each of the independent non-executive Director has entered into a service
agreement with the Company. The term of office is subject to retirement by

rotation and re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association and

the CG Code.

As equal Board members, the independent non-executive Directors give the
Board and the Board committees on which they serve the benefit of their
skills, expertise and various backgrounds and qualifications through regular
attendance and active participation. They make positive contributions to the
development of the Company’s strategy and policies through independent,

constructive and informed comments.

Their attendance to Board, Board committee and general meetings are

disclosed in other parts of this Corporate Governance Report.

The independent non-executive Directors are identified in all corporate

communications that disclose the names of Directors.

Matters reserved for the Board

The Company’s “Guideline on Division of the Roles of the Board and the

Management” has set out clearly the roles of the Board and the Group’s

management.
Crown International Corporation Limited
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Matters reserved for the Board include long term objectives and commercial
strategies, corporate and capital structures, financial reporting and controls,
internal controls, material contracts, communications, Board memberships,
remuneration, delegation of authority, corporate governance matters and

policy setting.

The Group’s management is mainly responsible for the execution of the
business plans, strategies and policies adopted by the Board and assigned to

it from time to time.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various committees, including the Executive
Committee, the Audit Committee and the RQNC and delegated authority
to them for overseeing certain aspects of the Company’s affairs. There are
clear written terms of reference for the Board committees. Reports of the

Board committee meetings are presented to the Board regularly.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee comprises all the executive Directors. As at the
date of this annual report, the Executive Committee is chaired by Mr. Wei

Zhenming and the member is Mr. Chan Yuk Charm.

The Executive Committee is delegated to be responsible for the day-to-
day management, administration and operation of the Company and its
principal duties are clearly set out in its terms of reference. The delegated

functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all the independent non-executive
Directors who possess appropriate business, legal, engineering and financial
experience and skills to undertake the review of financial statements in
accordance with good practice of financial reporting. During the Current
Year and up to the date of this annual report, Mr. Ng Ki Man has been
appointed as chairman of the Audit Committee on 1 August 2024. As at the
date of this annual report, the Audit Committee consists Ms. Liu Ting and

Mr. Xiao Ganghua.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERBT @

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee were revised on 31 March

2016 to reflect the additional responsibility of the Audit Committee

arising from the Stock Exchange’s amendments to risk management and

internal control under the CG Code applicable to listed companies with an

accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

The Audit Committee’s main duties, among others, are as follows:

1

)

3)

(4)

)

(6)

@)

32

to recommend to the Board the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the independent auditor of the Company (the
“Independent Auditor”), and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the Independent Auditor, and deal with any

questions of its resignation or dismissal;

to review and monitor the Independent Auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with

applicable standards;

to discuss with the Independent Auditor on the nature and scope of the

audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

to develop and implement a policy on engaging Independent Auditor

for the provision of non-audit services;

to monitor the integrity of financial statements and to review the
annual report, interim report and financial statements and to review
significant financial reporting judgments contained therein, before

submission to the Board;

to review financial control, risk management and internal control

systems;

to discuss the internal control system with the Group’s management to
ensure that the Group’s management has performed its duty to have an
effective control system, including the adequacy of the resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the

Company’s accounting and financial reporting function;

Crown International Corporation Limited
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(8) to review the Independent Auditor’s management letters, any material
queries raised by the Independent Auditor to the Group’s management

about accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control and

, )
the Group’s management’s response; and

(9) to report to the Board on the matters in code provision C.3.3 of the

CG Code.

The Audit Committee held 2 meetings during the Current Year and the

attendance record is set out below:

(8) %Eﬂéﬁg
RN
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(9) ) HE R R LD AR IR S I SR RN
C332ZHHe.

FERERGRAFEERITT REH H
JEE RO SRR AN AR

No. of

Attendance/

Eligible to

Directors Attend
HERY

g AERRE RS
Mr. REN Guo Hua' 1 B e A 0
Mr. CHEN Fang? B S A 0
Dr. Cheng Ka Yue® REEMIE LS 0
Ms. Liu Ting* Bl L+ 2
Mr. Xiao Ganghua’ 4 Tl 8 S A5 2
Mr. Ng Ki Man® SRS 2

! resigned on 3 April 2023
2 resigned on 26 April 2023

’ appointed on 15 December 2022 and resigned on 1 August 2023

appointed on 3 April 2023
> appointed on 26 April 2023

appointed on 1 August 2023
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The main works performed by the Audit Committee during the Current
Year included the review of the Independent Auditor’s audit plan, the review
of the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 and
interim financial statements for the six months ended 30 September 2023
with recommendation to the Board for approval. It has also reviewed the
adequacy and effectiveness of internal control system, approved the internal
audit report and reviewed and recommended the appointment and re-

appointment of the Independent Auditor.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company’s audited consolidated
results for the Current Year, including the accounting principles and practice
adopted by the Group and recommended to the Board for consideration.
The Audit Committee has also recommended the re-appointment of CCTH
CPA Limited (“CCTH”) as the Independent Auditor at the forthcoming
AGM.

RQNC

The RQNC comprises three independent non-executive Directors. As at the
date of this annual report, the RQNC is chaired by Ms. Liu Ting and the
members are Mr. Xiao Ganghua and Mr. Ng Ki Man.

The terms of reference of the RQNC were revised on 1 January 2019 which
are available on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
Its principal duties are to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and senior
management, and to draw up procedures for formulating an incentive-based
remuneration policy. The RQNC is authorised by the Board to determine,
with delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management, and is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on remuneration of non-executive Directors.

No Director or any of his associates will be involved in deciding his own

remuneration.
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The RQNC is also responsible for reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board at least annually, assessing the performance of
the executive Directors, assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members, determining the policy for the nomination of the Directors,
and make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-

appointment of Directors.

In determining the Company’s remuneration policy, the RQNC considers,
among other things, salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere in

the Group.

The RQNC also reviews and approves compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination of office or
appointment to ensure it is consistent with contractual terms or is otherwise

fair and not excessive.

The Company provides the RQNC with sufficient resources to perform its
duties. Where necessary, the RQNC will engage independent professional

advice at the Company’s expense.
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During the Current Year, the RQNC held 2 meetings and the attendance

record is set out below:

RAESE Fi - RERRAEBFTRITT
SR BRSNS

No. of

Attendance/

Eligible to

Directors Attend
i =d

o A AR
Mr. REN Guo Hua' fE B EE e 0
Mr. CHEN Fang? R e AR 0
Ms. Liu Ting? Bt 2
Mr. Xiao Ganghua* 4 TR 5 5 A 2
Mr. Ng Ki Man® S A 2
Dr. Cheng Ka Yue® R 0

! resigned on 3 April 2023

2 resigned on 26 April 2023
appointed on 3 April 2023

‘ appointed on 26 April 2023
appointed on 1 August 2023

appointed on 15 December 2022 and resigned on 1 August 2023

The main works performed by the RQNC during the Current Year
included review of the structure, size and composition of the Board, making
recommendations on the appointment and re-appointment of Directors and

the assessment of the independence of INEDs.
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Pursuant to code provision of B.1.5 of the CG Code, the emoluments of the FR % 12 & A <1 Hll 2 <7 I G S B 1.
members of the senior management of the Group by bands is set out below: [%6] v A 7 B RS ) T < e AL A 2

Number of

Remuneration Bands Individuals
B AL AN#
Nil to HK$1,000,000 2 $21,000,0007# T

HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 #% 7T 5£1,500,0007#% 7T 0

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE TEER

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility to maintain a good e DU B RR SR EIR
standard of corporate governance practices and business ethics within the RE < M o [ 7 A R N A R R (SR

Group under the terms of reference of the corporate governance function. 18 B E S KT
Corporate governance functions R4 16 I AE

The Board is responsible for determining the policy for the corporate HEGAHAMEA LA 2 BEEIBBER K
governance of the Company, and performing the corporate governance JEAT B IR A

duties including:

(1) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on (1) HWIETRBEARAF] 2 REEIRBE K
P pany

corporate governance; W
P &

(2) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional 2 WHREERHEERESREENBR 2
development of the Directors and senior management; Al R R R

(3) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in (3) MEBEBREEESHEEH REZERN
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; A) 2 B BB

(4) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance 4) W - kEREAREERESE
manual (if any) applicable to employees and the Directors; and Z RS EERI R B T (A 5 R

(5) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure (5) MR ARAFEEFEEERFAIZIENR
in the Corporate Governance Report as required under the Listing Fe bt BRI e 2 A SR IR s 2
Rules. B
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Board has adopted its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors (the “Securities Code”) on terms no less exacting
than the required standard set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having been made specific enquiries by
the Company, all the Directors have confirmed their compliance with the

Securities Code in their securities transactions during the Current Year.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
Current Year were audited by CCTH whose term of office will expire at
the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting. The Audit
Committee has recommended to the Board that CCTH be nominated for
re-appointment as the Independent Auditor at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

CCTH provides an annual audit assurance on the Company’s financial
statements. It is the responsibility of the Independent Auditor to form an
independent opinion, based on its audit, on the financial statements and
to report its opinion solely to the members, as a body, in accordance with
section 405 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”). The Audit Committee is obliged
to ensure continuing Independent Auditor’s objectivity and safeguard

independence.

For the Current Year, audit services fee and non-audit services fee amounted

to approximately HK$1.2 million and HK$Nil million respectively.

DIRECTORS’ AND INDEPENDENT
AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements for each financial period to ensure that such financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the
results and cash flows for that period. The Company’s financial statements
are prepared in accordance with all relevant statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The Directors are responsible for ensuring
that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied consistently;

and that judgment and estimates made are prudent and reasonable.
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The Directors are aware of an entrusted loan with a total principal and
interests of approximately HK$806,726,000 was remained overdue.
However, as at 31 March 2024, the cash and cash equivalents of the Group
amounted to HK$177,587,000 only. These conditions indicate that a
material uncertainty may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Further discussion on this issue has been set
out in Note 2.1(a) to the consolidated financial statements in this Annual

Report.

Having made appropriate enquiries and examined the major areas which
will give rise to the aforesaid significant financial exposure, the Directors,
based on the cash flow projections which has been prepared on the basis that
the Group will successfully implement the plans and measures as set out in
Note 2.1(a) to the consolidated financial statements, are satisfied that the
Group will have sufficient working capital to finance its operations in the
next twelve months from 31 March 2024. In this connection, the Directors
have continued to prepare the consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis for the year ended 31 March 2024 and considered that the
Group has applied consistent accounting policies and made judgments
and estimates that are appropriate and reasonable in accordance with the

applicable accounting standards.

CCTH CPA Limited, the Independent Auditor, has presented its
responsibilities in the Independent Auditor’s Report in respect of the
Company’s consolidated financial statements for the Current Year as set out

on pages 105 to 207 of this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board acknowledge its responsibility for the risk management and
internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Company’s
strategic objectives, and establishing and maintaining appropriate and

effective risk management and internal control systems.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee assists the Board in leading the
management and overseeing their design, implementation and monitoring of

the risk management and internal control systems.

The Board, through the Audit and Risk Management Committee, has
conducted annual review for the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year

ended 31 March 2024.

The management monitors the assessment of the risk management and
internal controls and has confirmed to the Board and the Audit and Risk
Management Committee on the effectiveness of the risk management and

internal control systems for the year ended 31 March 2024.

The Company has developed and adopted different risk management
procedures and guidelines with defined authority. Self-evaluation has been
conducted annually to confirm that control policies are properly complied

with by each department.

Crown International Corporation Limited
4 O Annual Report 2023/2024

Jo B e L e A i A

R e 0 EL S L B B R A B 4% A
Fe Mg at R 3l 2 B AE o A B E S AR B
17 FE 34 B R BE 52 i SE 85 H BR A9 LR > HL
A S6f EE K B A B e g R 1 4 5 BEAHELSIG I
AR PR3 o

O A R AT A KR AR AR 2 B
I B W% S T R 4 ) L e P BT e R
Al ST e AR 5 B R A RO R B e Y
S W 2 71 JEE o

Fal AR EHZE G EREGHEE
B e S A0 S B B e v S A
JEE st~ B B % o

HEGZAFHARRERZRGHA
NEl R HMEARSE F I UE=H
= H kAR B B R A A
JEE (A B HE AT AR AR T o

P e e e B A B e N R B % B AT A
f B 1 EE R At B R B & B
REEZNE=H=1t—HILFEN
Jai I 7 L e v R B 2 ) £ A1 M o

A28 W) Bk L B B Tt A [ R AR e
a1 A 5 IR - R AR AT B BRETEAG ) L
T DR 75 ¥R P 22 2 2~ B A RO o



Corporate Governance Report (continued)

All departments conducted internal control assessment regularly to identify
risks that potentially impact the business of the Group and various aspects
including key operational and financial processes, regulatory compliance and
information security. The management, in coordination with department
heads, assessed the likelihood of risk occurrence, provide treatment
plans, and monitor the risk management progress. The Internal Audit
Department is responsible for providing the internal audit function and
performing independent review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems. The Internal Audit Department
examined key issues in relation to the accounting practices and all material
controls and provided its findings and recommendations for improvement to

the Audit and Risk Management Committee.

The Group adopts the following procedures and internal control measures to

handle and release inside information:

1. When handling affairs, the Company will fully consider the disclosure
requirements under the Stock Exchange Listing Rules and the
Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information issued by the Securities

and Futures Commission;

2.  The Administrative Procedures on the Information Disclosures of
the Group govern the Company’s communications with third parties,
especially the procedures for responding to outside inquiries about
the Group’s affairs, enabling specific personnel to obtain relevant

authorizations;

3. The Company widely and non-exclusively discloses information to the
public through financial reports, announcements and the Company’s

website, etc., to implement and disclose the Company’s fair disclosure

policy;

4. Unauthorized use of confidential or inside information is strictly

prohibited in the Company’s Compliance Management Manual.
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The Board, as supported by the Audit and Risk Management Committee,
assessed the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems by reviewing the management report and the internal audit
report and considered that, for the year ended 31 March 2024, the risk
management and internal control systems of the Company are effective and

adequate.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board, and all Directors have
access to the Company Secretary, for ensuring that the Board procedures,
applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed. The Company Secretary
is also responsible for ensuring that the Board is fully appraised of the

relevant corporate governance developments relating to the Group.

The Company Secretary complied with the professional training

requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules during the Current Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The general meetings shall be convened by the Directors on the requisition

of Shareholders pursuant to section 566 of the Companies Ordinance.

The Directors are required to call a general meeting if the Company has
received requests to do so from Shareholders representing at least 5% of
the total voting rights of all the Shareholders having a right to vote at
general meetings. A request must state the general nature of the business
to be dealt with at the meeting, and may include the text of a resolution
that may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting.
Requests may consist of several documents in like form. A request may be
sent to the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form, and must be

authenticated by the person or persons making it.
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The Company arranges for the notice to Sharcholders to be sent for annual
general meetings at least 20 clear business days before the meeting and to be

sent at least 10 clear business days for all other general meetings.

For putting forward proposals at any general meeting or enquiries to the
Board, Sharcholders shall do so in writing to the Company Secretary.
The letter shall state clearly the identity of the Sharcholder, the amount
of shareholding, correspondence address and telephone number, and the
related suggestions and enquiries. The Company shall, in a reasonable and
practicable manner, pass the said matter to the Board and respond according

to the situation.

In addition, the Company may receive letters or phone enquiries from
Shareholders from time to time, and the Company will, in a reasonable and
practicable manner, respond as quickly as possible. For matters concerning
the Company’s shares and basic information of announcements, enquiries
shall be put forward to the Company whose contact particulars are as

follows:

Address: Suite 2707, 27th Floor, China Resources Building,
26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2121 0988

Fax: (852) 2121 0989

Office Hours: 9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.

Monday to Friday (except public holidays)
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The rights of Sharcholders and the procedures for demanding a poll on
resolutions at general meetings are contained in the Articles of Association.
Details of such rights to demand a poll procedure are included in all relevant
circulars to Sharecholders and will be explained during the proceedings of

meetings.

Poll results will be posted on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange

and the Company following each general meeting.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for communication
between the Shareholders and the Board. The chairmen of the Audit
Committee, the RQNC and the Independent Board Committee (where
applicable), or in their absence, other members of the respective committees,

are available to answer questions at the Shareholders’ meetings.

The Company continues to enhance communications and relationship with
its investors. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an informative and a

timely manner.

Currently, investors can assess the Company’s information through
the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company

(htep://www.crown727.com).

The Board reviews the above Shareholders’ communication policy on a

regular basis to ensure its effectiveness.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Pursuant to Rule 13.90 of the Listing Rules, the Company has posted its
Articles of Association on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company. During the Current Year, there was no change in the

constitutional documents of the Company.
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited consolidated

financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and
provision of management services to subsidiaries. The Group is principally
engaged in the business of property investment, property development, hotel
operations, comprehensive healthcare business, and trading of premium
white spirit. The principal activities of the principal subsidiaries of the

Company are set out in Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the Current Year are set out in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income on page 109 of this annual report.

The Board do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the

Current Year (Last Year: Nil).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial years is set out on page 208 of this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance during the Current
Year, the key factors affecting its results and financial position, the principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Company and compliance with laws and
regulations are set out in the sections headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” of this annual report and “Environmental, Social and Governance

Report”.

Information about a fair review of, and an indication of likely future
development in, the Group’s business is set out in the sections headed
“Chairman’s Report” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this

annual report.

In addition, discussion on the Group’s stakeholders™ relationship is set out
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual

report.

Report of the Directors

EFEWRS

EEREHRGEAARMEE—F N
FEA=+—HILEEZ EE LGS M
e

FREH

RN 2 T I 2 BB TR S A Y A
Al fE AL B RS o A AR HY KR
B VSRR TR R R B
HEWHEZ - AXr LERE A An 2 EH
SETSWUR AR 5 WP AR k18 o

BRI IR
A B A 45 2 A 4 55109
2 AR TR

RN R AR R I R (R4
J& :H) o

A 5 0

7 S o 2% 8 B A R 2 S A o B
F {1 RN A AR 5208 H o

SEH Bl R Bl

JRA R FE > A BRI R B 2 B B o i
ABMERE M BRI TERNE AR
] 1 36 2z 3 o B e AN B B IR 3R DA B B S
TR B AR B 2 08 DR A 4 e T4 B il
B oy W ) B VBRI ~ AL & BB TR ) o

IR T 74 5 [ 3 155 2 S 15 8 0 B M T A
AR A 2 FooR 2 B R A AR TR
P B T BRI A e o BT A5 o

L Ah > A 55 18 B 4 5 Bl A 2 o i RS AR

A A B e B o0 A — il o

ELUeE R ER S A B A ) 4 5
2023/2024 4E$



Report of the Directors (continued)
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Current Year, the turnover attributable to the Group’s largest
customer was approximately 84.8% of the Group’s total turnover and
the aggregate turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for 99% of the Group’s total turnover. The purchases attributable

to the Group’s largest supplier was 100% of the Group’s total cost of sales.

None of the Directors, their close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules)
or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in any of

the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers noted above.

DONATIONS

The Group made no charitable donation during the Current Year (Last Year:
Nil).

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the Current Year are set out in Note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page

112 of this annual report, respectively.

The distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2024, calculated
under sections 291, 297 and 299 of the Companies Ordinance, amounted to
Nil (31 March 2023: Nil).

SHARES ISSUED

Details of the shares issued in the Current Year are set out in Note 26 to the

consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a

pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of the principal properties for investment purposes are set out in

Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Report of the Directors (continued)

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company did not redeem any of the shares of the Company (the
“Shares”) listed on the Stock Exchange, nor did the Company or any of its

subsidiaries purchase or sell any of the Shares during the Current Year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Current Year and up to the date of this annual

report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. MENG Jin Long

(resigned on 10 November 2023)
Mr. Chan Yuk Charm

(appointed on 28 February 2023)
Mr. Wei Zhenming

(appointed on 10 November 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. REN Guo Hua
(resigned on 3 April 2023)
Mr. CHEN Fang
(resigned on 26 April 2023)
Ms. Liu Ting (appointed on 3 April 2023)
Mr. Xiao Ganghua
(appointed on 26 April 2023)
Mr. Ng Ki Man
(appointed on 1 August 2023)
Dr. Cheung Ka Yue
(appointed on 15 December 2022 and
resigned on 1 August 2023)

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Mr. Wei Zhenming (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Yuk Charm

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Ng Ki Man (Chairman)
Ms. Liu Ting
Mr. Xiao Ganghua
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Pursuant to article 133 of the Articles of Association, at each AGM, one
third of the Directors (the number nearest to and not less than one-third)
who have been longest in office since they were last elected or appointed by

the Shareholders shall retire but shall be eligible for re-election.

Accordingly, Ms. Liu Ting and Mr. Chan Yuk Charm shall retire and, being

eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the INEDs, namely Ms. Liu Ting,
Mr. Xiao Ganghua and Mr. Ng Ki Man an annual confirmation of their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. At the date of this

annual report, the Company considers all of them to be independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Brief biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 22 to 23 of

this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The emoluments payable to Directors (including executive Directors
and INEDs) were determined with reference to their respective job
responsibilities and the prevailing market rate for their respective positions

in the Group.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
has a service contract with the Company, which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation other than

statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and
senior management arising out of corporate activities. The permitted
indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the Directors as required
by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance when this report prepared
by the Directors is approved in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the

Companies Ordinance.

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Report of the Directors (continued)

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

The Group has not entered into any equity-linked agreements during the
Current Year, and no equity-linked agreements to which the Company is a

party subsisted as at 31 March 2024.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, none of the
Directors, the controlling Shareholders or substantial Shareholders (as
defined in the Listing Rules) or their respective close associate (as defined in
the Listing Rules) was interested in any business which competes or is likely

to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS

Save as the transactions disclosed in “Related Party Transactions™ as set
out in Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements, no transactions,
- . . , .
arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at

end of the Current Year or at any time during the Current Year.

Save as the transactions disclosed in “Related Party Transactions” as
set out in Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements, there are
no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance between the
Company, or one of its subsidiaries, and a controlling Shareholder or any of
its subsidiaries, and no contract of significance for the provision of services
to the Company or of its subsidiaries by a controlling Shareholder or any of
its subsidiaries, which subsisted at end of the Current Year or at any time

during the Current Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or

existed during the Current Year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2024, the interests of the Directors or the chief executives
of the Company and their associates in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571
of the Laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO”)) which were required: (a) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO; or (b)
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein; or (c) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

were as follow:

Long Positions in the Shares of the Company

H Rt BN B A 2
w) e FURTIE T 10 2 BB ~ i B
W By B A bl it 2 R 2k B 6 X

MBI NEZH=ZF—H BERERAR
Al iR AT BON BB H 8 TR AR 2 Al s
At 125 1 (4 & TR B 3 571 5 8 97 S U ]
il (758 23 B TR MG ) SEXVER TR T 2
TR 7)< A7 ~ R B P 10 B A RE G P (a) B
A ARYR A8 77 B YT AR B S XV R 55 7 e 877 #
ZEURI & A N ) B W 22 T 2 A A 2 e
(L5 4% 8 73 B JU1 B2 A0 f510 A Il 6 S 10 55 43¢
EESRBAHEA 2R R R 5 B(b)IRIR
8 77 b S B A1 55 3 5 200 B ZH T A R IR T
it Z B FC 2 A R AR BB B (o) MR
b TR TGRS 5% 1 0 T ARk 2 A < U ZEU o A
O] R AL Z AR AT RERR AT

A R BBy 2 35 Y

Shares/ Percentage of
underlying total number of
Name of Director Nature of Interest Shares 2 issued Shares 3
by, HAC 1y
i RE2E PR H MR D 2 Bt 2 E 5 ke 3
Mr. LI Interest of a controlled corporation’ 212,336,000 (L) 6.01%
By s PR 2 R
Note: PRE -

1. Eternal Glory Holdings Limited (“Eternal Glory”) beneficially owned
102,336,000 Shares and through its wholly-owned subsidiary Rising Century
Limited (“Rising Century”) owned 110,000,000 Shares. Eternal Glory owned
as to 50% by Mr. LI and 50% by Ms. LIU Xin Jun (“Ms. LIU”). Thus, Mr. LI
is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Eternal Glory and Rising

Century.
2. “L” represents long position in Shares or underlying Shares of the Company.
3. The percentage has been arrived at based on the total number of Shares in issue

as at 31 March 2023 (i.e. 3,532,900,000 Shares).
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Other than as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2024, neither the Director, BRI BB @A IR U =H =+ —
nor the chief executives of the Company nor any of their associates, had an H> #EHANE&ETERANBSHEEFZ
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of A e Mt 8 N OE 7 S 2 ) A i 7k ]
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of AT 1 B3 ~ AH IR 1 3 B¢ 6 25 v 98 5 A ol
Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified to the Company and B R o (38 27 b B A5 1] BB XV 1Y O
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO ) 0 IRIE R 77 W B R B EEX VIR S 7RIS Eh
(including interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed (R 45 (AR E 27 B & 551 1) A B B
to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in the VA S A WA R R B R o SR BR
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the 755 BN BB 352 B sl B AE A A I BLE
SFO, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code contained in B 0B sC A SRR 98 BT s AR $2 10
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Jir ) B TR <7 RUBLE 5 2 ZH A A A ] B

Stock Exchangc. B A2 il o
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND TR By Hofth N\ LR BBy

OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT Fe ¥H BH R 07 2 BE %k e W6 2
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 March 2024, the interests or short positions of the corporations or RoZEBEZUFE=H=+—H #BHEBERAH
persons, other than the Directors and chief executives of the Company, in TR1E 5 e B G H L3366 7 B 2 st it
the Shares and underlying Shares, as recorded in the register maintained by Fiadd o BRA A F #EHE R R &SITBRAN B

the Company under section 336 of the SFO were as follows: ZAFEIEN LA B A 2
MER BB AT «
Shares/ Percentage of
underlying total number of
Name of Shareholders Nature of Interest Shares ° issued Shares ¢
;137 0 A e
5t 44 Fi RE2E P E il Bt 2 57 bt ¢
CLC Beneficial owner! 1,218,982,000 (L) 34.50%
E=SEacR: [=EY YN
CLF Interest of controlled corporation’ 1,218,982,000 (L) 34.50%
SZHEEE 2 RS
CIF Interest of controlled corporations’ 1,218,982,000 (L) 34.50%
PR 2 R
Redstone Interest of controlled corporations' 1,218,982,000 (L) 34.50%
ZYRTLE 2 RS
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Shares/ Percentage of
underlying total number of
Name of Shareholders Nature of Interest Shares ° issued Shares
;137 o haac sy
B 44 1R RE2E P H B 5 Bt 2 57 bk
Eternal Glory Beneficial owner? 102,336,000 (L) 2.90%
AT HE R HamlAa N
Interest of controlled corporation? 110,000,000 (L) 3.11%
PR 2 RS
Rising Century Beneficial owner? 110,000,000 (L) 3.11%
HEA N
Ms. LIU Interest of controlled corporations? 212,336,000 (L) 6.01%
B+ PR 2 RS
Crown International Corp. Beneficial owner? 800,000,000 (L) 22.64%
Limited (“CIC”)
50k R [ S 1 A FR A ] BamilAa N
(TEL el R )
Topper Alliance Limited Interest of controlled corporation? 800,000,000 (L) 22.64%
(“Topper Alliance”)
SZHETE I 2 R AR
Mr. DONG Feng (“Mr. DONG”)  Interest of controlled corporations’ 800,000,000 (L) 22.64%
EA N ) PR 2 R
China Huarong Asset Interest of controlled corporations* 2,018,982,000 (L) 57.15%

Management Co., Ltd.
H 2] 5 il A B A A BR A

VTR 2
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Report of the Directors (continued)

CLC beneficially owned 1,218,982,000 Shares, and is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CLF, which is in turn wholly-owned by CIF, a wholly owned
subsidiary of Redstone. Redstone is solely owned by Ms. HUNG. Thus, each
of CLE, CIF and Redstone are deemed to be interested in the Shares owned by
CLC, and Ms. HUNG is deemed to be interested in the Shares interested by

Redstone.

Eternal Glory beneficially owned 102,336,000 Shares. Rising Century
beneficially owned 110,000,000 Shares and is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Eternal Glory, which in turn owned as to 50% by Mr. LI and 50% by Ms. LIU,
Therefore, Eternal Glory was deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
Rising Century, and Mr. LI and Ms. LIU was deemed to be interested in Shares
held by each of Rising Century and Eternal Glory.

CIC beneficially owned 800,000,000 Shares and is wholly-owned by Topper
Alliance. Topper Alliance is solely owned by Mr. DONG and Topper Alliance
and Mr. DONG is deemed to be interest in the Shares owned by CIC.

According to the disclosure of interest notice filed by China Huarong Asset
Management Co., Ltd. on 29 June 2020, Fresh Idea Ventures Limited (“FIV”)
held security interest in 2,018,982,000 underlying Shares and FIV is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Linewear Assets Limited (“Linewear Assets”). Linewear
Assets is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Huarong International Financial
Holdings Limited (“HIFH”). HIFH is owned as to 51% by Camellia Pacific
Investment Holding Limited (“CPIH”). CPIH is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
China Huarong International Holdings Limited (“CHIH”). CHIH is held as to
1.80% by Huarong Zhiyuan Investment & Management Co., Ltd. (“HZIM”),
as to 13.36% by Huarong Industrial Investment Management Co., Ltd.
(“HIIM”) and as to 84.84% by China Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd.
(“CHAM”). Each of HZIM and HIIM is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CHAM.
Accordingly, Linewear Assets, HIFH, CPIH, CHIH, HZIM, HIIM and CHAM
are deemed to be interested in the underlying Shares held by FIV by virtue of
the provisions of the SFO.
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D

6.

“L” represents long position in Shares or underlying Shares of the Company.

The percentage has been arrived at based on the total number of shares of the
Company in issue as at 31 March 2024 (i.e. 3,532,900,000 Shares).

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)

at the AGM held on 25 September 2015, for the purpose of providing

incentives or rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success

of the Group’s operations. A summary of the principal terms of the Share

Option Scheme is set out below:

@

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

54

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include the
Directors, including the INEDs, other employees of the Group,
suppliers of goods or services to the Group, customers of the Group,
any consultant, advisor, any person or entity that provides research,
development, other technological support or services to the Group, the
Shareholders, and any non-controlling shareholder of the Company’s

subsidiaries.

The Share Option Scheme became effective on 25 September 2015
and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10

years from that date.

The maximum number of Shares which may be allotted and issued
upon the exercise of the share options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme is 343,000,000 Shares, representing 10% of the shares

in issue of the Company as at the date of this annual report.

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon the exercise of the share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme (including both exercised or outstanding share options) to
each grantee in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued
share capital of the Company for the time being (the “Individual
Limit”). Any further grant of share options in excess of the Individual
Limit in any 12-month period up to and including the date of such
further grant must be separately approved by the Sharcholders in
general meeting of the Company with such grantee and his/her close

associates abstaining from voting.

Crown International Corporation Limited
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)
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Report of the Directors (continued)

The option period during which an option may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time
shall be a period to be determined and notified by the Directors to
each grantee, which period may commence from the offer date, but
shall end in any event not later than 10 years from the date of grant of

the option subject to the provisions for early termination thereof.

Unless otherwise determined by the Directors and stated in the offer
to a grantee, there is no minimum period required under the Share

Option Scheme for the holding of an option before it can be exercised.

An offer of the grant of share options may be accepted within 21 days
from the date of offer. A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on

acceptance of the grant of an option.

(viii) The subscription price for the Shares under the Share Option Scheme

(ix)

shall be a price determined by the Directors, but shall not be less than
the higher of (a) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for trade in one or more board lots of
the Shares on the offer date, which must be a business day; and (b) the
average of the closing prices of Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s

daily quotations for the five business days immediately preceding the

offer date.

The life of the Share Option Scheme is until the tenth anniversary
of the adoption date of the Share Option Scheme or the date on
which the Share Option Scheme is terminated by resolution of the

Shareholders in general meeting, whichever is earlier.

)

(vi)

(vii)
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Report of the Directors (continued)
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Current Year were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate granted to any Director or their
respective spouses or children under 18 years of age, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or were the Company or any of its holding companies,
fellow subsidiaries and subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Company’s Directors, their respective spouses or children under 18 years of

age to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions during the year ended 31 March 2024 are
being disclosed in Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements. Such

transactions, insofar as they constitute:

(a) compensations paid to Directors, are connected transactions which are
fully exempt from the disclosure requirements under Rule 14A.95 of

the Listing Rules; and

(b) compensations paid to members of the senior management of the
Company, are not connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the

Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices. Information on the principal corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in the section headed

“Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL MATTERS

The Company’s compliance with the relevant provisions set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide in Appendix C2
of the Listing Rules, the Company’s Environmental, Social and Governance
Report will be available on our website within five months after the end of

the financial year.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no significant events subsequent to the year and up to the
date of approval of this report which had materially affected the Group’s

operating and financial performance.

PARTICULARS OF IMPORTANT EVENTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Board has not identified any
important events affecting the Group that have occurred since the end of the

Current Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to and within the
knowledge of the Directors, there is sufficient public float of more than 25%
of the Company’s issued shares during the Current Year and up to the date

of this annual report.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Effect from 26 March 2024, CCTH CPA Limited was appointed as the

auditor of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements for the Current Year have been
audited by CCTH CPA Limited. A resolution will be proposed to the AGM
to re-appoint CCTH CPA Limited, as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Wei Zhenming

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2024
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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BOARD STATEMENT

Introduction and Approach to Environmental, Social and

Governance

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Crown
International Corporation Limited (the “Company”), together with
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”), is pleased to present the
environmental, social and governance report of the Group (the “Report”).
The Report summarises the environmental, social and governance (“ESG”)
initiatives, plans and performance of the Group, and demonstrates its

commitment to sustainable development.

The Group provides a wide range of services to cater for the needs of
customers in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), including (i)
property investment; (ii) property development; (iii) hotel operation; (iv)
financial consultancy service; (v) comprehensive healthcare business; and (vi)
premium spirits trading. Other than financial performance, environmental
protection is also a key focus of the Group, and thus the Group actively
play our role as corporate citizen to fulfill our environmental protection
responsibility. The Group fully understands the importance of protecting
the Earth, the precious planet, and prioritising environmental and social
responsibilities. As a result, in formulating the Group’s business strategies,
identifying different potential acquisitions and investments, and fulfilling
our business objectives, our considerations in ESG are integrated into our
day-to-day operations, in order to operate the Group in a sustainable and

responsible way.

The Group believes that environmental protection, low carbon, resource
conservation and sustainable development are the key trends in society.
In order to pursue a successful and sustainable business model in the key
trends, the Group recognises the importance of integrating ESG aspects into
its risk management system and has taken corresponding measures in its
daily operation and governance perspective. In addition, to promote carbon
neutrality and respond to stakeholders’ expectations on the Group and issues
concerning ESG, the Group has set environment-related targets, which will

be disclosed in the Report.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

ESG Governance Structure

The Board is fully responsible for the Group’s ESG strategies, policies and
reports. It also monitors and manages ESG affairs. The Board is responsible
for formulating the Group’s ESG targets, priorities and policies. Meanwhile,
the Board ensures the effectiveness of the ESG risk management and internal
control systems. Under the assistance of the designated personnel, the Board
regularly discusses and reviews the Group’s ESG affairs, including but not

limited to risks, opportunities, performance, targets and indicators.

The Group has appointed some designated personnel (the “Designated
Personnel”) from core members of different core departments to manage
related ESG issues. The duties of the Designated Personnel include, but
are not limited to, assisting the Board in collecting and analysing relevant
information on the Group’s ESG aspects, preparing ESG reports, identifying
and evaluating the Group’s ESG risks, assessing the effectiveness of internal
control mechanisms, organising and conducting materiality assessment,
and formulating and implementing the Group’s ESG-related strategies,
frameworks and policies. The Designated Personnel also examine and
evaluate the Group’s performance in different aspects, such as environment,
health and safety, labour standards and product responsibility in the ESG
areas. The Designated Personnel periodically report relevant information to

the Board.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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REPORTING SCOPE

Based on the materiality principle and taking into account the core business
and major sources of revenue of the Group, the management of the Group
discussed and determined the reporting scope of the Report, which has been
approved by the Board. The Report primarily covers the Group’s offices in
the PRC and Hong Kong as the Group’s principal activities are office-based
operations. Unless specified otherwise, the information of the Group’s key
performance indicators (‘KPIs”) in the ESG areas are collected through the
operation control mechanisms of the Group and its subsidiaries. The Group
will continue to assess the major ESG aspects of different businesses to

determine whether they need to be included in the Report.

REPORTING PERIOD

The Report describes the ESG activities, challenges and measures taken by
the Group during the financial year ended 31 March 2024 (the “Current
Year”).

REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The Report has been prepared in accordance with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting Guide”) as
set out in Appendix C2 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and

based on the reporting principles of materiality, quantitative, balance and

consistency.
Crown International Corporation Limited
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Materiality: The Group has identified and analysed material ESG issues
through materiality assessment during the Current Year, and made the
identified material ESG issues the focus of the Report. The materiality of the
issues has been reviewed and confirmed by the Board. For further details,
please refer to the two sections headed “Stakeholder Engagement” and

“Materiality Assessment”.

Quantitative: Information regarding the standards, methodologies,
assumptions and/or calculation references and sources of key conversion

factors used for KPIs are stated wherever appropriate.

Balance: The Report aims to disclose data in an objective way, which aims
to provide stakeholders with a balance overview of the Group’s overall ESG

performance.

Consistency: Unless otherwise specified, the Group will follow the same
disclosure and statistical methodology in the last year for meaningful
comparisons. If there are any changes that may affect comparisons with
previous reports, the Group will add explanatory notes to the corresponding
content of the Report describing the changes of information in the scope of

reporting and calculation methods.

Information relating to the Group’s corporate governance practices is set out
the Corporate Governance Report of the Company’s annual report for the

Current Year.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group recognises that the success of our business is closely related
to the support of our key stakeholders, and the Group therefore values
the feedback from our key stakeholders on the business and ESG-related
issues of the Group. The Group believes that listening to the opinions of
stakeholders is constructive for an objective and comprehensive evaluation of

our ESG performance.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
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The following table summarises the Group’s key stakeholders and various

communication channels and their concerns and expectations on the Group.

Stakeholders Communication channels

& 0

R A G A = A 2 AR
5 38 753X b AT A 2 ] 1 B 7 e ST S

Concerns and exp ectations

B e IO

Shareholders and investors *  Annual general meeting and other
% BB 1% shareholder meetings
& SR A K e HA R BROK &
*  Financial reports
B s
*  Group website and e-mail
0 1 4 H B FR
. Results announcements
SEBUA A
Customers . Customer support hotline and e-mail
98] 7 SR BAAR AN
. Meetings
L
. Telephone/e-mail contact
Wk IR
. Customer activities
E9ERGE 0]
Employees *  Employee performance appraisal
(=1 B THMFE~
. Intranet and e-mail
VA IS 48 B e TR
*  Mid-year/year-end performance appraisal
meeting
R R BLREAG &
. Face to face talks
LR
. E-mail contact
o g
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. Compliance operation
AR
. Return on investment
& B #H
. Corporate governance
EEIR
e Information disclosure and transparency
G4 9% s
. Protection of rights and interests and fair

treatment of shareholders

% I 2 SRR 2k e 2 1 1R AR SR

o Stable relationship

T el

e Information transparency
E A
. Integrity
i AE
. Business ethics
[EESEK
e  Protection of employees’ rights and
interests
Ol g BME
. Working environment
TARERBE
. Career development opportunities
HEREKS
. Remuneration and benefits
it T Bl 4 A
*  Health and safety
il Bt Bl 2z 4



Stakeholders Communication channels Concerns and expectations

& R LHEVLIES
Suppliers and partners e Business meetings, e-mail and telephone *  Long-term cooperation
PR AN S TERS 1 [ERAE Ak G £ RIIA R R
. Review and assessment . Honest cooperation
LA S A
*  Regular meetings *  Fairness and openness
S 1 ik AR
*  Procurement and tender meetings *  Information resources sharing
R & Hal & I =
Opinion survey e Risk reduction
ERMA I € J e
Instant messaging software
BIVER 228 SRR 1

Regulators and government

Compliance advisor

e Compliance with regulations

authorities A R BT IER
65 S S R ISR A A Financial reports e Tax payment as required
S 5 i &R
Telephone/e-mail contact e Promoting regional economic development
Hah B and employment
Information disclosure 1 i T 468 97 9% g e it 5
H a4 2

Communities, non-

ESG reports

*  Giving back to society

governmental organisations BB A& RS Rl | i # B
and media Press releases/announcements e Environmental protection
FLEE ~ JEBUR HE S b 58 R, A BB R
Results announcements e Social welfare
SERE N R CEER
*  Health and safety
Tl i Bl 2 4

In formulating operational strategies and the ESG measures, the Group 16 il 51 28 7 SR I S BRI~ k& OB IR i i
takes into account the stakeholders’ expectations and strives to improve the R AEMEGHER O ENNE BBt
Group’s performance through mutual cooperation, with a view to delivering EERH R EAREFNRE AL ORE
BORMEAE -

greater value for the society.




Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The management and employees of the Group’s respective major functions
have participated in the preparation of the Report to assist the Group in
reviewing its operations and identifying relevant ESG issues, and assess the
importance of related issues to its business and stakeholders. The Group
believes that the business performance, overall situation of the industry
and other factors in each year will have different impact on stakeholders,
and thus may affect their expectations and demands on different
issues. Therefore, in order to better understand stakeholders’ views and
expectations on the Group’s ESG performance, the Group strives to adopt a

systematic approach in conducting the materiality assessment.

With reference to business development strategies and industry practices,
the Group’s management and employees have identified the ESG issues
that have a significant impact on stakeholders and the development of
the Group’s business. The Group compiled a questionnaire and invited
stakeholders related to the Group to rank the importance of various
ESG issues to themselves and their impact on the Group’s sustainable
development. The Group has analysed and ranked material topics based on
the survey results. The survey results for material assessment will be reviewed
and confirmed by the Board and the management, and will be disclosed in
the Report. The following table summarises the level of materiality of the

Group on different ESG issues:

Material Issues

HRHE

o G A

AR 2% 3 HIAE A Pl Bl R Y A 2 B
A AT 0 DA B AR S (A et L 1
Dl BRI B BRI~ L & B TR E D Al EF
i A o] = 3B A 5 [ 1 38 5 DL B 25 i A
AUEE 2 o ARBIME > BERSERB KRB
TSR BE R D05 R R AR & B A B A
[F 14 5% 8 > 8 1 52 A A7) 365 A 1) 3 H 1) 39
SERIER o Rt > 29 A R T MR 2 A B
BASMZEREE -G RERRINER
BN AR IR A RGN TR
17 R HRE A A

2% S 9 ORI B AT SR B AR
B SR B O R ) B B A B
EBRBARNGENREE G RER
afk el o A B 1 70 208 [ 6 5 > AR B SR 1
A T B FF 03 3 k25 HER B~ 4 & R TR R
WL Oy [ B B e S A B AT A 9%
Jee ) 5 B R T T o7 o A SR [ AR 9% o A
3ot EH G R HE AT 00 T e BRI o ER W R
it [ 4 i A5 65 R 46 P o S e R T
el B Tl 2+ M R AS T 1 e R R o T R A AR
TABEARRS g R ERERE LN
BBV

High Medium Low

(2 rp fix

. Employment practices . Energy consumption . Emissions control
e {5 1L 451 RE TR I FE HRBE

e Employees health and safety e Environmental impact management ¢  Water consumption
B SR 2 & BB A B K& R FE

e Service quality and standards e Corporate social responsibility *  Supply chain management
IR 25 fil L e R A g R/ A5 e A

e Prevention of child and forced *  Employee development and training ¢  Waste management
labour 1 B %% i Bl Sl o T 4 B
By 11 B T e s il 2% T e Climate change

e Anti-corruption EN 73 (o
REG
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CONTACT US

The Group welcomes and values stakeholders’ feedback to our ESG
approach and performance, which will help the Group continuously improve RERTHREFRBEERER B AL E
our sustainability performance. If you have any suggestions or opinions, N EF-RESE k23T SR URERER TR T

questions or comments, please feel free to contact the Group at: R R BB B B R IELA R 2R
T8 LA 22 [ M 5
Address: Room 2707, 27th Floor, China Resources Building, Wbt ST 2658
26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong P RIE 2742707 %
Telephone: ~ +852 2121 0988 BWEG ¢ +852 2121 0988

E-mail: info@crown727.com BH : info@crown727.com




Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
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A.

66

ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group attaches importance to the balance between business
development and environmental protection, and pays attention to
the harmonious development of humans and nature. The Group
is committed to playing an important role to protect the Earth
and natural resources and upholding high level of environmental
standards to strictly comply with applicable laws and regulations
during the operation of the business. During the Current Year, the
Group complied with the environmental regulatory requirements
applicable to the places in which it operates. The Group has adopted
policies on pollution prevention, protection of natural resources and
compliance with environmental laws and regulations. The Group has
also established internal environmental management guidelines and
implemented carbon reduction measures to reduce the consumption of

resources such as electricity, fuel and water.

Al. Emissions

The Group has established an environmental protection
accountability system and actively implemented environmental
measures against pollution during daily operation. The
Group’s senior management and office executives supervise the
implementation of the above measures and related environmental
protection policies. The Group expects all departments to
give their best to implement its environmental policies and
ensure all operational processes are in compliance with relevant
laws and regulations under the Group’s strict supervision and
guidance. The Designated Personnel will continue to review the
Group’s environmental policies and practices and report to the

management as appropriate, with recommendations if necessary.

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

During the Current Year, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with relevant local environmental
laws and regulations in relation to exhaust gas and greenhouse
gas (“GHG”) emissions, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste that would
have a significant impact on the Group, including, but not
limited to, the Environmental Protection Law of the PRC (H1
N\ RALF R ER PR PR 7%7%), the Water Pollution Prevention
and Control Law of the PRC (HH#E A\ R H:H1E K5 G4 i
181%), the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control
of Atmospheric Pollution (HFHE A R ALHIE K& i5 4 PiiG
1), the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste (H#E A KA1
%] 8 g Wi QBRI 58 75) and the Air Pollution Control
Ordinance (%2575 44 &E Hil {5 1) of Hong Kong.

Exhaust Gas Emissions

Exhaust gas emissions generated from business operations of
the Group mainly include nitrogen oxides (NOx), sulphur
oxides (SOx) and particulate matter (PM). The main exhaust gas
emissions generated from the Group’s operations are from petrol
consumed by vehicles. In respect of such sources of emissions, the
Group has actively taken a series of emission reduction measures
to reduce the adverse impact of emissions on the environment
and the risk of illnesses caused by air pollution in the society.
These measures include, but are not limited to, performing
regular vehicle inspections and maintenance to improve vehicle
efficiency, encouraging the use of public transportation for
business travel, and using electronic means of communication

such as video conference to reduce the frequency of business trips.
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During the Current Year, the Group’s exhaust gas emissions’

performance was as follows:

T A A A 5 B ) B SR P T R
Blan®

Type of exhaust gas Unit 2024 2023
J5% AR ¥4 By —ET=
Nitrogen oxides (NOx) kg 2.99 0.90
HEALPNOY YRS

Sulphur oxides (SOx) kg 0.05 0.04
Wit | AL (SO YRS

Particulate matter (PM) kg 0.22 0.07
FERLY) (PM) AV

Note: sk -

1. The calculation of exhaust gas emissions is based on “How to 1. JaE SR HE TR B B Y BRI =R

prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange.

2. The uptick in exhaust gas levels was associated with rising vehicle

emissions over the course of the reporting year.

GHG Emissions

The Group’s GHG emissions are mainly generated from
direct GHG emissions resulted from combustion of petrol in
vehicles (Scope 1), energy indirect GHG emissions resulted
from purchased electricity (Scope 2), and other indirect GHG
emissions resulted from paper disposal and business air travel
(Scope 3). In order to reduce GHG emissions from the Group’s
operation, the Group has set a target to gradually reduce
its intensity of GHG emissions (tCO2 equivalent/number
of employees) generated by the year ending 31 March 2025
(“FY20257), using the Previous Year as the baseline year. To
this end, the Group has implemented the following measures to
reduce direct GHG emissions resulted from combustion of petrol

in vehicles:
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Environmenta

e DPlan routes in advance before using vehicles to optimise

petrol consumption;

e Turn off engines for idling vehicles to reduce petrol

consumption;

e Conduct regular vehicle inspections and maintenance to

enhance vehicle efficiency.

During the Current Year, the Group’s intensity of GHG

emissions (tCO2 equivalent/number of employees) decreased by

approximately 11% as compared to the year ended 31 March

2023 (the “Previous Year”).

The Group’s GHG emissions performance was as follows:

Indicator®

izl

Unit

L8 DA

‘ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁue
HFE ;

o 2 A ) 9 DL
R EE ;

o EMETIRERERAEELL
il DR 7B A R RE ©

TR A AR 0 A B TR TR R
PR i Ot — SALTRCE & 8
BABOREBE T =4 -4
=t —Hik#E (T REE ) T
TH11%e

A I R RO PR R B
T

2024 2023
TE T PYAE —ET =

Scope 1 — Direct GHG emissions

I — — EE R R AR

Scope 2 — Energy indirect GHG emissions
I — RE TR R T SRR PR
Scope 3 — Other indirect GHG emissions
] = — LA i 2 TSRO PR I
Total GHG emissions

{2 SRS PR T A B

Intensity®

e

Intensity’

B

tCO: equivalent

g — R AL R B
tCO: equivalent
g — R AL R B
tCO: equivalent
g — R AL R B
tCO: equivalent
g — R AL R B

tCOz2 equivalent/number of
employees

W AR R BB

tCOz2 equivalent/HK$ million

revenue
W~ SALRE & T
L&

9.58 7.09
18.244 29.06
6.24° 0.36
34.06 36.51
1.55 1.74
0.19 0.09
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Notes:

3. GHG emission data is presented in terms of CO: equivalent,
with reference to, including, but not limited to, The Greenhouse
Gas Protocol: A Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standards
issued by the World Resources Institute and the World Business
Council for Sustainable Development, the 2019 Baseline Emission
Factor of China Regional Power Grid for Emission Reduction
Projects published by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment
of the PRC, the HK Electric Investments Sustainability Report
2021 published by the HK Electric, the global warming potential
values in the Fifth Assessment Report and 2006 IPCC Guidelines
for National Greenhouse Gas Inventories Volume 2 Energy issued
by the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change, and How to
prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs issued by the Stock Exchange.

4. The decrease in Scope 2 emissions (energy indirect greenhouse gas
emissions) is related to the cancellation of Zhongshan company this

Current Year.

5. The rise in Scope 3 emissions (other indirect greenhouse gas
emissions) is associated with an increase in business-related air

travel over the Current Year.

6. As at 31 March 2024, the total number of employees of the Group
(including executive Directors) was 22 (as at 31 March 2023: 21).

These data are also used to calculate other intensity data.

7. For the Current Year and the Previous Year, the Group’s revenue
was approximately HK$183.5 million. These data are also used to

calculate other intensity data.

Sewage Discharge

The Group does not consume a significant volume of water in its
business activities, and therefore the Group’s business activities
do not generate a large amount of sewage discharge. As the
sewage generated by the Group is discharged into the public
sewerage system, the amount of sewage discharge is considered as
the water consumption. The amount of water consumption and
corresponding water-saving initiatives will be described under

“Water Consumption” in aspect A2.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Waste Management

The Group also generates waste during its operation process.
To minimise the impact on the environment caused by waste,
the Group has strictly complied with the Law of the PRC on
the Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by
Solid Waste (FPHE A BRI [&] #4857 15 S BRIE B 16 75)
and the Directory of National Hazardous Wastes (B fizf
JBEY 44 8%) of the PRC and the Waste Disposal Ordinance (&%
Y& EA%H]) of Hong Kong and other laws and regulations,
continuously implementing a variety of waste management and
emission reduction measures. In order to reduce wastes from the
Group’s operation, the Group has set a target to gradually reduce
its intensity of waste generated by the FY2025 (tons/number of

employees), using the Previous Year as the baseline year.

Hazardous waste

Due to the Group’s business nature, during the Current Year,
the Group did not generate hazardous waste during its business
operations. Nevertheless, the Group has established guidelines for
the management and disposal of hazardous waste in accordance
with the laws and regulations of the local government. If any
hazardous waste is generated, it will be clearly labelled and
stored at a designated location as required, and a qualified
environmental unit or collector will be engaged to collect and

deliver such waste to the designated location for disposal.

Non-hazardous waste

The Group did not generate non-hazardous waste during its
business operations. Apart from continuing to implement the
existing waste reduction measures, the Group will also strive to
explore the use of different measures to enhance the recycling rate

and reduce waste generation.
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A2.

The Group employs a number of measures to reduce waste, such
as different recycling methods, to reduce the amount of waste
generated in its daily operation. These measures include, but
are not limited to, encouraging employees to use double-sided
printing, suggesting the use of electronic information systems
for material sharing and distribution of internal administrative
documents, encouraging employees to use proper domestic waste
treatment methods, requiring employees to dispose of domestic
waste to the designated collection containers or places in
accordance with the specified location and time, and prohibiting

employees from dumping or stacking domestic waste arbitrarily.

During the Current Year, the Group disposed no non-hazardous

waste.

Use of Resources

Electricity consumption in the offices is the major source of
the Group’s indirect GHG emission. Therefore, the Group sets
out several comprehensive guidelines and measures in relation
to energy saving to our employees with an aim to minimise the
GHG emissions from electricity consumption. Adhering to the
philosophy of conservation, high efficiency, reasonable utilisation
of resources and prevention of wastage of resources, the Group
actively promotes green office and enhances employees’ awareness

of energy conservation and environmental protection.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Energy Consumption

The major energy consumptions of the Group in daily
operation are electricity consumption and petrol consumption
for transportation. To reduce the energy consumption from
the Group’s business operation, the Group has set the target
to gradually reduce the energy consumptions intensity (MWh/
number of employees) using the Previous Year as the baseline
year by FY2025. To achieve this target, the Group fully integrates
the concept of energy saving and emission reduction into its
daily operation and encourages its employees to avoid wastage
and make good use of resources. During the Current Year, the
Group implemented energy saving and emission reduction
measures including, but not limited to, maintaining an indoor
temperature at an optimal level of 25°C in the offices, cleaning
the air conditioner and ventilation system regularly, installing
LED lighting system in the offices, encouraging employees to use
natural light and turn off all equipment when not in use, and
putting notices and signs emphasising the importance of energy
saving in the offices. Through the adoption of the above measures
and the posting of energy saving slogans, the Group has instilled
the awareness of energy saving and environmental protection into
the work and life of every employee and raised the awareness of

energy saving among staff.

During the Current Year, the Group’s energy consumption
intensity (MWh/number of employeces) decreased by
approximately 15% as compared to the Previous Year due to the

increase in our business activities.
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) .
The Group’s total energy consumption performance was as

follows:

A 5 1B A AE R H AR AR B R B
T

Type of energy® Unit 2024 2023

At 5 Rl LA CSROPEE

Direct energy consumption

1% HE TR I8 AL

* Petrol MWh 34.89 25.85
A JR BLIE

Indirect energy consumption

I $22 AE T 74 AR

¢ Electricity MWh 28.88 46.15
L] JR BLIE

Total energy consumption MWh 63.77 72.00

AE 7 7% FEAE = JR FLIE

Intensity MWh/number of employees 2.90 3.43

I JEELIE B B\ ¥

Intensity MWh/HKS$ million revenue 0.348 0.173

I JRELIRE B T e

Note: fhi ik

8.  The calculation method of energy consumption data is based on the 8. REUR I FEBUBE W BT R 7L

“Energy Statistics Manual” published by the International Energy

Agency. Due to the optimised data processing, the relevant data has

been disclosed by type since the Previous Year.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Water Consumption

The Group considers water to be one of the most precious
resources on Earth. Apart from water for domestic use in the
offices and regular fire drills, the Group does not require any
water for its daily operations. To reduce water consumption
from the Group’s business operation, the Group has set the
target to gradually reduce the use of water intensity (m*/number
of employees) using the Previous Year as the baseline year by
FY2025. To achieve this target, the Group controls the frequency
of water consumption and encourages our employees to conserve
water. The Group will continue to step up relevant publicity in
the workplace to raise employees” awareness of water conservation
in the future. During the Current Year, there was no issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose due to the geographical

location of the Group’s operation and business nature.

During the Current Year, the Group’s water intensity (m*/number
of employees) decreased by approximately 65% as compared to

the Previous Year.

The Group’s water consumption performance was as follows:
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AEBFEPHKRROT :

Water consumption Unit 2024 2023
ik Wit = LR
Total water consumption m’ 241.00° 654.00
K& RV

Intensity m?*/number of employees 10.95 31.14
Ficdics TR RB N

Intensity m?*/HKS$ million revenue 1.31 1.57
Ficdics AP =R VI &

Note: sk -

9. The total water consumption decreased is related to the cancellation 9. HE I 7Kk B e B b 2 ED

of Zhongshan company this Current Year.
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A3.

A4.

Use of Packaging Materials

Due to the Group’s business nature, during the Current Year, the
Group’s daily operations did not involve the use of a significant

amount of packaging materials.

The Environment and Natural Resources

Environmental Impact Management

Although the Group’s operations do not involve serious
pollution, as part of our ongoing commitment to corporate
social responsibility, the Group recognises the importance of
reducing the potential negative environmental impact of our
business operations. The Group strives to reduce our potential
impact on the environment by adopting industry best practices
related to reducing the consumption of natural resources and
implementing effective environmental management. The Group
regularly assesses the environmental risks of its operations, takes
precautionary measures to reduce potential risks and ensures
compliance with relevant laws and regulations, and is also
committed to achieving sustainable development and creating

long-term value for the community and stakeholders.

Climate Change

To respond to climate change, many countries around the
world adopted more aggressive policies and measures. To be in
line with the nation’s goal of “carbon peak by 2030 and carbon
neutralisation by 2060” and sustainable key trends, the Group
actively incorporates climate change into risk management and
development considerations and enhances the Group’s mitigation
and adaptability to potential climate change impacts. To better
cope with the potential risk and opportunities of climate change,
the Group carried out the identification, assessment, and analysis
of climate-related risks, identified the climate-related risks that
have a material impact on the Company’s business and operations
and assessed the impact of each risk on its own finances, the

results of the relevant work are as follows:
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Physical Risks

Increasing severity and frequency of extreme weather events,
such as floods arising from super typhoons and rainstorms, may
cause damage to the Group’s properties, which results in the
impairment of assets and increases the maintenance costs, and
may have an impact on the personal safety of employees. In
addition, these extreme weather events also may influence the
stability of the power supply and lead to power shortages, thereby
affecting the Group’s operation. In response to these potential
risks, the Group has formulated the extreme weather contingency
plan, including the allocation of manpower, arrangement
for emergency measures, sequence and timing of business
resumption, etc., to reduce the impact of extreme weather events.
The Group also informs its employees in advance regarding the

arrangement in case of bad weather.

Transition Risks

To achieve the goal of carbon neutrality, the Group expects
that the government will strengthen environmental regulation
and disclosure requirements on climate-related matters. The
Group therefore will face more stringent regulatory compliance
requirements, resulting in operation costs increased. If the Group
fails to meet the policies and regulatory requirements, the Group
will face regulatory risks from the regulatory authorities. It also
damages the Group’s reputation and impacts investors’ confidence
in the Group. To respond to these potential risks, the Group will
continue to pay attention to the latest government policies and
relevant requirements, consult regulatory opinions for operation,
reduce carbon emissions from the operation through various
measures, and make an immediate response for the changed

policies.
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B. SOCIAL

/8

B1. Employment Practices

The Group considers our employees are the core for the Group
to maintain our competitive advantage and the most important
asset for our operations and development. The Group aims to
provide an ideal workplace for each of our employees, allowing
them to enjoy equal opportunity, harmony, continuous training,
and promising career opportunities so as to drive employees to
work hard and achieve the Group’s short-term and long-term
business objectives and goals. The Group insists on a people-
oriented approach that respects and protects the legitimate
rights and interests of each employee, regulates labour and
employment management, protects the occupational health and
safety of employees, safeguards their vital interests, stimulate their
motivation and creativity, and strives to create harmonious labour
relations. The Group has also developed the Employee Handbook
(BELTFM) to regulate recruitment, promotion, discipline,

working hours, leaves and other welfare.

During the Current Year, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations
relating to remuneration and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, leaves, equal opportunities, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other treatment and welfare that would
have a significant impact on the Group, including, but not
limited to, the Labor Law of the PRC (Hr#E A\ R A1 [ 2% &)
%), the Labor Contract Law of the PRC (Hr#E A R AL AN

SFE) A FE) and the Employment Ordinance (fE{HEB) of
Hong Kong.
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Environmenta

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had a total of 22 employees
(as at 31 March 2023: 21) including executive directors.
The breakdown of employees by gender, age group, type of

employment, and region was as follows:
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In addition, during the Current Year, the total number of

employee turnover was 6 (the Previous year: 8), representing

a turnover rate'® of approximately 27.91% (the Previous year:

32.00%). The breakdown of employee turnover rates by gender,

age group, and region was as follows:

FAN R AREE R B RN
AN (LAERE 1 8 N) » iR
9 72527.91% (EEE 2 32.00%) ©
Fo PR TN o 4R 8% 40 R AN T 1 8 B

TRBMAR

2024 2023
“EYE —ET=
Number of Number of
turnover Turnover turnover Turnover
employees rate’  employees rate!!
HlE IR\ 81 S 2N it A
By gender Fie e &) 5y
Male Bk 5 39% 6 40%
Female ot 1 12% 2 20%
By age group i AF 2 AL ) 57
At or below 30 305 B LR 20% 1 18%
31-50 31ZES05% 4 30% 6 38%
At or above 51 SURBEEL | 33% 1 29%
By region e b B ) 5y
The PRC H 2 12% 3 16%
Hong Kong 7 80% 5 77%
Notes: sk

10.  The overall employee turnover rate was calculated by dividing the

number of employees leaving employment during the reporting

period by the average number of employees (average of number of

employees at the start and at the end of the reporting period).

11.  The employee turnover rate of each category was calculated by

dividing the number of employees leaving employment in the

specified category during the reporting period by the average

number of employees (average of number of employees at the start

and at the end of the reporting period) in the specified category.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Employees’ Rights and Welfare

The Group endeavours to provide employees with fair and
competitive remuneration and welfare and determines employee
remuneration in accordance with industry practice and individual
performance. The Group conducts regular review of its employee
benefits and adjusts such benefits according to the changes
in external remuneration market and internal actual situation
to ensure that they are in line with current market standards.
The Group pays premiums for social insurances of employees
including basic endowment insurance, basic medical insurance,
unemployment insurance, work-related injury insurance, and
maternity insurance as well as housing provident fund in
accordance with national and local laws and regulations to ensure
employees are covered by social insurance. Also, the Group
provides benefits such as allowances, benefits in kind, medical
insurance, discretionary bonuses, and participation of eligible
employees in share option schemes, in an effort to retain talents
and to ensure that employees’ compensation, working hours
and leaves are determined with reference to their respective job

responsibilities, experience, qualifications and performance.

The Group strictly complies with the requirements of relevant
laws and regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong to protect the
legitimate rights and interests of the labour force, respects the
rights of employees to rest and leave, and regulates the working
hours of employees and their entitlement to various rest periods
and holidays. The Group has implemented a paid leave system for
employees in accordance with relevant provisions in the Employee
Handbook. The Group has also established management practices
to strengthen the regulation of contracts, remuneration and
benefits, and to implement and monitor the Group’s labour
policies to protect the interests of employees. The Group also pays
overtime pay for the labour that exceeds statutory working hours
in accordance with national laws and regulations. Any overtime
work arrangements must be negotiated between the Group and
employees and must be voluntary for the employees. The relevant

remuneration must be paid in accordance with the law.
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Recruitment, Promotion and Dismissal

To meet the Group’s development, the Group ensures that the
recruitment, promotion, and dismissal process only emphasis
on the qualifications, experience, and merits of applicants and
employees, and strictly prohibits any discrimination on the
grounds of gender, colour, race, age, and religion. To ensure
fairness, the recruitment process includes centralising the
candidate selection process by the human resources department
for Hong Kong recruitment and the general manager for the
PRC recruitment, standardising the interview assessments,
and undergoing a strict vetting process for the different
positions offered. The Group attaches great importance to
equal opportunity and transparent promotions. To increase
the personal quality and competence of the employees and to
mobilise the initiative and motivation of all employees, the Group
strives to create a fair, just, and open competition mechanism
that recognises the value of the employees through assessment
and reduces brain drain by giving them equal opportunities to

compete.

Equal Opportunities

The Group is dedicated to providing equal opportunity in
all aspects of employment and maintaining an inclusive and
collaborative workplace culture. Regardless of race, gender,
colour, age, family background, ethnic tradition, religion,
physical fitness, and nationality, etc., the Group allows employees
to enjoy a fair treatment at all stages of recruitment, training,
and promotion, in an effort to bring professionals with different
backgrounds to join the Group. The Group is committed to
maintaining a diverse workforce and prohibiting unfair treatment

of any kind.

Crown International Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2023/2024

#7145~ & 71 1% B e

FEEA R RER o AR
W AE T 1S ~ B T e e R v
DR 235 B g N e e B RS
A B B #6032 Ok A AT
PERI ~ o € R AR R OR R
{0 Ffr 5 RS A B 1 o 2 TR 23 1 > 48
SRR WA N & (&
BRI ) R A (R R 4
W3 =) SR PR B PR R e o DA
— ARG A A R B AR A A
(i B 67 2 1T s o R T o AR
P i 2y EEAL P SE AR B B THE
& R iETHe B8N R EMAE N
DUk 5 55 il 8y 2 46 0 B A9 3 Bl
FIRERG M - AR SR B B A
ONIE S 2 B SR A
¥ RaB e B EE > SRS
(ISR T RTE S R PN
ALK

FEH
S 540 £ 0 1) 75 0 T 4%
P WA WA R T
PEST SA =  3B  RG
P R 4R R R R
BRI R SRR
R 28 10— 0 5 o
CEHLIY 5501 F0 25 75 4 f
S AP LU R R
255160 B 1 A A3 B < A 3
AR R TS T AL
RPN A TR



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
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B2. Employees Health and Safety B2. ¢ By il R Bl g 4=

The safety and health of employees are a top priority for the
Group. Despite the low occupational safety and health risks faced
by the Group’s office staff, the Group maintains a meticulous
approach to safety education and training and has therefore
developed the Safety Management System (%2 % BHlE) o
clearly communicate the Group’s safety objectives. The Group
is pursuing “two eliminations and one control”, i.e. elimination
of accidents of a larger scale and above and control of sporadic
accidents, to raise employees’ safety awareness and prevent
the occurrence of accidents. The Group has complied with all
laws and regulations relating to the provision of a safe working
environment and the protection of employees from occupational
hazards including, but not limited to, the Law of the PRC on the
Prevention and Treatment of Occupational Diseases (HHHE A R
FEFI R E I B I61%), the Fire Protection Law of the PRC (1
N RILFNE 775 and the Occupational Safety and Health
Ordinance (CHE 2 2 R AZFE%BI) of Hong Kong.

During the Current Year, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with applicable national laws and
regulations relating to health and safety that would have a
significant impact on the Group, nor did it record any work-
related accidents resulting in fatalities and any lost workdays due
to work-related injuries during last three years (including the

Current Year).
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B3. Employees Development and Training

The Group believes that the development of the potential of the
employees is closely related to the Group’s growth. As a result,
it is one of the Group’s missions to place a strong emphasis on
the career development of its employees and to provide them
with extensive training, so that their development and the
growth of the enterprise can build on each other and be mutually
reinforcing. The Group provides a broad platform for the growth
and development of its employees through the formulation of
the Staff Training System (B TIEFIHIE) to standardise and
personalise training, as well as through regular evaluation and
stimulate employees’ motivation and enthusiasm. To this end,
the Group has established training-related policies to regulate
the management of training of employees. The management will
regularly review the effectiveness of different training plans to
help improve the efficiency of the Group’s training system. By
providing a wide range of training programs to its employees, the
Group actively assists them in developing their long-term career

plans.

Training Programmes

Based on employees’ career development plans and needs, the
Group offers internal training in accounting and finance to the
corresponding production unit, to enhance the professional
knowledge and expertise of employees. Moreover, the Group
strongly encourages employees to attend any necessary external
training courses, workshops, and seminars, including job-
related skills training, professional skills training, and managerial
training. The Group encourages the employees to attend external
training courses and participate in professional lectures by
providing substantial support to them, such as providing financial
support and encouraging employees to take any necessary leave

for studying.

During the Current Year, the Group has not organised any
training. While resource constraints delayed employee training
initiatives in the past, we recognize its importance. Going

forward, developing our people remains a top priority.
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B4. Labour Standards B4. 55 1.%eH)

Prevention of Child and Forced Labour

The Group strictly complies with the national and local
employment laws and regulations and prohibits any child labour
and forced labour in its business operations. During the Current
Year, the Group was not aware of any material non-compliance
with laws and regulations relating to child labour and forced
labour that would have a significant impact on the Group
including, but not limited to, the Labour Law of the PRC (H
HNRILFRZH)1%) and the Prohibition of Using Child
Labour (28 1L # T #&) and the Employment Ordinance
(@R % 451) of Hong Kong. The Group has also formulated
the Management System for Child and Minor Labour (2 T.5d
R TEHEHIE) o clearly inform employees that child
labour is strictly prohibited in the Group. The Group requires the
personnel management department to conduct rigorous checks
on documents and information such as identity cards, medical
certificates, academic certificates, and household and to ensure
that all documents provided are original during recruitment.
In case of doubt about the validity of documents such as age,
applicants must be required to provide proof from the public
security police station where the applicant’s household is located
or contact the public security police station to confirm the
validity of the documents. Employment will be offered only after
the age and other information are confirmed to be correct. In
addition, the Group conducts regular audits and inspections to
prevent any child labour and forced labour in its operations. In
the meantime, the Group’s employees work overtime voluntarily
only when necessary. If any child labour is found to have been
wrongly employed, the Group will immediately settle their
wages and take remedies, including the immediate cessation of
their work, provision of medical examination and, if necessary,
treatment and escorting them home or picking them up by
a guardian. Any department or individual, if found to be
responsible for the injury, disability, or death of a child labourer,
shall be imposed administrative penalties by the labour security
department at or above the district level. If a crime is constituted,
the criminal responsibility shall be pursued by judicial authorities.
Moreover, the Group will not tolerate any negative acts such as
verbal abuse, corporal punishment, physical abuse, oppression,

sexual harassment, etc., against its employees for any reason.
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B5. Supply Chain Management

Suppliers are crucial to the businesses and operations of the
Group. The Group aims at developing on mutual trust and
stable cooperation with its suppliers. The Group adheres to
international best practices and ensures fair and unbiased tender
processes are maintained when dealing with suppliers. The Group
has established a supplier selection mechanism with a number
of stringent selection criteria and strictly adheres to the core

principles of honesty, integrity, fairness, justice and transparency.

During the Current Year, the Weihai Property was still under
construction. Although the construction work is provided by a
contractor which was engaged previously, the senior management
took serious care in the background and commitments to the
society and environment of that contractor by enquiring and
reading its ESG-related information and reports. The project
personnel regularly monitored the progress of the construction
conducted by the contractor, and held regular meetings with
the contractor to review whether the contractor has used any
toxic and hazardous materials or caused significant pollution to
the environment. The Group also emphasised the importance
of waste management and advocated waste reduction, reuse and
recycling during the construction by the contractor, to ensure that

alignment with the Group’s objectives and direction.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Suppliers’ Environmental and Social Risks

The Group has established relevant procurement procedures to
handle the procurement of goods and services from suppliers.
Supplier selection is performed by the corresponding operation
departments and office managers. In supplier selection, the Group
conducts thorough due diligence and vetting process by taking
into account of a number of selection criteria including, but not
limited to, pricing, quality of products, company background,
past experience and reputation, supply capacity, any non-
compliance with local law and regulations on existing business,
as well as qualifications attained and financial status and other
factors. Proper internal control measures are also in place in the
Group’s procurement system to ensure each supplier engagement

is approved by the appropriate level of management.

In addition, the Group oversees the social and environmental
performance of its suppliers and monitors the quality of goods
and services provided by them on a regular basis. Where the
Group discovers that they did not meet the standard, or their
goods and services provided were environmental unfriendly
and energy inefficient compared to their peers in the market,
they will be required to make corrective actions in a timely
manner. Otherwise, they may be suspended from any business

relationships with the Group.

The Group also expects its major suppliers to understand the
importance of environmental protection and social responsibility
and put health and safety as one of their core principles in
doing businesses. In order to further improve the selection
and management of suppliers, the Group has formulated the
Green Procurement Code of Conduct (AEfRIEHIHIE) o
standardise the environmental management controls of suppliers

to ensure they can meet the requirements of the Group.

RIE - REARST @

PEUERTBEBE I L 67 KR

AL EHE 7R R &
Bl e 6 T R R B IR 2 R
‘B o 3% JE g 19k 258 Pl A R 2
P B 3k 2 =2 A 2L 1 B 0 ik 2R
OB T I A S [ o O AT 52 3 A
T A e AR 0 Ol 2 JE Bk
B LI AEAT 5 b i E A
RRA 58 (B ~ 72 b B~ A RD A 5
BT R RS  BLA
SEW A 8 RO R IE LA
Je P AS A% e U 5 K 0 S TR 3R o
7 5 10 FF) £R W 1) 2 R © A0 A % 5
P R B P 4 e 0 DARE DR 4 44 fL
A 1 A8 B A AN < A P 1R
Ji &N

b Ah o A 55 [ 5 0 B e L A
AL & R BR B A DU B At P 4
i 2 B A e IR S 1O H 3R o i A BR
I 3% B4t 1 oK BE 7F & FLER TR > 5K
Pt £ 3t 2 15 o B IR 5 16 BR Ok e BE
R 2k 75 A B T 8 b Ath 1]
S B o R S e R A HH A IE
T8N 3 Al > A B2 0 a1 {2 L
FZHEBR

A 55 [ R S T AR T A
B Rt & B AL 2 HE A I
fi i B2 2 A0 8 v Ao JRL TN 2
— o X HE— 0 52 I R A P
B AE D AR EEIE 1 G R
LA T ) LURH 1 R A BR B A
B ) 2 il 185 T A ffe O A4 755 5
MK o

ELUeE R ER S A B A ) 87
2023/2024 4E$



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE-HEARELRRST ®

38

B6.

Fair and Open Tender

The Group’s tender process is conducted under open, fair and
equitable conditions in strict compliance with the Law of the
PRC on Tendering and Bidding (H7#E A\ Rl BIA IR AT
%) and other relevant regulations. No discriminatory treatment
will be given to any supplier, and employees and other individuals
with an interest in the suppliers will not be allowed to participate
in the relevant tender activities. The Group is also concerned
about the integrity of its suppliers and partners and has zero

tolerance for bribery and corruption, and strictly prohibits
suppliers and partners from obtaining procurement contracts or

partnerships through any form of transfer of benefits.

During the Current Year, the Group has no supplier in the

Group’s supplier chain.

Product Responsibility

During the Current Year, the Group strictly complied with laws
and regulations relating to health and safety of products and
services, advertising, labelling and privacy matters as well as
remedies including, but not limited to, the Advertising Law of the
PRC (H1#E N RILMIER B 5 17%) and the Patent Law of the PRC
(HE NRALFI R HF7E) and the Personal Darta (Privacy)
Ordinance (A NE K (FAFR) #8f]) of Hong Kong. During
the Current Year, the Group was not aware of any material non-
compliance with laws and regulations relating to health and
safety of products and services, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters that would have a material impact on the Group. Due
to the nature of the Group’s business, the number of recalls for
safety and health reasons and the relevant recall procedures were

not applicable to the Group.

Service Quality and Standards

The quality of the Group’s services is of paramount importance
in maintaining a long-term mutually beneficial relationship
with its customers. The Group therefore has developed relevant
systems for handling customer feedback to standardise the process
of dealing with enquiries, quotations and complaints, so that
it ensures that each customer’s feedback is recorded, handled
and responded to in a professional and prompt manner. During
the Current Year, the Group did not receive any major written

complaints about its products and services.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Promoting and Labelling

In order to ensure that the promotion of the Group’s services
conforms to the actual situation of the service, the Group strictly
abides by the relevant laws and regulations on advertising and
marketing such as the Advertising Law of the PRC (H1#E A\ R $%
FTER JEE %5 1%) and the Trade Descriptions Ordinance (7 i BH
f&451) of Hong Kong. The Group is committed to ensuring that
all advertising contents are clear and authentic. The use of false
and misleading product descriptions in advertisements is strictly
prohibited. The Group also requires all publicity content, such as
external image display, event publicity, marketing publicity, to be
produced and published only after approval, so as to avoid any

form of false publicity and ensure its authenticity and accuracy.

Protection of Customer Privacy

To further reinforce the privacy management in protection of
the enterprise property and customers’ safety and interests,
the Group has stipulated a series of stringent and standardised
personal information privacy and security policies for protecting
the Group’s properties and classified information (including
the personal privacy of employees and customers); and strictly
prohibits any abuse of personal information and illegal
profiteering acts. Only authorised personnel of the Group can
access information systems with customer and employee data,
and employees are strictly prohibited to disclose the company’s
information without authorisation, including the identity and
background of tenants and contract terms. Without prior written
consent of customers, the Group shall not mention the matters
agreed between the Group and the customers in any promotional
materials or advertisements for any purpose other than the

agreement.
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B7.

Intellectual Property Management

Due to the nature of the Group’s business, the Group does
not rely on the use of a large number of patents or intellectual
property rights. However, the Group’s daily operations may
involve the use of the intellectual property rights owned by
suppliers or business partners. The Group respects the intellectual
property rights of partners while protecting its own intellectual
property rights from infringement. Meantime, the Group
enters into confidentiality agreements with its employees,
clearly specifying the scope, means and liability for breach
of confidentiality, so as to prevent leakage of confidential
information due to staff turnover and maximise the security of

data for customers and suppliers.

Anti-corruption

The Group recognises the crucial importance of anti-corruption
to a corporate culture of integrity and to the interests of all
stakeholders. To maintain a fair, ethical and efficient business
and working environment, the Group stresses great importance
of anti-corruption measures to every stakeholder including
employees, suppliers, customers and bankers. Any form of
corruption including, but not limited to, fraud, extortion,
bribery and money laundering is strictly prohibited. The Group
regularly remind its employees not to accept gifts or rebates from
suppliers or other stakeholders under any circumstances, and not
to receive or accept any gratification from any person, companies
or institutions with whom the Group has business dealings.
The relevant guidelines are also clearly listed in the Employee
Handbook. The Group will continue with and be committed
to business integrity, adhering to the business ethics of honesty,

integrity, fairness, mutual benefit, and customer first.

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

During the Current Year, the Group was not aware of any
non-compliance case in relation to the prevention of bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering-related laws and
regulations that would have a significant impact on the Group
including, but not limited to, the Criminal Law of the PRC
(g NRIEFBE ML), Anti-Money Laundering Law of
the PRC (¥ NRILFE 1K) and the Anti-Unfair
Competition Law of the PRC (HVHE A\ R H AT A IF 5 35t
F#1%) and the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (7 1F i B& 5%
) of Hong Kong. Furthermore, these was no concluded legal
cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group or its

employees during the Current Year.

In order to prevent any misconduct such as bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering during the operation of the
Group, the Group has circulated guidelines relating to anti-
money laundering and counter-terrorist financing to the Board
and its employees with the aim to familiarise them with their
corresponding role and responsibility to promote anti-corruption

and business ethics.

Whistle-blowing System

The Group has set up a whistle-blowing hotline and an
independent inspection team to collect related whistle-blowing
information and set up a sound supervision and restraint
mechanism to prevent bribery, extortion, fraud, money
laundering and other misconducts. Under this whistle-blowing
system, all employees are allowed to report to the internal control
employees anonymously any suspected delinquency, corruption,
bribery and other misconducts within the Group. The internal
control employees will process the reports promptly, fairly and
confidentially. Besides, the whistle-blowing system also ensures
that whistle-blowers will not be treated unfairly because of the
reports, including, but not limited to, unreasonable dismissal and

unwarranted disciplinary actions.
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B8. Community Investment

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Group adheres to the belief of “taking from society, and
giving back to society”. Apart from maintaining sound business
development, the Group also actively takes initiatives in
community investments, especially focusing on environmental
protection and poverty alleviation. Besides, the Group encourages
employees to take part in work-life balance activities and
community services, including various culture events, community
volunteering, employee outings, and supporting charitable
organisations. The Group hopes to foster employees’ sense of
social responsibility, thus encouraging them to actively participate
in social activities for public good to make greater contributions
to the society. The Group believes that the participation in
activities that contribute to the society can improve employees’
civic awareness and help them establish correct values. Due to
past resource constraints, the Group prioritized core operations
over social programs. Going forward, as our financial position

allows, we aim to focus more on social welfare initiatives.

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Subject Areas,
General Disclosures
and KPIs Description Section/Statement
ki ~ — 5% 90 5% e
IoH S BB il 3 B
KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions Emissions —
(in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production GHG Emissions

volume, per facility).
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intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility). Waste
Management
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i~ IR D © JB% F ) B
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KPI Al.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and Emissions —
a description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. Waste
Management
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purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
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Subject Areas,
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and KPIs Description Section/Statement
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KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if N/A -
applicable, with reference to per unit produced. explained
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Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

JEmA3 @ BEBE R K ARE R

General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the environment The Environment
and natural resources. and Natural
Resources —
Environmental
Impact
Management
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KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment The Environment
and natural resources and the actions taken to manage them. and Natural
Resources —
Environmental
Impact
Management
o) 9 S AU RRA . P E B TR BN B R B R KRR E TR E R B R CRIVE AR BRERRAER —
BHITE BRI A
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compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
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B S 2B U HE R B 2.3

9 8 Crown International Corporation Limited

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting

employees from occupational hazards.
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Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past

three years including the reporting year.
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Lost days due to work injury.
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Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and how

they are implemented and monitored.
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Subject Areas,
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Aspect B4: Labour Standards
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KPI B4.2
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Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.
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Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child

and forced labour.
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Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered.
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Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
JEiBS © {4 S PH

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain. ~ Supply Chain
Management
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KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Supply Chain
Management
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KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of Supply Chain
suppliers where the practices are being implemented, and how they are Management

implemented and monitored.
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(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters

relating to products and services provided and methods of redress.
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Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual

property rights.
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Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.
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[P S 4B U HE R B 7.3

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and how

they are implemented and monitored.

A 0 98 A R DR B B FA BB BOR > DUBAH BRI AT S B %8 757K -

Information on:
(a)
(b)

the policies; and

compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

A BB kA~ B3R R B e R R

@ BOR; K

(b) RESFEERAT N A E B B TR B ) R o

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the

outcomes of the cases.
i BEE U P 3 B AT N B L B I L A T B TS R AR R A
SN &/

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, and

how they are implemented and monitored.

A 2 175 96 45 e e R R 0 AR B T T B G 5 7 7

Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff.

i 2t 17 B e B THR 60 ] B TS Bl o

Product
Responsibility —
Protection of
Customer Privacy
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EIRE'N" 7 ]

Anti-corruption

&S

Anti-corruption
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Anti-corruption —
Whistle-blowing
System
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE-HEARELRRST ®

Subject Areas,
General Disclosures

and KPIs Description Section/Statement
v ~ — R % % e
PR S S B i 4 L L]

Aspect B8: Community Investment

JEmiBs : HLERE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the Community
communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into Investment —
consideration the communities’ interests. Corporate Social

Responsibility

— % FE AR 2 LR T fig s A AL R AR HCE B IR g L E R E —

JEE R L ) 2 Y BOR ¥ G HE

KPI BS8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, Community
labour needs, health, culture, sport). Investment —

Corporate Social

Responsibility

Il S A U A KBS 1 BT BN N8 - R EE 7 LRR R e ) o HERE -
i FaRH=LiR
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area. Community
Investment —

Corporate Social

Responsibility
Io#] S AE AR B 8.2 A ST R P B P o R (A SR BN ) o HERE —
g EE
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CCTH CPA LIMITED
PIEXEEEMBIRAQE

A

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF CROWN INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION
LIMITED

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of Crown
International Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 109 to 207, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2024, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of material

accounting policy information.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
Because of the significance of the matters described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we have not been able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit
opinion on these consolidated financial statements. In all other respects,
in our opinion the consolidated financial statements have been properly

prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Going concern

As disclosed in note2.1(a) of the consolidated financial statements, for the
year ended 31 March 2024, the Group recorded a net loss of approximately
HK$127,200,000. As at 31 March 2024, the Group’s financial obligations
approximately HK$1,316,506,000, which are due for repayment within
the next twelve months. Among these obligations, approximately
HK$806,726,000 bank borrowings are repayable on demand as the
Group had failed to make certain instalments of principal and interest
when they became due and these amounts remained unsettled up to the
date of approval of these consolidated financial statements, while the
Group’s available cash and cash equivalents amount to approximately

HK$177,587,000.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

B ZHEMR S @

These events and conditions indicate the existence of material uncertainties
which may cast significant doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a

going concern.

The directors of the Company have been undertaking a number of measures
to improve the Group’s liquidity and financial position, and to remedy
certain delayed repayments to financial institutions and the constructors.
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis, the validity of which depends on the outcome of the

following measures:

(i) the Group has been communicating with the bank to remedy the
late repayment issue and to restructure the payments terms for the
remaining amount of the loan. Given the loan is secured by the Weihai
Runhe construction-in-progress (“Weihai Project”), on 28 March
2024, the bank has agreed to allow the Group to repay the outstanding
amounts using the proceeds from the pre-sales of the Weihai Project
within three years. Based on current progress of the WeiHai Project,
the directors of the Company are expected the pre-sales will be

processed in 2025;

(i) the successful negotiations with the property constructors for the
renewal or extension of repayment for those construction payables, that

are already overdue;

(iii) the successful obtaining of additional new source of finance as and

when needed; and

(iv) to diversify and expand into other profitable business ventures beyond

property development.

These events and conditions indicate the existence of material uncertainties
which may cast significant doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a

going concern.

Crown International Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2023/2024
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Should the Group fail to achieve the abovementioned plans and measures,
it may not be able to continue to operate as a going concern, and
adjustments would have to be made to write down the carrying values of
the Group’s assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any further
liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-current assets and non-
current liabilities as current assets and current liabilities. The effects of
these adjustments have not been reflected in these consolidated financial

statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared by the directors of
the Company on a going concern basis. In view of the extent of the material
uncertainties relating to the results of those measures to be undertaken
by the Group which might cast a significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, we are unable to obtain sufficient audit
evidence about the appropriateness of the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis due to uncertainties described
above and to form an opinion as to whether it is appropriate for the

preparation of the consolidated financial statement on a going concern basis.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
. . s L . .

responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,

disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the

going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to

liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative

but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s

financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

B ZHEMR S @

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the HKICPA and to issue an auditor’s report that include our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong
Kong companies ordinance. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability for any other person for the contents of this report. However,
because of the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion
section of our report, we were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated

financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our

other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

REPORT ON OTHER MATTERS UNDER
SECTIONS 407(2) AND 407(3) OF THE
COMPANIES ORDINANCE

In respect alone of the inability to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence about the going concern as described in the Basis for Disclaimer of

Opinion section of our report above:

*  we were unable to determine whether adequate accounting records had

been kept; and

. we have not obtained all the information or explanations that, to the
best of our knowledge and belief, are necessary and material for the

purpose of the audit.

CCTH CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Shek Man Hei Kimmy

Practising Certificate Number P07274

Hong Kong, 27 June 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

roEmkEMEERT@R

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #( £

—

. = |

PiE=H =F—=Hi E&E

2024 2023
Notes HK$’0(£) HK$’O()i)
B & T TF#on
Revenue Wz 5 183,461 -
Cost of sales B 5 AR (136,138) =
Gross profit EF 47,323 =
Other gains HoAth Yo % 6 73 12,641
Other income HoAt e A - 417
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries H B B B N F) 2 s 4R 29(c) (100,852) -
Loss on disposal of investment properties & £ &Y 2 518 15 = (745,884)
Reversal of impairment loss/(impairment loss) Y R E R
on properties under development ({Jﬁfﬁlﬁ:ﬂﬁ) 2,168 (286,782)
Impairment loss on property, plant and Y2~ WS Be st 2 IR
equipment JE 48 - (110,064)
Loss on written off of other receivables, it B L Ath 1 R RR
prepayments and deposits TEAS FRIE e ¥ 48 2 548 = (22,8106)
Staff costs & B A 7 (5,075) (5,943)
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment )3 ~ W5 S % 4§ 8 14 (1,679) (4,401)
Selling and distribution express B 5 B 5y B B 3¢ (2,200) -
Other operating expenses Hoh &2 A =2 (8,258) (19,418)
Operating loss BEEHE (68,500) (1,182,250)
Finance income AU 8 127 11
Finance costs W5 R A 8 (47,389) (94,294)
Finance costs, net MeswoAmsE (_4_7_,2_6_2_)__ o £9_4_,2_8_3_) B
Loss before income tax B i 45 852 i s 46 9 (115,762) (1,276,533)
Income tax (expense)/credit Frfg M (B A 10 (11,438) 206,531
Loss for the year N ____(127,200)  (1,070,002)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) HAbZmiis (&) :
Ttems that may be subsequently reclassified to  HIBPIREE M N HEHE Z
profit or loss: JHH :
Currency translation differences B E A (35,940) (98,162)
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal of A H B I B N ] 1& R bR
subsidiaries [ 52 15 15 29(c) 119,955 -
Total other comprehensive income/(loss) SEP A 2 B O $R)
for the year g 84,015  (98,162)
Total comprehensive loss for the year AE P9 4 T s PH AR (43,185) (1,168,164)
Loss attributable to: LU 4% 75 A s e -
Owners of the Company KAFA N (126,785) (1,069,359)
Non-controlling interests IEPE A AR (415) (643)
(127,200) (1,070,002)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to: uf%ﬁﬁﬂi%ﬁi
Jes 5 4
Owners of the Company VN/NEIE: ZEDN (43,581) (1,167,427)
Non-controlling interests JE P I HE 2 396 (737)
(43,185) (1,168,164)
Basic and diluted losses per share *’L}ﬁ”ﬁﬁ)\ﬁ;fﬁﬂilﬁﬁﬂg
attributable to owners of the Company FEA B Bk s 41
for the year (expressed in HK cent (LA R Al 522 51)
per share) 11 (3.59 HK cents #fil)  (30.54 HK cents 11l

SRR A £ L 43)
2023/2024 f?gﬁ 1 O 9



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

EEMBIRAR

Asar 31 March 2024 J? & ~PIFE=H =+—H

2024 2023
SEOPYEE B =
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt & T T#IT
Assets 1.3
Non-current assets i Eh & e
Property, plant and equipment Y2E ~ g s B s A 14 152,171 168,533
Investment properties BEYHE 15 - -
Deposits Y4 19 435 349
152,606 __1_6_8_,%8_2__
Current assets i W 4 e
Trade receivables JE U 5 BE 2K 20 = 14,650
Inventories 75 21 108,205 —
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits HL Al 8 WSRR T > FEAN R OE
¥ 19 274,035 718,863
Properties under development for sale REREGYE 17 724,096 749,852
Restricted bank balances 2 BRI A FH R 47 45 B 22 1,626 1,779
Cash and cash equivalents He RHSEEY 22 177,587 2,481
1,285,549 1,487,625 _
Total assets oA A | _114_3_8_,1_5_5 ______ 1_,6_5_6_, 20_7_ B
Liabilities i
Current liabilities i ) £ A
Trade payables JEE AT B 5 BR K 23 = 2,000
Other payables and accruals FL Al 8 A K T e R £ 1 23 494,879 611,842
Borrowings (= 25 808,726 861,362
Lease liabilities HEAf 16 1,649 2,920
Income tax payable JEAS P15 11,252 4,095
_1316,506 1,482,219
Net current (liabilities)/assets W () E T (30,957) 5,406
Total assets less current liabilities 2 P D) £ i 121,649 174,288
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Consolida

Ik i Bh £108%

Non-current liabilities

Lease liabilities HEAE 16
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFT SR A 24
Net assets FERE 163,518
Equity HERE
Capital and reserves A B il i
Share capital HE A 26 1,998,309
Other reserves H A 7% 14 27 (1,833,530)

164,779
(1,261)

Equity attributable to owners of the Company A8 23 i) B N JE G 28
Non-controlling interests PR RE 2R

Total equity e 28 163,518

The financial statements on page 109 to 207 were approved by the Board of 109207 H 2 MBS R IR —F U4 R

Directors on 27 June 2024 and were signed on its behalf: HottHEESREGHE WHMLFAL
REEHEGHE
Mzr. Wei Zhenming Mzr. Chan Yuk Charm
B gk B it ek
Chairman Executive Director

EY HITEF




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEmEHR
For the year ended 31 March 2024 #{F — & —J11F — H —+—H IL FF /&

Attributable to owners of the Company

AR NER
Financial
assets at Non-
Share Capital Exchange FVOCI  Shareoption  Accumulated controlling Total
Capital reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
R
at A S
R i
[:23 BRR BESRGOG el 7 o kb Rahkit B RN HE A
(Note 26) (Note 27) (Note 27) (Note 27) (Note 27)
(Htik26) (Hik27) (Htik27) (Whk27) (Htik27)
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
T T T T Tl T Tl T T
Balance at 1 April 2023 JREETEAENA - H 2 &R 1,998,309 7,915 (93,914) = - (L747,331) 164,779 (1,261) 163,518
Comprehensive income loss: B .
~ Loss for the year —EREH - - - - - (126,785) (126,785) (415) (127,200)
Other comprehensive loss: Tl 2k
- Currency translation differences — R - - (36,751) - - - (36,751) 811 (35,940)
- Release of reserve upon disposal of TR &I E A%
subsidiarics iR i - - 119,955 - - - 119,955 - 119,955
Total comprehensive loss ETL gt = = 83,204 = = (126,785) (43,581) 396 (43,185)
- Disposal of subsidiaries — I A
(Note 29()) (Hik29(0) - - - - - - - 865 865
Balance at 31 March 2024 REBMEZA =R
b2 13 1,998,309 7915 (10,710) - - (1,874316) 121,198 - 121,198
Balance at 1 April 2022 JRZFE AN A~ P 25 1,979,067 7915 4154 (2,700) 6,008 (681,480) 1,312,964 (524) 1,312,440
Comprehensive income loss: B .
- Loss for the year ~IE R - - - - - (1,069,359) (1,069,359) (643) (1,070,002)
Other comprehensive loss: T2k
- Currency translation differences —RBIEEE - - (98,008) - - - (98,008) 94) (98,162)
Total comprehensive loss R A - - (98,068) - - (1069.359)  (1,167.427) (737)  (1,168,164)
~ Release of reserve upon disposal —Ti i M R G O - - - 2,700 - (2,700) - - -
- Issue of shares by exercise of — BT LN b
share options BiTmh 19,242 - - - (6,008) 6,008 19,042 - 19,242
Balance at 31 March 2023 REEZZHZAESH
itk 1,998,309 7915 (93,914) - - (1,747,531) 164,779 (1,261) 163,518

Crown International Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2023/2024

112



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
EeHEEmRER
For the year ended 31 March 2024 A2 = B PUE— H =Sk s

2024 2023
EPULE T —
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 52 T TH#IT
Cash flows from operating activities KEEH 2B H R
Loss before income tax % Pt 15 62 71 )5 (115,762) (1,276,533)
Adjustments for: PAEIEH -
Finance costs (other than interest on MBRA FHE AR
lease liabilities) KR4 8 47,238 93,862
Interest on lease liabilities HE A EMR 8 151 432
Finance income MBI A 8 (127) (11)
Depreciation on property, Y2~ B T s AT B
plant and equipment 14 1,679 4,401
Gain on early termination of lease PRAT A IS 2 S 6 (73) (7,995)
Waive of other payables i 5 At R A K 0 6 - (4,646)
Loss on disposal of investment properties HEREYE 2 EHE 15 = 745,884
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEINE AR Z k8 29(c) 100,852 -
(Reversal of impairment loss)/impairment loss BREAYE GER 18
on properties under development ) RAE S 18 17 (2,168) 286,782
Impairment loss on property, plant and Y ~ i s B i M 2 TR AEL
equipment & 5 14 = 110,064
Loss on written off of other receivables, i B JEL A SRR T~ FEAS
prepayments and deposits K IE B A7 8 2 R = 22,816
Changes in working capital BEE ST
Trade receivables JiEE Wi 5 AR K 14,650 -
Other receivables, prepayments and L Al 0 K T
deposits TR RIE R % 314,312 (297,377)
Trade payables JEAT B 5 Wk (2,000) -
Other payables and accruals S At AN K IE B
JE st £ (88,093) 51,731
Net cash generated from/(used in) operations KEmE/ (Tl 2
Bl A 270,659 (270,590)
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating £ E KBS (i) Z
activities BeFw 270,659  (270,590)
Cash flows from investing activities BE WG 2 Bl EHiw
Proceeds on disposal of investment B E Y EM 1S3 E
properties - 242,464
Withdrawal of restricted bank balances FEHUSZ BRI FH BRAT 4 B 63 4,944
Interest received EF R 127 11
Net cash outflow on disposal of subsidiaries HERBAFZ
B U A 29(c) (32,395) -
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing BEWm () sz
activities Blam (32,205) 247,419

SRR A £ L 43)
2023/2024 f?gﬁ 1 1 3



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

nir\ iﬁ@ MLEE %% (#&)

Fortbeyearended3]March2024%fi#?gﬂﬁfgﬁ =f+—HILFEE

2024 2023
SEOPSE B
Notes HKS$’000 HK$'000
L Tilsi Tl
Cash flows from financing activities R TR B 2 B i ik 29(b)
Drawdown of borrowings HEUEE 57,500 28,972
Repayment of borrowings BREE (114,048) -
Interest paid e AR (125) -
Repayment of interest portion of BEMHE A E R R
lease liabilities (151) (432)
Repayment of principal portion of BEMHEAEZ AR
lease liabilities (2,156) (3,410)
Net cash generated (used in)/from RIE WS (D i 2
financing activities g (58,9800 25,130
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents BERBEFED 28
e 179,474 1,959
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FRAEH]Z Bl<d e Bl FHE P 2,481 714
Exchange gain on cash and cash equivalents Bl R BB FEEHY 2
W 52 ik A1) (4,368) (192)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year RAIER Z Bl R B & EFHEY 22 177,587 2,481

Crown International Corporation Limited
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GENERAL INFORMATION

The principal activities of Crown International Corporation Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together with the Company are
collectively referred to as the “Group”) are (i) property investment,
(ii) property development, (iii) hotel operations, (iv) trading and
developing of premium white spirit and (v) provision of comprehensive
healthcare planning and management services, whilst those of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 18 to the consolidated

financial statements.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong
Kong. The address of its registered office is Room 2707, 27th Floor,
China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

which is also its principal place of business.

The Company has its shares traded on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. As at 31 March 2024, the Directors
consider the ultimate holding company to be H [ 4%l i & 45 L A
FR 23 A, incorporated in the People's Republic of China ("PRC").

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong

Dollar (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The material accounting policy information applied in the preparation

of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These

policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless

otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

116

These consolidated financial statements of Crown International
Corporation Limited have been prepared in accordance with
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “HKFRSs”) and the provisions
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance which concern the
preparation of financial statements. In addition, the financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. The consolidated financial statements have

been prepared under the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the

consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a)

Going concern basis

For the year ended 31 March 2024, the group recorded a
net loss of approximately HK$127,200,000. As at 31 March
2024, the Group’s financial obligations approximately
HK$1,316,506,000, which are due for repayment within
the next twelve months. Among these obligations,
approximately HK$808,726,000 bank borrowings are
repayable on demand as the Group had failed to make
certain instalments of principal and interest when they
became due and these amounts remained unsettled up to the
date of approval of these consolidated financial statements,
while the Group’s available cash and cash equivalents

amount to approximately HK$177,587,000.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) Going concern basis (Continued)

The directors of the Company have been undertaking
a number of measures to improve the Group’s liquidity
and financial position, and to remedy certain delayed
repayments to financial institutions and the constructors.
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis, the validity of which depends on

the outcome of the following measures:

(i) The Group has been communicating with the bank
to remedy the late repayment issue and to restructure
the payments terms for the remaining amount of the
loan. Given the loan is secured by the Weihai Runhe
construction-in-progress (“Weihai Project”), on 28
March 2024, the bank has agreed to allow the Group
to repay the outstanding amounts using the proceeds
from the pre-sales of the Weihai Project within three
years. Based on current progress of the WeiHai Project,
the directors of the Company are expected the pre-sales

will be processed by 2025.

Crown International Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2023/2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

2.1 i BAEHE (4)
(a) FFETESEFILHE (4F)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) Going concern basis (Continued)

(ii) the successful negotiations with the property
constructors for the renewal or extension of repayment
for those construction payables that are already

overdue;

(iii) the successful obtaining of additional new source of

finance as and when needed; and

(iv) to diversify and expand into other profitable business

ventures beyond property development.

These events and conditions indicate the existence of
material uncertainties which may cast significant doubt

about the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Should the Group fail to achieve the abovementioned plans
and measures, it may not be able to continue to operate as a
going concern, and adjustments would have to be made to
write down the carrying values of the Group’s assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities
which might arise and to reclassify non-current assets
and non-current liabilities as current assets and current
liabilities. The effects of these adjustments have not been

reflected in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(b) Effect of adopting new standard and amendments to
existing standards

The following new standard and amendments to existing
standards are mandatory for the Group’s financial year

beginning on or after 1 April 2023:

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
has issued a number of amended HKFRSs that are first

effective for the current accounting period of the Group:

HKERS 17 Insurance Contracts

HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Statements 2 (Amendments)

HKAS 8 (Amendments) Definition of Accounting Estimates

HKAS 12 (Amendments) Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities

arising from a Single Transaction

HKAS 12 (Amendments) International Tax Return-Pillar Tvo Model Rules

Excepted as described below, none of these amended
HKFRSs has a material impact on the Group’s results and
financial position for the current or prior period. The Group
has not early applied any new or amended HKFRSs that is

not yet effective for the current accounting period.

Crown International Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2023/2024
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 2
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

2.1 i BAEHE (4)
FRA T PERY ]2 BE 7 7 7T

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) Effect of adopting new standard and amendments to (b)

existing standards (Continued)

Impact on application of Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 — Disclosure of Accounting

Policies

The amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice

Z i E (4D

JBE I 7 & w5 15% e
7 S 5 S A M
FRZAEET — G wBOR I &
M

7 & wh A RIS 9 e B

Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements provide 75 30 45 e I B S 4R 5 40
guidance and examples to help entities apply materiality WE P H B B T S 3T A
judgements to accounting policy disclosures. The T e REN BN E

amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy
disclosures that are more useful by replacing the requirement
for entities to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies
with a requirement to disclose their ‘material’ accounting
policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the
concept of materiality in making decisions about accounting

policy disclosures.

The application of the amendments has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial performance and positions,

but has affected the disclosures of accounting policies.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) Effect of adopting new standard and amendments to

existing standards (Continued)

Impact on application of Amendments to HKAS 12 —
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a

Single Transaction

The amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the
initial recognition exemption of deferred tax liabilities and
deferred tax assets so that it no longer applies to transactions
that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable
and deductible temporary differences, such as leases and
decommissioning liabilities. Therefore, entities are required
to recognise a deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient
taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax liability for
temporary differences arising from these transactions. The
amendments shall be applied to transactions related to leases
and decommissioning obligations at the beginning of the
earliest comparative period presented, with any cumulative
effect recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance
of retained profits at that date. For all other transactions,
the amendments are applied to those transactions that occur
after the beginning of the earliest period presented. The
amendments had no material impact on the consolidated

financial statements of the Group.

Crown International Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2023/2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 2 O MBI 2 g L e
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL Be K &7 5HBOR & B @
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 HBIILHE (49)
(c) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not () ERaflifigRAERZ &~
yet effective FENE G B I B R 75
The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to LU AT Ak B A 65 [ 1Y & 51X
the Group’s accounting policies and consolidated financial TR e & W 155 e 2R M B 1
statements, have been issued, but are not yet effective and F1 G TT H W B s
have not been early adopted by the Group. The Group’s HIJ T 28 A AE P R A2 3% B
current intention is to apply these changes on the date they £ (8300 R P2 B R A0 o AR
become effective. H it A B E A H #
JiEE Y 5% S S ) o
HKEFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an BEMHRGEAE BEEAHLRE
(Amendments) Investor and its Associate or Joint venture® 0ERAEEGEE  RERAEE
HIE285% 2 53T EZ MM E
HERRA
HKEFRS 16 (Amendments) Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback' B BmEEl  ERHEHE
H16H 2 ERT af
HKAS 1 (Amendments) Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non- BEasHEAEE KA AR
current and related amendments to Hong 2Bl LRI )e
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)" Bk RRsw
(ZBZZH)
ZHEET
HKAS 1 (Amendments) Non-current Liabilities with Covenants' BEasHEAEE AN IR
BT BaE
HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements! Bt iE 7% MERmZ e
(Amendments) T 1 S o
HIZE74% 2 BT
HKAS 21 (Amendments) Lack of Exchangeability* Bl gaHEAES Bz
2R

TR EINgE A —H®R

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2024 Z 1R B A 4 TR AR 3L
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January ? MRoEHFE—H—HEK
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective (Continued)

The directors of the company anticipate that the application
of all other amendments to HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the

foreseeable future.

2.2 Subsidiaries

124

2.2.1Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the

date that control ceases.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-
controlling interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are measured at either fair value or the present
ownership interests’ proportionate share in the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured at
their acquisition date fair value, unless another measurement

basis is required by HKFRSs.

Crown International Corporation Limited
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 2
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

2.3 Jod oL A5

2.3 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on

the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the

investees net assets including goodwill.

2.4 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive directors that

makes strategic decisions.

TP B B8 2 ] 2 50 B 4% RS AT BRI
AR o IRA WIS & 2 BB
i AR o S i B 28 W) 2 S AR
AGIEARUI Y L ol 3 SUN

fied 172 B 8 2 W) $0  H E TE  E
IR s S5 391 1 B B8 2 ) 2 2 i M 2
RERE > R A % A% R B N S
P Wi T {ELIE 48 4 1% & T 2 T
HE (W8 A& M Bk
P I T R 2R W A R I
SF B8 2 A4 R 1 RUAE A o

S BB

=R SR GRS 331 825 UN
TRAE R S R AT R — Bz
77 N B e £ 5 5y Bl & PR R AT A
BE MR EERERRA
e RIS PE O 2 T S -

SRR A £ L 43)
2023/2024 f?gﬁ 1 2 5



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

4= AN
w7 3

BRI @

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation

126

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial

statements are presented in HKS$, which is the Company’s

functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation where item are re-
measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, except

when deferred in other comprehensive income as qualifying

cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

()

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group’s entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation

currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented
are translated at the closing rate at the date of that

balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the rate at the

dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting currency translation differences are

recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of any net investment in foreign entities, and
of borrowings and other financial instruments designated
as hedges of such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is sold
or any borrowings forming part of the net investment are
repaid, the associated exchange differences are reclassified to

profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss on sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

‘e TSR R M EE @

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to

the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income during the

period in which they are incurred.

Property, furniture and equipment (other than construction
in progress) are depreciated so as to write off their cost net
of expected residual value over their estimated useful lives
on a straight-line basis. The useful lives, residual value and
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at

the end of each reporting period. The useful lives are as follows:

Furniture and fixtures 3 to 5 years

Computer, office equipment 3 to 5 years

and machinery

Motor vehicles 5 years
Other properties leased The shorter of asset’s expected
for own use useful lives and lease terms
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1 2 8 Annual Report 2023/2024

2

o oy S % & A AL
Be ¥R € atBOR &t o

2.6 V3 ~ W5 Bt i

P 3~ W55 B i R 4% FEE B R IR
Rt 8 s R EHRE RS o
JEE SR A B 455 W B A o JE H L %
JEE A B 52

AR pA 5 R al AE A BLA B E H
FH R 2 H 72 48 75 P 2 5 I A A B2
» HaZ I H 2 A BE Al 5% 4 it
S E R N - R R
R EE (B M) o f A H At
HEEAE e O 2 RO TR B AR 2 S PRI AE
AR A GE RN ATER o

Y3~ AR e e i (FE 7 TR BR
A8 T A wt AT E AT AR I DL E
ARTE B A CHT R FRUUT R0 2 16
{6) T LAHT 8 o W]l AT 4R 390 ~ /B
{ELE b 37 B TR IR A 5 SR 37
DU T he i 8 (fisi 8 1) o al {5 A
T

KM E =FEAAF
W MAE =ZFHE
i B b A
A HAE
TEE MR AL & 2 T
HEE F R MHE
IR
e



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

eI RMEE @

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 2 O MBI 2 g L e
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL Be K &7 5HBOR & B @
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 2.6 V12~ W7 B ik i (b
Leasechold improvements are capitalised and depreciated over the M RAE TS T DAUE AL M 42 15 55
shorter of their expected useful lives to the Group and the related R A 5 1 2 FE AT A A 4R T B AE
lease. B E R E 2B EE B

EE o
Construction in progress is stated at cost less impairment 5 E T2 DA B AS 1 B3R 6k 18 s 18
losses. Cost comprises direct costs of construction as well as HI B o A B0 B R SRR AR K
borrowing costs capitalised during the periods of construction B R, BRI & AR 2 i E R
and installation. Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the Ao BHEER AR EHRMFR
construction in progress is transferred to the appropriate class B TAF KRB SE IR % RO
of property, plant and equipment when substantially all the fEfE L& AL mi e T a
activities necessary to prepare the assets for their intended use BEYE -~ W Bk 2 R
are completed. No depreciation is provided for in respect of A o TR TE B A2 58 1l n] H E H
construction in progress until it is completed and ready for its feE ARG AEHE e o
intended use.
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its i — TE & 7 2 MR T E & R A
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than AT Wi [ < %8 - BRI IRF Al Ok 5% &
its estimated recoverable amount. Z HRTHI{E 22 H AT W o] <5 5 o
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing Y R e T 2 A L s T S K T B
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within HR T E 2 72 BN R E 0 MR AR A
“other gains/(losses), net” in the consolidated statement of ZEHWEERZ THALREE (B8
comprehensive income. T RE ) P il 0 o

SRR A £ L 43)
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(Continued)

2.7 Investment properties

130

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold land
and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group. It
also includes properties that are being constructed or developed

for future use as investment properties.

Investment property is initially measured at cost, including
related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs.
After initial recognition, investment properties are carried at fair
value, representing open market value determined at each of the
end of reporting period by external valuers. Fair value is based
on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference
in the nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If the
information is not available, the Group uses alternative valuation
methods such as recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. Changes in fair values are recorded in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

eI RMEE @

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 2 O MBI 2 g L e
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL Be K &7 5HBOR & B @
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)
2.8 Impairment of non-financial assets 2.8 JE 8 & i AR
Assets that are subject to depreciation or amortisation are SR B B B 2 R B A
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in Bl B B B AL R IR T E AT
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be AE JIE 125 WAL I TF 248 AT Dk 6 A 3t o AR
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount 55 8 ik & B T R 208 AT ik [
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable B B 2 <b R I R UL o AT I
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair 0] <5 4 2 B 2 O A IS 6 R
value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of AREEHEERER 2R &EE -
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for MG BEN S EE g g
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating N7 A B A I R 2 R g (B
units). Non-financial assets which are largely independent of the B EAL) 5 o JE B R E
cash flows from other assets or groups of assets that suffered an CK Y 38 SR Ak B H il 5 2 5k
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment B A I B B B TR R 405 2
at each reporting date. B &R &S H R S E AT
75 18] £ o
2.9 Leasing 2.9 HH
(i) As a lessee G) TERARIA
All leases are required to be capitalised in the statement of Fir A L& ZH IR Bk R E
financial position as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, AlbAMEHEEEREEA
but accounting policy choices exist for an entity to choose oo M 2% R R L & B
not to capitalise (i) leases which are short-term leases and/or R EEARAKGOE N
(ii) leases for which the underlying asset is of low-value. The JUIFH B R FH B R B (i) A A
Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and HEARENHEETER
lease liabilities for low-value assets and leases for which at b o A4 18 23 4 AR M
the commencement date have a lease term of 12 months or HE DU OR B8 H B BIAR
less and do not contain purchase option. The lease payments 2 A HAS S
associated with those leases have been expensed on straight- 15 R ) L e P R
line basis over the lease term. K EAME BB EHEMH

I ) R B A5 K 2R AH B 9 4
HARE S

SRR TR )
2023/2024 i?gﬁ 1 3 1
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(Continued)

132

2.9 Leasing (Continued)

@)

As a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost and
would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial measurement
of the lease liability (see below for the accounting policy to
account for lease liability); (ii) any lease payments made at
or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives
received; (iii) any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee
and (iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee
in dismantling and removing the underlying asset to the
condition required by the terms and conditions of the
lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.
Except for right-of-use asset that meets the definition of
an investment property, the Group measures the right-of-
use assets applying a cost model. Under the cost model,
the Group measures the right-to-use at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liability. For right-
of-use asset that meets the definition of an investment

property, they are carried at fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

2.9 Leasing (Continued)

@)

As a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use asset (Continued)

The Group accounts for leasehold land and buildings that
are held for rental or capital appreciation purpose under
HKAS 40 and are carried at fair value. The Group accounts
for leasehold land and buildings which is held for own use
under HKAS 16 and are carried at depreciated cost. Other
than the above right-of-use assets, the Group also has leased
a number of properties under tenancy agreements which
the Group exercises it judgement and determines that it is
a separate class of asset apart from the leasehold land and
buildings which is held for own use. As a result, the right-
of-use asset arising from the properties under tenancy

agreements are carried at depreciated cost.

Right-of-use assets related to leasehold interests where
the interest in the land is held as inventories of properties
are included in the same line item as properties under

development for sale as that within the corresponding assets.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group uses the lessee’s incremental

borrowing rate.
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2.9 Leasing (Continued)

@)

As a lessee (Continued)

Lease liability (Continued)

The following payments for the right-to-use of the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid at
the commencement date of the lease are considered to be
lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease incentives
receivable: (ii) variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as
at commencement date; (iii) amounts expected to be payable
by the lessee under residual value guarantees; (iv) the
exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise that option; and (v) payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee

exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group measures
the lease liability by: (i) increasing the carrying amount
to reflect interest on the lease liability; (ii) reducing the
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made;
and (iii) remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any
reassessment or lease modifications, e.g., a change in future
lease payments arising from change in an index or rate, a
change in the lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed
lease payments or a change in assessment to purchase the

underlying asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 2
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

2.9 HE &)

2.9 Leasing (Continued)

(ii) Accounting as a lessor

The Group has leased out its investment property to a
number of tenants. Rental income from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an

expense on the straight-line basis over the lease term.

2.10Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the first-in, first-
out method. Net realisable value of inventories represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the

sale.

2.11Properties under development for sale

Properties under development for sale are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Development cost of properties
comprises cost of land use rights, construction costs and
borrowing costs incurred during the construction period. Upon

completion, the properties are transferred to completed properties

held for sale.

Net realisable value takes into account the price ultimately
expected to be realised, less applicable selling expenses and the

anticipated costs of completion.

Properties under development for sale are classified as current
assets unless the construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to complete beyond normal

operating cycle.
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(Continued)

136

2.12Financial Instruments

@)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a
significant financing component) is initially measured at
fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A
trade receivable without a significant financing component

is initially measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by

regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirely when determining whether their cash flows are

solely payment of principal and interest.
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ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

212 R T H &)
EHE A (4)

2.12Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)  Financial assets (Continued) (i)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on
the Group’s business model for managing the asset and the
cash flow characteristics of the asset. Assets that are held
for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Financial assets at amortised
cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest
method. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or

loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not
held for trading, the Group could irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value
in other comprehensive income. This election is made on
an investment-by-investment basis. Equity investments at
FVOCI are measured at fair value. Dividend income are
recognised in profit or loss unless the dividend income
clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the
investments. Other net gains and losses are recognised in
other comprehensive income and are not reclassified to
profit or loss. All other equity instruments are classified
as FVTPL, whereby changes in fair value, dividends and

interest income are recognised in profit or loss.
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(Continued)

2.12Financial Instruments (Continued)

138

(i) Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
loss (“ECLs”) on trade receivables and other financial assets
measured at amortised cost. The ECLs are measured on
either of the following bases: (1) 12 months ECLs: these
are the ECLs that result from possible default events within
the 12 months after the reporting date; and (2) lifetime
ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument.
The maximum period considered when estimating ECL is
the maximum contractual period over which the Group is

exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted
at an approximation to the assets original effective interest

rate.

Crown International Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2023/2024

2

o oy S % & A AL
Be ¥R € atBOR &t o

212 R T H )
(i) EREE ()

B E 2 DA S R

A 55 B 0 R B R~ H
18 95 A B i 2 HoAth B Rl
2 2 TR A B e 48 i 5 i 1R
o G E R R LR
Hrp—IHE®REFE ()12
HEMREEREE (&R RS
H & 1208 A AT AE 35 42 1Y
EREFERNTEGEE R
#) ; Q)2 HE TG s HE
(B THHEFFEHA
fli B nlRE R AL B A F IR
AN TEIAE BREHR) o iR d 5
TEIS 63 05 15 095 AT % B8 Y i
1 1 ) 2 A 65 T80 T B A R
R B R A A9 o

TEIE B 18 2 (5 B HH
R G Et - (E R E TS
RSP EMNARH 5
R BB I B R B A B T
At WCH <z B < i R AR 2
WEkE - AR I E
FE J5 A B R 3 A 2 1 ) %
H 3



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

eI RMEE @

G WA s R e 2 A T L e
B Hi K & 5HBOR & B @

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 2
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

212 R T H &)

2.12Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i) Financial assets (Continued) (i) EBHEE &)
Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued) S E 2 WAHEHE (8
The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables N £ 18 o FH 7 o S o

using HKFRS 9 simplified approach and has calculated
ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. For trade receivables that
are not assessed for ECLs individually, the Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic

environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based on
the 12-months ECLs. However, when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since origination, the

allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECL, the Group considers reasonable
and supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information analysis, based
on the Group’s historical experience and informed credit

assessment and including forward-looking information.
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2.12Financial Instruments (Continued)

140

(i) Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset
has increased significantly if it is more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable

information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-impaired
when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or
(2) the financial asset is more than 90 days past due, unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more

appropriate.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.

Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset.
For non credit-impaired financial assets, interest income is

calculated based on the gross carrying amount.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 2
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

212 R T H &)
(i) R G

2.12Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii) Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending on
the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred. Financial
liabilities at FVTPL are initially measured at fair value and
financial liabilities at amortised costs are initially measured

at fair value, net of directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
and other payables, borrowings, and lease liabilities, are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. The related interest expense is recognised
in accordance with the accounting policies set out in Note

2.17.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the

amortisation process.

(iii) Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments
through the expected life of the financial asset or liability, or

where appropriate, a shorter period.

(iii)
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STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
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(Continued)

142

2.12Financial Instruments (Continued)

(iv) Equity instruments

)

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at

the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation to
the financial asset expire or when the financial asset has
been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for

derecognition in accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or

expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments to a
creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or in part
as a result of renegotiating the terms of that liability, the
equity instruments issued are the consideration paid and are
recognised initially and measured at their fair value on the
date the financial liability or part thereof is extinguished.
If the fair value of the equity instruments issued cannot be
reliably measured, the equity instruments are measured to
reflect the fair value of the financial liability extinguished.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability or part thereof extinguished and the consideration

paid is recognised in profit or loss for the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 2 O MBI 2 g L e
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STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)
2.13Cash and cash equivalents 213 Bl BBl & FHY
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash MGEAHESERERNS  HEK
equivalents includes cash in hand and deposits held at call with B A EY) B4 T s B R AT
banks. WHNE R
2.14Current and deferred income tax 2.14 BPI9I By ¥ St i 19 52
The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. AR A JE 2 6 TE A S R4S BV B iR
Tax is recognised in the consolidated profit or loss, except to the WEFRIE o FRIE G & HH A8 PRl
extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive P BT Al 4 TR K A B R A
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised N il 58 2 TH B A B & BR A o 18
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively. BEE PR MIE TR o3 AR EAth 4
T A2 2 B TP 2 P T 0
(a) Current income tax (a) BB ee
The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis FIVHH A 1500 St T AR R AR
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the ) B HC BB A A AR B R EE A
reporting date in the countries where the Company and JEE SRR A Z B A i H
its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income. Wi M e EE M
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in ik st B o i 8 FH A 75 15
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable ZEe BEFRRR ORI Mg | F
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes HA BT Ad e fR 2 2 ARl o B
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts J&8 i 7 8 IR A5 R TR S A 3
expected to be paid to the tax authorities. BB < SR B -

SRR A £ L 43)
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(Continued)

144

2.14Current and deferred income tax(Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss and does
not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences. Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is

realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment property
that is measured at fair value is determined assuming the

property will be recovered entirely through sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

2.14Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

(©)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those

temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in foreign operations where the
Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the differences

will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity, respectively.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity
or different taxable entities where there is an intention to
settle the balances on a net basis. Current tax assets and tax
liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable
right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or

to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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(Continued)

2.15Provisions

146

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlements is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any

one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-
tax interest rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The
increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as

interest expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 2 O MBI 2 g L e
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL Be K &7 5HBOR & B @
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)
2.16Borrowings 2.16 fif#k
Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction 5 TR 0 HE F N PR G BR A AR Y
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at 22 5 B P a8 o fi K 1% e 1 O
amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of RAGHE - TS K E (IR 5
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in R AR ) Bl B[] <5 E A A AT 72 BE A
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective FH B R 2R 7 A R T B A 4R A
interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities R L e o 1 = A
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that R AT AE 1 42 B 0 Bl N7 Rl I SZ
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. 5 ) R e RR 2 BRI A2 5
In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To o EHBN N 28 HgRITE
the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or BRI Ay 1k o AR A 3B IR
all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a HR 43 Bk 24 5 Fil & KA L 5 € 1R n] RE
prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of PeAR B > R G% & H & & A B E
the facility to which it relates. 2 i B & B IR R TEAY K0 3 %
7 158 14 il 28 0 S0 ) £ 5

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the B A A B AR 5 0 AR B~ B
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled REIH EREEEABERD
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a Wk CHBRECE B RS — 7T
financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to <5 Rl B Y R T (B B A AE Y
another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash R QG E A B A JE B &
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or B B R IE Y B R HH R N
loss as other income or finance costs. o 2y LAt AT A B8 A5 A

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group R JE A 65 1B AT i A0 2 3t s B £ 1Y
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for HREBREEMEMRBR DT
at least 12 months after the reporting period. fld H & A& R 0 8 AR A

feo
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

2.17 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required
to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale.
Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial

period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they

are incurred.

2.18Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in

equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.19Employee benefits

148

(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services

rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are

not recognised until the time of leave.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

2.19Employee benefits (Continued)

(b) Pension obligations

(©

The Group contributes to a mandatory provident fund
scheme (“MPF Scheme”) under the requirements of the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The
assets of the scheme are generally held in separate trustee-
administered funds. Contributions to the MPF Scheme by
the Group and employees are calculated as a percentage of

the employees” basic salaries.

The Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC are members of
the state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated
by the government of the PRC. The retirement scheme
contributions are based on a certain percentage of the

salaries of the subsidiaries’ employees.

The contributions are charged to the consolidated statement

of comprehensive income in the period in which they relate.

Bonus plan

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses,
based on a formula that takes into consideration the
profit attributable to the Company’s owners after certain
adjustments. The Group recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that

has created a constructive obligation.
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(Continued)

2.19Employee benefits (Continued)

(d) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement
date. The Group recognises termination benefits when it is
demonstrably committed to a termination when the entity
has a detailed formal plan to terminate the employment
of current employees without possibility of withdrawal.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of

the reporting period are discounted to their present value.

2.20Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis using the

effective interest method.

2.21 Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised as
income in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the
Group for the cost of an asset are deferred and recognised in

profit or loss over the useful life of the asset.

2.22Revenue recognition

150

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services,

excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
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STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
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(Continued)
2.22Revenue recognition (Continued) 2.22 Wi W BB (81
Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that apply B8 B AR 55 1 4 1l RE Y A — B IR
to the contract, control of the goods or service may be transferred [ B 5 — B ) B RS 0 B R
over time or at a point in time. Control of the goods or service is B K B A58 R B LA 8 5 B T
transferred over time if the Group’s performance: FE o i A £E 18 7 JE 49 8 F2 b A
B REIGEA: 15 B BS I 42
FE TS AE — B [ RS
. provides all of the benefits received and consumed . AL R TR 45 0 i %5 P
simultaneously by the customer; 71 R 25 W B i 35 FE A B A
i ;
. creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the . A 5 [ 8 49 1 Bl e B |
Group performs; or PP E 5 Bl
e does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group o MfifEAEABAHEEABRH
and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for b =9 = N BT ]
performance completed to date. AT HER DRI R G =S
EL 52 S J8 59358 73 O RKE o
If control of the goods or services transfers over time, revenue i B8 it BRI 255 ) 42 1 RE A — B INR
is recognised over the period of the contract by reference to il RS > B 2 & R R & 4
the progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance WM 2% 52 KB 1T B A HAER
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time R - BRI W ERF
when the customer obtains control of the goods or service. 15 55 it B0 IR 765 42 ) R FS) R sl B e
e
When the contract contains a financing component which O BRI ER 4 0 w5 R
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing the SEBBRERSIRETER &
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one % R 3 28 — AR 1) B K A S R
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amounts Tt IRF o WAL B o7 O R 3R 10 B AE 51
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be 150 5 FH B B R AT B sz A B R
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group 1 B WA A 85 8] B 5 AR & 49 B
and the customer at contract inception. Where the contract MR EBYBER ST - EE88
contains a financing component which provides a significant 45 B 5 58 o3 0 5% B R o3 2 AE
financing benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under that A [ 12 it T B ORI A AR I
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract W% e Y TH N R A W A B AR
liability under the effective interest method. For contracts where FEF RIS A AE LB A
the period between the payment and the transfer of the promised JEBA SZ o AN K B AL K G T
goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price is not v B IR 455 2 ] A ST BR — A B LR
adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component, B & &0 22 5 AR A & 5 B K
using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15. S 5 8 43 Y 5 B Il DU T A S
ok W R SR 155k 2 AT AT RE BT A
{F % o

SRR TR )
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

152

2.22Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Sales of properties

Revenue arising from the sale of properties developed for
sale in the ordinary course of business is recognised when
the property is accepted by the customer, or deemed as
accepted according to the contract, whichever is earlier,
which is the point in time when the customer has the ability
to direct the use of the property and obtain substantially
all of the remaining benefits of the property. Deposits and
instalments received on properties sold prior to the date
of revenue recognition were included in the consolidated
statement of financial position under contract liabilities.
Contract liabilities will be accrued on the long-term
advances received based on the length of time between the
customer’s payment and the delivery of property to the

customer and the prevailing interest rates in the market.

Sales of healthcare products

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in
time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer,
generally when the goods are delivered to and have been

accepted.

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 2 O MBI 2 g L e
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL Be K &7 5HBOR & B @
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)
2.22Revenue recognition (Continued) 2.22 W3 i (&%)
() Comprehensive healthcare planning and management (c) ARG PR A
service income
Service income is recognised over time as the counterparties I 75 W A B 5 IR D ) HE #2 i
simultaneously receive and consume benefits when the Tl 3 0[R2 U7 1E A A A 4R
Company performs the management services. 45 B IR 5 15F (] 15 R 8 15
B FEA B 42 F
(d) Sales of premium white spirit (d) HEFELFH
Revenue from sales of premium while spirit is recognised AR H B E 2 IR TR
at the point in time when Group satisfied its performance AEE R PR E N B
obligations upon delivery the goods to the customers. T 49 25 765 B B T SR e 3 o
2.23 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets 2.23 AR B B R PR e
A contingent asset or liability is a possible asset or obligation that RAEERABGERCEEFT
arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed Mol s &k B fE > L5
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more HEEXKAETRE -RHZLEAL
uncertain events not wholly within the control of the Group. e E B S A A RE D
A £ [ 3 A R 58 4 1 1l % S A
[k o
A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the AR B EA G PSR (B E 4
notes to the consolidated financial statements. When a change in o BB i 22 B T N i BR o B A
the probability of an outflow of economic resources occurs so that WE IR 2 o T RE T B E R
the outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision. L B A8 I o R M 2 PTRE R &
il 0 2% 185 1
A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes S 48 A PT AR IR AR 0 BAR
to the consolidated financial statements when an inflow of HEANGHRHER HEEGEW
economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually certain, 5 W AR Bk A e 88 o IR B E
an asset is recognised. SE 18 WAL 1) 48 I ) 2 1F 0 L) o i

SRR A £ L 43)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

2.24Share-based payment

Where equity settled share options are awarded to employees,
the fair value of the options at the date of grant is charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income over the vesting
period. Non-market vesting conditions are taken into account by
adjusting the number of equity instruments expected to vest at
each reporting date so that, ultimately, the cumulative amount
recognised over the vesting period is based on the number of
options that eventually vest. Non-vesting conditions and market
vesting conditions are factored into the fair value of the options
granted. As long as all other vesting conditions are satisfied,
a charge is made irrespective of whether the market vesting
conditions are satisfied. The cumulative expense is not adjusted
for failure to achieve a market vesting condition or where a non-

vesting condition is not satisfied.

2.25Related parties

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related

to the Group if that person:
(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of key management personnel of the

Group or the Company’s parent.

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

2.25Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions apply:

@

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

)

(vi)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and

fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of

a group of which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the

other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group or an entity

related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a).

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

2.25Related parties (Continued)

(b) (Continued)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of key management

personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to

the group or to the group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity

and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(ii) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or

domestic partner.

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

3.2

Categories of financial instruments

=
AR

=ikl e NERC)

3 W05 b P
3.1 il B

2024 2023
HK$’°000 HK$’000
T TH#IT
Financial assets: EREE
Financial assets at amortised cost 22 10k B RS AS 1) R 14 < ik i 216,353 487,912
Financial liabilities: A
Financial liabilities at amortised cost e 48 B9 AR B i ) < R 4 1,151,528 1,299,557
Lease liabilities HE AR 2,100 4,708
1,153,628 1,304,265

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance. The Group has not used

any derivative financial instruments to hedge its risk exposures.

Risk management for the Company and its subsidiaries is
carried out by the Executive Committee which identifies,
evaluates and monitors financial risk in close co-operation with
the Group’s operating units. The Group monitors the financial
risk continuously to minimise the risk, such as credit risk and

liquidity risk.

3.2 U5 D B IRl R

A B35 B #6821 B I 2 5 A B S e
W < 5 B e g B i B < L B o A
B 19 2 R L B R BE ) SRR
S Rl T 45 AN AT T 2 R B oK
R S A B [ B 5 R B A AR 2 TR AE
T R A R R o A B2 [ 3N S
56 P A 7 A < il T R 3 3

[

A8 F) B FL U R 2 ] o e B
HWTZBGAH YITEZES
BRI BEERE S W&
Il ~ A B B 5 SV S e B o A B
R 497 e 2 S 5 B > DA iR % 7l Jel
i B RS 0 B A A R B R T
B & B R o

ELUeE R ER S A B A )
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Financial risk factors (Continued)

158

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables and bank balances. The exposures to these

credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade receivables, the Group reassesses the
lifetime expected credit losses at the end of the reporting
period to ensure the adequate impairment losses are
made for significant increases in the likelihood or risk of
default occurring since initial recognition. In this regard,
management of the Group considers that the Group’s credit

risk is significantly reduced.

In respect of other receivables, the Group closely monitors
the credit performances and prompt repayments from the
counterparties. The Group has policies in place to review
the recoverability of other receivables on an ongoing basis
and assess the adequacy of provision for impairment. During
the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group written off
other receivables of HK$22,816,000, which considered not

collectable.

In respect of bank balances, the Group has diversified its
exposures into different financial institutions. It has policies
in place to assess the credit standing of the counterparties

and financial institutions before the Group invests its assets.

Crown International Corporation Limited
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Notes to the

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
the Group’s available cash and other interest-bearing loans
that the Group considers appropriate. The Group monitors
rolling forecasts of its liquidity reserve which comprises
borrowing facilities and cash and cash equivalents on the

basis of expected cash flow.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the date of the consolidated statement of financial
position to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted
cash flows. Balances due within 12 months approximate
their carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not

significant.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

3 A5 BEAS P

3.2 WA BE IR £ ()

(b) JHBYE TKE ()

Within
1 year or Between Between

on demand 1 and 2 years 2 and 5 years Total
—~EEASRIEER — & LES it
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000
T T T T

As at 31 March 2024 REZEZWE=A =11

Financial liabilities included in other 7 A 34 Ml RE {5305 e ME T

payables and accruals ARz SRALR 342,802 - - 342,802
Borrowings fi8 808,726 - - 808,726
Lease liabilities HEAR 1,708 455 - 2,163
1,153,236 455 - 1,153,691

As at 31 March 2023 REZZZE==1-H
Trade payables JE 5 53 B 2,000 - - 2,000

Financial liabilities included in other 1 A 2L M A 305 e MEGT
payables and accruals Bz EMAR 436,195 - - 436,195
Borrowings fa& 861,362 - - 861,362
Lease liablities HEAMRE 3,080 1,460 382 4922
1,302,637 1,460 382 1,304,479
3.3 Capital risk management 3.3 EA S PE

160

The capital structure of the Group consists of owner’s equity,
which include cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable
to equity holders of the Company which comprises the issued

share capital and accumulates losses.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue to provide returns for shareholders
and to support the Group’s stability and growth. The Group
regularly reviews and manages its capital structure to ensure
optimal capital structure to maintain a balance between higher
shareholders’ returns that might be possible with higher levels of
borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a sound
capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure in

light of changes in economic conditions.

Crown International Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2023/2024

AEEZ ERRBUEHA NE
it et HP Ui E B EE
B LUB AR 2w RE R 5 A N AL
RERS > T AS 2 ) RE 3 15 A N T A
U CRITRA K Rt

e

ARG P AR 2 H KR 2 DR R A
5 M A AE 71 £ BT % B B2 i (]
WX FREAEEZRE KR -
A 5 18 S RS B B L AR
i DU ORISR AR A 00 1
2 v M B[] e () AE fF B e ) A
AOR ) BLER A 2 B AR DL A AR
Z 4T R e O B 2 T AR - 0
T e 45 37 1 00 5 9 1 ) 8 o A 2R
o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Capital risk management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the net debt to total
capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total
capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings less cash and
bank balance. Total capital is calculated as “Equity” as shown in
the consolidated statements of financial position plus net debt.

The gearing ratio as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 are as

3

Y= A
wWR 3 7

Bt 75 R R M 5 @

SO 55 D s 4% B )

3.3 & A b4 B ()

A S AR R T P B K AR
MR EEPEEA o ik LR Ty 1% %
B bR L& A BB G R o A TS
T 2 A6 R W8 R R < B SR AT G R
At o AR MR T 10 AR A B R
LR P BI B TRE 2 ) 0 7 (e 25wt

follows: HoprmZENHE=H=+—H
FZZZZHF-HA=1+—HW#&
EAELERGT
2024 2023
SO F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T Tt
Net debt FEB 629,513 857,102
Total equity %%ﬁ Ha%E 121,198 163,518
Net debt to equity ratio 00 55 BALRE 2 ) L %8 519.4% 524.2%
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4 WA FEHEEE A B
AND JUDGEMENTS
In the process of applying the accounting policies described in Note FHEM E SR sE2 il & 5t BUR 2 i

2 above, the Group has made the following judgments that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements. The key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the financial position
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the Group’s assets and liabilities within the next

financial year are disclosed below.

The carrying values of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities at amortised cost approximate to their fair values due to their
short-term maturities. Their fair value is estimated by discounting the
future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that
is available to the Group for similar financial instruments, unless the

discounting effect is insignificant.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUD GEMENTS (Continued)

(a)

162

Net realisable value of properties under
development for sale and estimated impairment of

construction in progress

In determining whether write-down should be made to the
Group’s properties under development for sale, and hotel under
construction in progress ("Properties") the residual method
was adopted as at 31 March 2024 and 2023. Firstly, the
gross development value was assessed. The gross development
value represents the total capital value assuming the proposed
development is completed at the reporting period at current
market prices. The assessed value of the Properties is the residual
value after deducting the estimated gross development costs
(including construction costs, marketing fees, finance costs and
related costs) to be incurred, as well as the developer's profit and

profit provisions from the gross development value.

In assessing the gross development value, on the basis that the
Properties will be developed and completed in accordance with
the Group’s latest development proposals, the direct comparison
approach was adopted by making reference to comparable
sales evidences which possess the similar characteristics as
available in the relevant market. As at the 31 March 2024,
the gross development value was arrived at approximately
HK$1,783,016,000 (equivalent to RMB1,645,000,000) (2023:
HK$1,876,478,000 (equivalent to RMB1,642,000,000)). The
marketing costs on gross development value, finance costs and
tax fees were taken into account and excluded from the gross

development value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4 R HEGH R RAIB a

AND JUD GEMENTS (Continued)
() FFf B E 2 a5l

(a) Net realisable value of properties under

development for sale and estimated impairment of

construction in progress (Continued)

In assessing the outstanding construction costs, the construction
costs, finance costs and profit on construction costs that will be
expended to complete the developments to reflect the quality
of the completed development were taken into account in the

valuation.

After excluded the assumed developer’s profit on site
value at approximately HK$208,508,000 (equivalent to
RMB192,368,000) (2023: HK$182,686,000 (equivalent to
RMB159,858,000)). As at 31 March 2024, the assessed value
of the properties under development for sale and the hotel
under construction in progress was arrived at approximately
HK$869,280,000 (equivalent to RMB802,000,000) (2023:
HK$914,240,000 (equivalent to RMB800,000,000)), which
thereby arrived by gross development value net of the gross

development costs and the developer's profit.

Accordingly, the Group determined the net realisable value
lower than the carrying amounts of property under development
for sale, reversal of impairment loss of HK$2,168,000 (2023:
impairment loss of HK$286,782,000) was recognised in the
profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2024. For the hotel
under construction in progress, impairment loss of nil (2023:
HK$110,064,000) was recognised in the profit and loss for the
year ended 31 March 2024.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the chief operating decision-maker, namely the executive
directors, for their decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s
business component and for their review of the performance of
that component. The business components in the internal financial
information reported to the executive directors are principally engaged
in property investment, property development, hotel operations,
trading and developing of premium white spirit and provision of

comprehensive healthcare planning and management services.

(a) Analysis of revenue by category

Wed B 5o #iR b

¥ LRI DR S =3 t7A NG
PATEF) W 2 W BS &R =
57 0B b A oy WRE R % S R
S 5 L (BT S AR B I S
AHRRCER 77 2 B U5 B A H PSR lf A
02 55 7 Bl 5% A KR 73 2 AR Bl o 1A BT
R 2 AR B R T R SR
ALRHR o) EE 2 VSRR & VSRR
0% 2 A 1H I S b R e AR
PO R R B AR 75 o

(a) M55 B 2 W di

2024 2023
FE I PYLE B
HK$°000 HK$’000

Tt T

Sales of premium white spirt recognised TR IR T SR e ) 2 8 T 1 T O

at point in time
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Analysis of revenue by category (Continued)

As at 31 March 2024, the aggregated amount of the transaction
price allocated to the remaining performance obligations under
the Group’s existing contracts is HK$141,706,000 (2023:
HK$132,083,000). The amount represented revenue expected to
be recognised in the future from pre-completion sales contracts
for properties under development and provision of comprehensive
healthcare planning and management services. This amount
includes the interest component of pre-completion properties
sales contracts under which the Group obrains significant
financing benefits from the customers. The Group will recognise
the expected revenue in future when or as the work is completed
or, in the case of the properties under development for sales,
when the properties are assigned to the customers which is
expected to occur over the next 12 to 24 months (2023: next 12

to 24 months).

Segment information

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and managed
separately, according to the nature of their operations and the
services they provide. Each of the Group’s business segments
represents a strategic business unit which is subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of other business segments.

Summarised details of the business segments are as follows:

i)  the property investment segment engages in investment of

properties;

5 gk By v E B

(a)

(b)

TN 55 B 2 Wk ()
R-ZE_NE=H=+—H %
MR AREEMBA SR BT
B2 5 (A8 48 %H £5141,706,000
WL (2 =4 1 132,083,000
HIT) o SRR AR R I
BRP Y ENTEE &4 DU B it
K M B R )45 AR A5 o147 i 3R 1 L
N o 5% < BB HE L 52 AT ¥ 3E B
BEHBNFET D i o IR
AEE R S 2 BRI
fho AEEBAERKE LRECETL
R e e A0 TR M 25 0 B IR R
RPN S ALY B
TR PR HEHRAERK T =5
ZAHEA (S REN
B = eEA)) o

57 vk &R

A 2B HEB T RBRER
B8V B P R A AR A 1 4 B 55
BEM REMZEH LA
7y — 8 SR P 2 5 B AT 0 R K
32 JE B e P 45 180 A 1R L Ath 2%
B5 57 BR o 25 47 BB Z wF B ME Al 40
T

>

&
He

% & o1 BB AE F P 3 1%

$

il

v
&

ELUeE R ER S A B A )
2023/2024 4E$

165



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

4= AN
w7 3

BRI @

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued)

166

ii)  the property development segment engages in property
development and sales of properties in Weihai city

(“Weihai”);

iii) the hotel operations segment engages in hotel rental and

food and beverage business in Weihai;

iv) trading and developing of premium white spirit segment

engages in trading and developing of premium white spirit;

v)  the comprehensive healthcare planning and management
services segment engages in the provision of comprehensive
healthcare planning and management services to the

healthcare operators and sales of healthcare products; and

vi) the unallocated segment comprises operations other than
those specified in (i), (ii), (iii), (iv) and (v) above and

includes that of the corporate office.

Capital expenditure comprise additions to property, plant and
equipment. Segment assets consist primarily of inventories,
properties under development for sale, property, plant and
equipment and receivables. Segment liabilities comprise deferred
income tax liabilities, operating liabilities and borrowings.
Unallocated assets and liabilities mainly represent assets and
liabilities used by the corporate office, which cannot be allocated
on a reasonable basis to any segment, which include items such as

cash and cash equivalents.

Crown International Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2023/2024

5 Wedd B i E R @
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i) PRI e oy RN R T (TR
) WY 2838 IR B V) SR 9
CES R

i) 0 B A ) R O
Jik HE R B B BRI A5 5
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5 Witk Be oy i &R )

INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) k&R &)

A E) RS AR o R A (R
KE B H I 8P RAT BURA) WAl
BESHRI - ME T U4E
kB =ZF=H=1t—HIL®F
JEE o g m] ¥ oy BRI oy 2 o3 R O
R WIS s Rk e B
BBV Z B VI3 WS Bk
i B IEs R R [/ (QRAE IS 18D
PE R E R &AW

(b) Segment information (Continued)

The directors of the Company assess the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of segment results, which
represent, operating profit or loss less central administrative
costs. The segment results, depreciation on property, plant and
equipment, loss on disposal of investment properties, reversal
of impairment loss/(impairment loss) on property, plant and
equipment and properties under development for sale and capital
expenditure based on reportable segments for the years ended 31

March 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

N
Comprehensive
Trading and healthcare
developing  planning and
Property Property Hotel of premium  management
investment  development operations white spirit services Unallocated Total
BHAW  KHERRY
L(ESV e ERE  EHRERE AN RaREH it
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
T T T T T T T
For the year ended 31 March 2024 BEZ-NE=A=T-H
JIR:1313
Segment revenue: I -
Revenue from external customers REASME P2 g = = - 183,461 = - 183,461
Segment results SRESt ©2) 1,004 (256) 44,023 (2,635) (110,74) (68,500)
Finance income L1/ UN 127
Finance costs B R (47,389)
Loss before income tax FRA Bl B 45 (115,762)
Income tax expense FIr L 52 (11,438)
Loss for the year FEREH (127,200)
Other segment information el En
Depreciation on property, plant and EY AN
equipment (62) (26) (6) (390) - (1,195) (1,679)
Reversal of impairment loss on properties 14 & ¥ B2
under development for sale HEEHER = 2,168 = = = = 2,168
Additions to RE
- Property, plant and equipment e EL] - - - 885 - - 885
SUEBRER R A PR A ]
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S 252
5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5 Wedad Be o iR E R o
INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) iR E R &)
Comprehensive
Trading and healthcare
developing planning and
Property Property Hotel of premium management
investment development operations white spirit services Unallocated Total
BERE KA
B MERE BERE  HARBRE ERRE  R2EEA st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000

T T T T TH#L T Tt

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BESESESHSH
JIRi5)

Segment revenue: I -
Revenue from external customers REMEF 2 Wi - - - - - - -

Segment results hES (753,005) (288,320) (110,402) - (1,691) (28,832) (1,182,250)
Finance income MBIA 11
Finance costs TR A (94,294)
Loss before income tax PRl s 4 (1,276,533)
Income tax credit Firs i G 206,531
Loss for the year FEREH (1,070,002)
Other segment information Hbrivee
Depreciation on property, plant and VEN e AN
equipment (64) (160) (35) (1,123) - (3,019) (4,401)
Tmpairment loss on property; plancand 13 ~ B B ik fh AL 4R
equipment - - (110,064) - - - (110,064)
Loss on disposal of investment HEREMEZER
properties (745,884) - - - - - (745,884)
Impairment loss on properties under FEE R R 2 W B E
development for sale - (286,782) - - - - (286,782)
Additions to RE
- Property, plant and equipment e N EE - - - - - 2917 2917
1 customer (year ended 31 March 2023: nil) contributed more — AR (BE_Z2_=84#-H
than 10% revenue of the Group. Z=t—HIEFE ) mAEEE
ik i 281 096 W 2
2024 2023
TECYE —EF
HK$’000 HK$°000
T T

Customer A (from trading and developing of % FACGREBHHEE S
premium white spirit segment) B %% R o ) 154,497 N/AAN 6 F*

Crown International Corporation Limited
1 6 8 Annual Report 2023/2024
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5 Witk Be oy i &R )

INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) 77 ERE R ()
RZBIDVER ZEZZH=H
= t—H skl sz
SHREERAMUT

(b) Segment information (Continued)

The segment assets and liabilities based on reportable segments as

at 31 March 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

Comprehensive

Trading and healthcare

developing of  planning and

Property Property Hotel premium management
investment  development operations white spirit services Unallocated Total

BHOW  KHERY
iE ST LIES WhEE  HLRHRRE WOE  AAREH it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
T Ti#n Tt T Ti#n Tt T

At31 March 2024 REEZWEZN =R
Segment assets AR - 920,477 193,502 144,941 - 1,648 1,260,568
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEED - - = 168,647 558 8,382 177,587
Total assets PRI - 920,477 193,502 313,588 558 10,030 1,438,155
Segment liabilities e - 1,053,152 231,180 21,491 - 11,134 1,316,957
Total liabilities e - 1,053,152 231,180 21,491 - 11,134 1,316,957
At31 March 2023 REBEHZAZ-H
Segment assets o b E 209,970 975,449 167,011 297,850 429 3317 1,654,026
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEED 9 - - 1,121 1,349 2 2,481
Total assets BRI 209,979 975,449 167,011 298971 1,778 3319 1,656,507
Segment liabilities RN (126,087) (1,053,011) (231,149) (3,080) (6,852) (72,810) (1,492,989)
Total liabilities AR (126,087) (1,053,011) (231,149) (3,080) (6,852) (72,810) (1,492,989)
S 5ed BRER 1 P 45 B 2z )

2023/2024 4E$
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A @4
5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5 Wi B ot R E R @
INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) iR E R &)
The Group’s businesses operate in Hong Kong the PRC. The zjg/%\.)‘féi:}:%(%%«**%% 215:
Group’s revenue for the years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023 HFERE_ZT NER T =
and non-current assets other than financial instruments as at £ ZH = — H b i #
31 March 2024 and 2023 based on geographical area are as 7 2 W as DB iR =& YA e —
follows: B — H i E
2B EE E Rl T 2 BRAN
ae
2024 2023
B4 —FE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T Tt
Revenue W %k
PRC R 183,461 -
183,461 —
Non-current assets JE i W) & e
Hong Kong B 1,297 2,559
PRC R 150,874 165,974
152,171 168,533
Revenue is categorised based on the jurisdiction in which the W 25 ¥4 %% 5 T A R I AR & HE AT 4y
customers are located. Non-current assets are categorised based on B o JE T B & FE B E AR M
where the assets are located. T He

Crown International Corporation Limited
1 70 Annual Report 2023/2024
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OTHER GAINS

6 itk

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
T Tt

Gain on early termination of lease of FE A HEALE S 2%
other properties leased for own use PeAl & b B > i 73 7,995
Written off of other payables JHLAth S A 7RK VLl 9 = 4,646
73 12,641

STAFF COSTS

The staff costs disclosed below are for all employees and include all

Directors’ emoluments (Note 13(a)).

7 EBRA

T E RS B EHE

EREFZME (FE130) -

2024 2023

“EINgE
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T THT
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits B < e HoA 55 1 0 B 48 A 4,864 5,651
Contributions to defined contribution plans T R R R AL R 211 292
5,075 5,943

All employees of the subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC who
are PRC citizens participate in employee social security plans enacted
in the PRC, including pension, medical and other welfare benefits,
which are organised and administrated by the government authorities.
According to the relevant regulations, the Group contributes on
a monthly basis based on certain percentages of the salaries of the
employees, subject to a certain ceiling, and are paid to the labor and

social welfare authorities. Contributions to the plans are expensed as

incurred.

TEEEH -

ELUeE R ER S A B A )
2023/2024 4E$

A2 ] A ) BRSSP R A R
hEARZEBY 2 ER P BT Z
{5 AL € O Bat st 8 o 5% 55 At #1045 b
UG % B 25 % B 8 B A 2B AR 8 BER
Joe A g A o $22 HECAH R R 51 > A 2 1) 45F
HIRBREH 2 2H THTERS T
B AL & ke AU B 1t Ak (ke A 8 T
BR) o rrEFEE 2 A O I 2R I A
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8 FINANCE COSTS, NET

8 WABE A A

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
T Tt
Interest expense: FIEB -
Interest on entrusted loan ZitBERZF R (47,113) (88,137)
Interest on other loan HAE 3z FE (125) (5,725)
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 16) MHEaEZF R (fitie) (151) (432)
Finance costs W5 R A (47,389) (94,294)
Interest income: FIRUA
Bank interest income AT H B U A 127 11
Finance income WA 127 11
Finance costs, net A B5 IR A 1A (47,262) (94,283)

9 LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX

Loss before income tax for the year is arrived at after charging/

9 BRI 15 B s 10
A 4E B W T 18 LG I RS AT B

(crediting): (FE) TAHISIEBZEEL

2024 2023
“EINE —F
HKS$’000 HK$’000
TiE T
Auditor’s remuneration 12 BBt P < 1,200 1,200
Inventories recognised as expense X2 78] 118,932 -
Government grant of Employment TR S &t # 2 BT i A

Support Scheme* - (194)

*

subsidies.

Crown International Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2023/2024
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There were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these
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10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)

The amount of taxation credited to the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income represents:

Current tax AR IH
PRC R
— Current Year — AR JE
Deferred taxation (Note 24) AL RLIE (Bifst24)
— Origination and reversal — R B 43 1B

(206,531)

(206,531)
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10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (Continued)

The tax on the Group’s loss before income tax differs from the

174

theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate

applicable to the results of the consolidated companies as follows:

10 S BtB 2~ (BEHR) ¢
S O 5 2 6 0 B e
PR A W 7 7] 22 3 502 BT B9 8
e PR A A R

2024 2023
“EONE —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T#IT
Loss before income tax K It 15 562 7t s 42 (115,762) (1,276,533)
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable 23 AT 2% A R4 1 I
to profits in the respective jurisdictions Nl =i TR =
Fi e (19,867) (316,245)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses ANATHOFL BH 5 2 R IE 5 B 30,758 322,531
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue RIS 2 FLIE & (396) (7,233)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised REERREREZ
FLIE & 943 947
Reversal of temporary difference recognised UL il 58 B R 72 B 4 [ - (206,531)
Income tax expense/(credit) FriSfiba <~ (%) 11,438 (206,531)
The applicable rate of Hong Kong profits tax is 16.5% (2023: 16.5%). HHEAERZ2BHBEA165% (&

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made for the year as

the Group has no assessable profit for the year (2023: Nil). Provision

for China corporate income tax is calculated based on the statutory

tax rate of 25% (2023: 25%) on the assessable income of each of the

Group’s PRC entities.

Crown International Corporation Limited
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15 0 P 2 B A L7
A5 R B 5 4L L
£ 98 17 2 48 R 2 A0 F 39 T

11 LOSSES PER SHARE

(a) Basic losses per ordinary share is calculated by dividing the loss (a)

attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted

average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

B o
2024 2023
E PYLE —ET =

Loss for the purpose of basic earnings PR GRS A R 2

per share s $5
Loss for the year attributable to owners RATHEA NEAMGER

of the Company, HK$’000 e T (126,785) (1,069,359)
Number of shares for the purpose of basic  FiJi2 55 75 B 3L A s $ 2

loss per share et 8 H
Weighted average number of O3 AT 20 I R - Y 8

ordinary shares in issue 3,532,900,000 3,500,949,000
Basic losses per ordinary share, HK cent 15 PG % 2 e A fls 4 0 AL (3.59) (30.54)

(b) No diluted loss per share for 2024 was presented as there were no

potential ordinary shares in issue for 2024.

12 DIVIDEND

The Board do not recommend payment of final dividend for the year

ended 31 March 2024 (2023: Nil).

(b) R F YR S 2 549 A

s 1R DR AR Y % O AR I S
CLBAT AL M o

12 B

HEHETARRIRERE T 4=

A=t —HIEEEZRHERE (=%

CEAR U)o
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13 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

176

The remuneration of every director and the chief executive is set

out below:

For the year ended 31 March 2024:

13 1 4 2 46 A B Al i

@) HFERBRHITBNBZMN

&

B4 H B RS ITBON B Z F

e

BEZ NE=A=+—HIk

SR

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,

whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

AL ( Iﬁﬁﬂi’ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ"?)BWR#HE?%WEHHEWZM%

Emoluments paid
or receivable in
respect of director’s
other services in

connection with
the management
Employer’s of the affairs of
contribution to the Company
retirement benefit or its subsidiary
Name Fees Salaries scheme undertaking Total
AR AR
ERA BRI
YV 2 i S 2
BIERAGHIZ  REHCH
4 g fig e & itk HE 2 3 o
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
Til Tl Tl Tl Tl
Executive directors WiHS
Meng Jin Long (a) FEa ) 122 - - - 122
Chan Yuk Charm (b) BRASEE () 1,000 - - - 1,000
Wei Zhenming (c) B 392 - - - 392
Independent non-executive L BT
directors
Ren Guo Hua (d) {EBIEE(d) - - - - -
Chen Fang (¢) BT (<) 14 - - - 14
Cheung Ka Yue (f) KRB 50 - - - 50
Liu Ting (g) A1) 149 - - - 149
Ng Ki Man (h) S 100 - - - 100
Xiao Ganghua (i) B I G) 140 - - - 140
1,967 - - - 1,967

Crown International Corporation Limited
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(Continued)

Notes to the

For the year ended 31 March 2023:

13 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

(@) WHRRBHITBNBZM
& &
RE-Z-SE=A=—HIE
s

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

AN H DR ORGRIE A S A1) £ B G5 i C sk 2 2

Emoluments paid
or receivable in
respect of director’s
other services in
connection with
the management

Employer's of the affairs of
contribution to the Company
retirement benefit or its subsidiary
Name Fees Salaries scheme undertaking Total
AE AR
AN S
WE AR HHZ
BIREAGENZ  AERBEWCN
4 e e [ 8% B4k am
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
T T T T T
Executive directors g
Hung Man () £ () 304 - - - 304
Meng Jin Long (a) HEHE 300 - - - 300
Lui Ha Nam Dennis (k) B (k) 71 - - - 71
Chan Yk Charm (b) BRI (D) - - - . )
Independent non-executive TRL Ik BT
directors
Ren Guo Hua (d) (LRI (d) 198 - - - 198
Chen Fang (c) B (o) 217 - - - 217
Chan Kwok Wai Tony (1) BB 58 - - - 58
Cheung Ka Yue (f) RERBD 44 - - - 44
Ip Ka Ki (m) R Bm) - - - - -
1,192 - - - 1,192
Notes: B gt -
(a)  Mr. Meng Jin Long resigned as executive director of the Company (@) B AE SRR i+ —
on 10 November 2023. A+ HEHEA R AT H S -
(b) Mr. Chan Yuk Charm appointed as executive director of the (b) BRI AR #-R
Company on 28 February 2023. Z N AT 2 AR A B AT
#HAio
() Mr. Wei Zhenming appointed as executive director and Chairman () BIRSHALEN - F Z4F+—

of the Company on 10 November 2023.

R+ HMERE DA N AT H

ES S
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13 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (Continued)

178

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d)

(e)

(g)

(h)

@

0

(k)

)

(m)

Mr. Ren Guo Hua resigned as independent non-executive director

of the Company on 3 April 2023.

Mr. Chen Fang resigned as independent non-executive director of

the Company on 26 April 2023.

Dr. Cheung Ka Yue appointed as independent non-executive
director of the Company on 15 December 2022 and resigned on 1
August 2023.

Ms. Liu Ting appointed as independent non-executive director of

the Company on 3 April 2023.

Mr. Ng Ki Man appointed as independent non-executive director of

the Company on 1 August 2023.

Mr. Xiao Ganghua appointed as independent non-executive director

of the Company on 26 April 2023.

Ms. Hung Man resigned as executive director of the Company on
14 June 2022.

Mr. Lui Ha Nam Dennis appointed as Chief Executive Officer on
14 June 2022 and resigned on 30 September 2022.

Mr. Chan Kwok Wai Tony appointed as independent non-executive
director of the Company on 31 March 2022 and resigned on 26
July 2022.

Mr. Ip Ka Ki appointed as Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company on 23 August 2022 and resigned on 1 October 2022.

Crown International Corporation Limited
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13 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

(Continued)

The Company’s executive directors represent all of the Company’s
chief executives. Accordingly, no separate disclosure in respect of
the remuneration of the chief executives is made in the financial

statements.

No emoluments were paid to any director as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of

office during the year ended 31 March 2024 (2023: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any termination

benefits during the year ended 31 March 2024 (2023: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making

available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group did not pay
consideration to any third parties for making available directors’

services (2023: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

As at 31 March 2024, there was no loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings arrangements in favour of directors, controlled bodies

corporate by and connected entities with such directors (2023:

Nil).

13 o 3 2 i A B Al i )

(a)

(b)

(o)

(d)

YRR RTTBN B Z M
EAC )

ARFRITEETIARRFA &
EATBON B o R > M B R A
o % S5 AT R R AT BN B 26
i o

REE_ZZNE=H=+—H
bR JE 0 A 2% ] S 4 ) £ ] 3 R
S AT <2 > 1 2 2055 10 S5
NS B2 I s R A 5 [ I 2 % i
Sl Ry M (ZF =
i) -

g 2 &% 1k D Ol 1 R
REEZZNE=H=+—H
b 4E o d ST U B R L
ULk (bR E Al (=% ==
i) o

UG YO 5 i 1) 5 —
Ji X4 2 X1

REE_ZPE=A=+—H
1k 4P B S S B S S o A0

IR 755 e A A 55 = 07 SCAHARE (2
BZARE L) o

3 BR LA 0 ~ 52 3%
il 22 15 1 e B 5 o

Mz B 2y 52 N Z B
R B ML 22 5 2 20kt

RoB WESA=Z+—H M
I LUHE S~ 52 3% R 20k
. i 5 S B R
22 B MR R H A 5
T (B )

B BER H2 A R A )
2023/2024 4 4R
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13

130

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 13 3 Z A B Pl 3R e

DIRECTORS (Continued)

(e) Directors’ material interests in transactions, (e)

arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Group was a party
and in which a director of the Group had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or

at any time during the year ended 31 March 2024 (2023: Nil).

(f) Five highest paid individuals f)

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2024 comprise 2 directors
and 3 employees (2023: comprise 3 directors and 2 employees).
The details of the emoluments payable to the 3 employees (2023:

2) during the year are presented below:

HHIRZ S~ PR A EID
DA PN E

7 5 0 0 R A £ [ S B ST S R
RE G~ G A H > R4 H
KRG~ e & 8 A R [
HE R A ERRER H
REBEEZZEZNE=H=+—H
1b 4 R A A5 R s AR P A AT I 47
RAM (B =AR ) -

hAEEH N L
WE_Z_NWE=H=1—H
LR AEE AL R &S H AL
HIFERAEAR =HEER (ZF
CEE A=A ERE WA R
B) FREMNEZ =4 (CE =
i) BB 2l s 250
T

2024 2023
EFSI e S

HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T

Salaries and other short-term Bt R At R B AR A
employee benefits 920 884
Pension costs — defined contribution plan ARAR S AR — 2 RE AL K E 45 31
965 915

Number of individuals

AN
2024 2023
—EOPYE E =
Emoluments band P < i [
HK$1 — HK$1,000,000 1371 —1,000,0003 T 3 2
3 2

Crown International Corporation Limited
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 PI2E ~ W7 Bt i
Computer, Other
office Construction properties
Furniture equipment Leasehold Motor in progress leased for
and fixtures  and machiner improvement vehicles (note) own use Total
Rl ‘ wIE .
RIRRER SRR ilced AL (R5E)  JAUHL R it
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
Tt Tt T T T T Tt
Year ended 31 March 2023 BESF A HIeE
Opening net book amount SRR A 44 37 - 361 296,480 6,642 303,564
Currency translation differences AN - 26 - (3) (22,028) (227) (22,232
Additions RE - - - - - 2917 2917
Lease termination HIEL - - - - (1,251) (1,251)
Charge for the year E—Wﬁﬁi (28) (45) - (41) - (4,287) (4,401)
Impairment losses et ] - - - - (110,064) - (110,064)
Closing net book amount AFA MR A 16 18 - 317 164,388 3,794 168,533
Asat 31 March 2023 REBZEEEA =N
Cost A . 1,400 1,228 1,573 1,058 274,452 9,084 288,795
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ZEHTE R fE (1,384) (1,210) (1,573) (741) (110,064) (5,290) (120,262)
16 18 - 317 164,388 3,794 168,533
Year ended 31 March 2024 BEF WA S IR
Opening net book amount ERIFE 16 18 - 317 164,388 3,794 168,533
Currency translation differences 5’[‘ Wi e - (1) - 1) (14,022) (52) (14,076)
Additions e - - - - - 885 885
Lease termination MERE - - - - (1,182) (1,182)
Disposal of subsidiaries B A 7) 9) - (294) - - (310)
Charge for the year R ) (4) - - = (1,666) (1,679)
Closing net book amount AR HA - 4 - 2 150,366 1,779 152,171
As at 31 March 2024 REZMEZA=T—H
Cost ji . 1,096 681 1,573 434 260,430 9,084 273,298
Accumulated depreciation and impairment  RAHT & RIR(E (1,096) (677) (1,573) (412) (110,064) (7,305) (121,127)
- 4 - 22 150,366 1,779 152,171

Note: As at 31 March 2024, the carrying amount of interests in leaschold

land defined as right-of-use asset were included in the carrying amount
of construction in progress of approximately HK$32,744,000 (2023:
HK$34,523,000).

During the year ended 31 March 2024, as there are continuous loss
recorded by the Group from hotel operations, the management of
the Group concluded there was an impairment indicator for hotel
operations and conducted impairment assessment on recoverable
amounts of construction in progress which is under hotel
operations segment. The Group estimated the recoverable amount
of the construction in progress which is estimated by independent
professional valuers, Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory Limited, who are
the members of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. Accordingly,
impairment loss of HK$Nil (2023: HK$110,064,000) in respect of
construction in progress was recognised in profit or loss for the year

ended 31 March 2024.

Bak: R-Z NEZA=Z+—H B
AEHEEEMNHE L REREN
HRTAE £932,744,0000 0 (% — =
134,523,000 00) E LA EEH

TREZHREAE A -

BE-EE A S Ak
bR A 9 0 O O R O A 81

0 A S8 [ LR a8 % O AR AE
IERIERE S SRTED = $ g -l

£ TR B9 ] e (] < 38 A 17 IR A W
il o 7 £ (6] R 95 o 7 S it {1 A g
BBRAFAG s A IR AR L2 F R
AR g & B) 12 Ak S

AR A AT W) < 88 o TR L > WU AE T
BRI BEERZ#T (2T =4

110,064,000 0) EREE Z 44
ZHZ=+t—HILEENHEE PR

ELUeE R ER S A B A )
2023/2024 4E$
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15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15 $RE PR
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
THE T
At beginning of year RAEY] - 1,253,728
Disposal H - (1,162,683)
Exchange difference [ 58 72 RH = (91,045)
At end of year RAER = -
The Group’s property interests are held to earn rental income or for A8 [ B A DU B 42 WA 511 3 A
capital appreciation are measured using the fair value model. WAE 2 P ERE R T B N T BB
ﬁ o
Amount recognised in profit or loss for investment i 45 2k B 8 1) 152 2 P S
properties
2024 2023
SEOPYEE S B =
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T T H#IT
Direct operating expenses from properties 2R B Y B B A B = (499)
Loss on disposal of investment properties B R EYE 2 R = (745,884)

Crown International Corporation Limited
1 8 2 Annual Report 2023/2024



Notes to the

16 LEASE LIABILITIES

The Group entered into a number of lease agreements for the use of
office premises in Hong Kong and the PRC, with lease terms of 1 to 3

years. The net book value of the Group’s lease liabilities was as follows:

7 S5 [ ol o8 P 7 7 e v 1R 3
BTN Z ML S e A — 2
A o AR B [ AH B B O R TR TR LR

2024 2023

SECPYEE =
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T T#HIT
As at 1 April JRMWH—H 4,708 14,677
Addition NE 885 2,917
Lease payments GER=ENE (2,307) (3,842)
Interest expenses (Note 8) FEBH 3 (B¥5Es) 151 432
Lease termination B (1,255) (9,240)
Exchange difference e 5 72 R (82) (230)
As at 31 March R=H=1+—H 2,100 4,708

Addition to the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for the year
ended 31 March 2024 amounted to approximately HK$885,000
(2023: HK$2,917,000), due to new lease of office.

As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, the Group has no committed lease
agreements not yet commenced, and no short-term and low-value lease

entered by the Group for both years.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the total cash outflow for lease
amounted to approximately HK$2,307,000 (2023: HK$3,842,000).

PEEZE D NE=H =+ —HILE
EoEHEEEKRHEARZIREL
#5885,000% 7T (& . =4F 1 2,917,000
W0 o TR IRR A B Z WA

MBI ER D =ZF=H
= B AR M R G R B 46
Z R b el > LA R S T 4
Alfe 48 5T 37 6 300 B AR fEL R AELAY ©

REE_Z_NE=HA=+—H
1k A7 R 0 RHAY B9 B U AR A By

2,307,00045 7T (. . =4F © 3,842,000
#EITo)
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16 LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued)

Future lease payments are due as follows:

134

16 flEfAfE e
SR AL (3 I B

it I PYAE Minimum lease
As at 31 March 2024 “HA=+—H payments Interest  Present value
e (L B4 FE BUA
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T
Not later than one year AN A — AR 1,708 (59) 1,649
Later than one year and not later — 4 DL b (B A 7 7 AF
than two years 455 (4) 451
2,163 (63) 2,100
)/ S Minimum lease
As at 31 March 2023 =H=4+—H payments Interest Present value
e AR S AR 2 BiE
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000
T T AR
Not later than one year R e 3 — A 3,080 (160) 2,920
Later than one year and not later — 4 DL b (B A 7 7 7 4
than two years 1,460 (50) 1,410
Later than two years and not later 4 DA b B R 8 i 4R
than five years 382 (4) 378
4,922 (214) 4,708
2024 2023
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T T#oT
Current TE 1,649 2,920
Non-current JE B 451 1,788
As at 31 March MR=H=1+—H 2,100 4,708

Crown International Corporation Limited

Annual Report 2023/2024
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17 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 17 F8 3R
FOR SALE

HK$’000

Tt
As at 1 April 2022 MRoZEZ A —H 1,119,630
Impairment THAE (286,782)
Exchange difference FE §2 72 %0 (82,996)
As at 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023 MREBZ=F=H=1+—HK
—EZZAENA—-H 749,852
Additions WHE 25,618
Reversal of impairment ERIER ] 2,168
Exchange difference [ §2 72 A (53,542)
As at 31 March 2024 REZEZNEZA =+ —H 724,096
Notes: B EE
(a) The amount of properties under development for sale and expected () THEHRERA 2 — 48 DU W e A 1 8 3
to be recovered after more than one year is HK$724,096,000 (2023: JE ) 2 K TH £5724,096,0009 7T (Z
HK$749,852,000). F AR 749,852,000 70) ©
(b)  Properties under development for sale are situated on leasehold land (b) HEEEDPYEMAPRZHEE
located in the PRC. Fe
(c) At at 31 March 2024, the carrying amount of interests in leasehold land (¢ MZ_WNHE=H=+—H RE’
defined as right-of-use asset were included in the carrying amount of e FH RE 34 2 ) AR B L o RE % A R T
properties under development for sale of approximately HK$282,076,000 {H£9282,076,000%7C (% — =
(2023: HK$297,404,000). 297,404,0007 70) T 0 & £ 17 5 98 8

R SE Z MR A ©
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18 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

186

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2024.

Place of incorporation/

establishment and

Principal activities and

18 Wi 2wl Z wk i

RoBTNEZH = — HZ B

J& AR BN

Particulars of issued

share capital/registered capital

Proportion of

ordinary shares

Name kind of legal entity place of operations and debt securities held by the Group
kN, CHfiA/ A
JE LML T Ak MHZ A e i 3 A e LL A
At R TEEBR RS % 2 sk b (%)
Crown Finance Holdings Limited Samoa Investment holding in Samoa 10,000 ordinary shares of *100%
S SRR AR AT Limited liability company TE I8 P i 45 S 1 Y US$1 each
TR 10,000
AHR2AH ELHRES P &l
Good Taste Group Ltd Hong Kong  Investment holding in Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%
— LI REA R AR Limited liability company TEFBRERR 10,000 T
il
AR
Grandlife Investment Co. Limited Samoa Investment holding in Samoa 10,000 ordinary shares Of *100%
Limited liability company and provision of comprehensive US$1 each
i B i healthcare business 10,000
AT T B PR B AR P B MR {E 1 55 2 ¥ R
SEOUREREE RS
Jumbo China Investment Led Hong Kong  Investment holding in Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%
WERHHRAH Limited liability company TR BRALR 10,0007 7T
wi
AR F
ek it 1 B K E AR A )2 PRC  Hotel and property investment in Registered capital of 100%
Wholly owned foreign PRC RMB425,620,000
enterprise TERERL RS R sEME AN R425,620,0000T
el
EEITRHE
Wonderful China Group Limited Hong Kong  Investment holding in Hong Kong HK$10,000 *100%
Limited liability company TR AR 10,000 i#T
His
AT
R PR B (RN A PR 2w~ PRC Trading and developing of Registered capital of *100%
Wholly owned foreign premium white spirit RMB10,000,000
enterprise BEANE S g L& A
gl AR 10,000,000 7
EEIERE

Shares held directly by the Company.

These companies do not have English names.

Crown International Corporation Limited

Annual Report 2023/2024
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19 OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS
AND DEPOSITS

19 FLAth R Wk 08 ~ PSR
Be 48 &

2024 2023
B PULE T =
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiE T
Non-current IEH B
Rental deposits M w 435 349
435 349
Current miE)
Other receivables (note a) At R I (B EEa) 546 200,709
Prepayments and deposits (note b and ) FEAS RO B <
(i 5EBFAC) 262,948 494,612
Prepaid tax TE 40 R TE 6,899 7,363
Deposits for other borrowings (note 25(b)) HAE S mE $fsk2s50b)) 3,642 16,179
274,035 718,863
274,470 719,212

Notes:

(@)

(b)

()

As at 31 March 2023, other receivables mainly represented of
approximately HK$199,300,000 (equivalent to RMB174,335,000) of the
proceeds from disposal of investment properties “ZEBLZEHE” located at
Zhong Shan during the year. The receivables had received in full during
the year ended 31 March 2024.

Included in prepayments and deposits, amounted of approximately
HK$230,331,000 (equivalent to RMB212,502,000) (2023:
HK$242,847,000 (equivalent to RMB212,502,000)) made by the
Group which represented prepayments for procuring the acquisition of
a potential property development project in the City of Weihai, PRC. It
represented acquisition of lands from individual parties amounts ranging
from RMB2 million to RMB8.5 million. The amounts will be transferred
to properties under development for sale when the Group obtains

contractual usage rights of the relevant lands and properties.

Included in prepayments and deposits, amounted of approximately
HK$32,517,000 (equivalent to RMB30,000,000) (2023:
HK$251,553,000 (equivalent to RMB220,120,000) represented deposits

paid for purchasing premium white wine.

Fia

(@)

(b)

()

ROZBZZF=ZHA=F—H HAiE
WOk E 3 AR N B R E Y
22 Bl 22 5 T 5 3K JE £9199,300,000 7 7T
(FHE BN R ¥174,335,00000) ° E R
BEDEDE=A = —HILEE
R B MR A I o

BN TE A KO B AR 5 TE
I £9230,331,000% ¢ (& R
ANR®212,502,0007T) (& ==
4F 1 242,847,000 0 (HE RN R
212,502,0007%) ) 2 F T 2 B WAL v
Bl — Y S EEA
PR FELAS 8k 3 o L 45 g 4 0N - WO
Mo SR AR EECE AR
8.5 F B JT o 5 7 55 I8 A5 A B - b R
Y3 IR G 9 5 T RE IR > 5% S5 K TR
BEMNERERYE-

B TEAT 3R E B % 48 4932,517,0008 70

(MR N R %30,000,00078) (=%
TU=A4E 1251,553,0000 70 (M E R R
#220,120,0007%) ) > % FH A i B 8 &
F 3V T S A PR 4 o

ELUeE R ER S A B A )
2023/2024 4E$
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20 TRADE RECEIVABLES

20 HEWCE 5 MRS

2024 2023
E O PULE B2 =
HK$’000 HK$ 000
T#x RRCP
Trade receivables JEE WA B 5 R R - 14,650

Trade receivables were due within 120 days from the date of billing.
Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising from
trade receivables are set out in Note 3.1(a). The ageing analysis of net
trade receivables, based on the invoice dates, as at end of the reporting

period is as follow:

JEE Wi 2 MR RS 3% 5 H R RF 120 K A
F 1 o A B A 5 15 B BOR B
o R K E A B A5 R LB < 2 — 2 R
CYNITESRICHEY 8= 8 k&
H 91 2 18 Wi B 2 MR ok 7 L 2 R B2 20 A
W

2024 2023
FE PYLE B =
HK$’000 HK$’000
T ARV
over 6 months EZING[EDE] - 14,650
= 14,650

As at 31 March 2023, the receivables are past due and subsequently
received in full. The Group assessed the ECLs for these receivables are

insignificant and thus no loss allowance is recognised.

21 INVENTORIES

REBD =A== —H BRGK
HE AN HE R KRB - A4
VA A1 % < WA T ) TR B 4R
i AN EE K ]I SXf 9 e S L 8 £ o

21 ff 8

2024 2023
“EONE =
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T#IT
Premium white spirit BE 108,205 -

Crown International Corporation Limited
1 8 8 Annual Report 2023/2024
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22 RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES AND

23

4=

eI RMEE @

22 Qﬁﬂﬂ%ﬂﬁﬂiﬁﬂgéﬁﬁ%&ﬁ

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BB

2024 2023
SEPE B

HK$’000 HK$’000
T T
Bank balances RAT &5 R 177,587 2,481
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBRSEEY 177,587 2,481
Restricted bank balances =7 PR il {5 FH B8R 17 45 6% 1,626 1,779

As at 31 March 2024, cash and bank balances of approximately
HK$170,269,000 (2023: HK$2,904,000) respectively are denominated
in RMB and deposited with banks in the PRC. RMB is not a freely

convertible currency in the international market. The conversion of

RMB into foreign currencies and remittance of RMB out of the PRC

is subject to the rules and regulations of exchange control promulgated

by the government of the PRC.

Restricted bank balances of approximately HK$1,626,000 (2023:
HK$1,779,000) was frozen by the court regarding legal case.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND

23

R Z PWE=ZH=1+—H &
170,269,000 0 (=& = = 4 :
2,904,000 7)) & Bl R BRAT &5 R AN
R SHE N F AP Z 81T AR
WEARRERET S LA Bk’ A
B S8 4 2 A T N B B M PR
2 5% T 18R] IR 08 A 2 A A I B e
FELAG AT R R o
#91,626,000¥ 0 (& = =
1,779,000% JT) H’J%BE?EU@H%?E?%*%
IR 2 8 1 0 0 ot R s o

HEAS 52 5 ke B BLAth JE £+

& >
ACCRUALS o VE b JE R B
2024 2023
E I PULE —E =
HK$’°000 HK$’000
T AR
Trade payables JEAT & 5 R K — 2,000
Other payables and accruals At A5 SR VE B JEE £
Current Hi
Construction and development cost payables JEE AT S 5 B % J R AR 332,498 393,112
Contract liabilities (note) AR aE fED 141,706 132,083
VAT and other tax payables 3 (B R e L A JE A< 5 T 10,371 35,197
Salaries payables JEE A 7 <2 6,640 6,979
Accrued expense JEEHBE =2 3,664 8,367
Others H At - 36,104
494,879 611,842
S BRER B A A )

189
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23

24

190

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS (Continued)

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade

payables based on the invoice date, is as follows:

23

JEEAF B4 ) M 5k e LAt JEE £~F
K VH B JE S A

R EWAR R EHMZENE S
IR Z Rt o0 A din R

2024 2023
SERINE SF =
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T Tt
over 6 months Z 6l H = 2,000
- 2,000

Note:

The contract liabilities are mainly arising from pre-sales of properties of
Weihai Project. The Group received payments from customers based on billing
schedules as stipulated in the property sales contracts. Payments are usually

received in advance of the performance under the sales contracts.

The contract liabilities at the beginning of the year HK$132,083,000 (2023:
HK$142,762,000). No revenue recognised for both years of 2024 and 2023,
what was included in the contract liabilities balances at the beginning of the

year, the movement of contract liabilities represented the exchange differences.

DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income tax levied by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to
settle the balances on a net basis. The components of deferred income
tax liabilities recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position and the movements during the year ended 31 March 2024
and 2023 are as follows:

Crown International Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2023/2024
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Btk

BHAMIERARBHAYEEAE A
A1 1 2 1 24 9 45 5 A 119 B S I e R ik
T AR 3 TR R AT 35 5 5 49 Z ik
F K

WG A 1H132,083,000 0 (ZF =
4 1 142,762,000 0) o —E T PULE K = F
CEARYIR MR ER 0 R A A AL AL R
W AR BB ) A R D 2SR o

RS B fLA

B AR E W] BT RER BT 5 IR 0
7 B RV A2 0 £ T AH B o i AR A
e i & e B (e B — R B A
B [7) R 5 T A 2 [ — T S A Rl P
B 2 PGB A B> HA g 5 R
e 6 T BR R IRE 0 B AT RE 2R A AT B
FE BB ME B o N E —F Y
R B EZFEZH=E—HIRSE
JE o & 6 5 IR 0 2R P Tl R AR O il
(SRTNER-Pd V)Y 88 - LUL I
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24 DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES 24 WS BAhE @

(Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2024 BE Z O EZH S —HIEEE

Fair value
gain on
acquisition of
a subsidiary Total
Wl — 1l
Wi 2] 2
ARaLlE k]
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T
At 1 April 2023 R-ZEZ=4PA—H (8,982) (8,982)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 29(c)) H B B B 23 A (B EE29(c)) 8,519 8,519
Exchange difference HEE §2 74 % 463 463

At 31 March 2024 BB NEZH=+—H = -

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BEZZE- " -H =+ —HIEEE

Fair value Fair value
change of gain on
investment acquisition of
properties a subsidiary Total
i fi—
BEYE WiE ARz
NEEEH) ARE & 4%
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
T#TT T T
At 1 April 2022 RZZEZZHMNA—H (222,704) (9,708) (232,412)
Credited to the consolidated statement of  5F A& & 2 TH UL 45 72
comprehensive income (Note 10) (B5¥10) 206,531 - 206,531
Exchange difference BEE £0 7 A 16,173 726 16,899
At 31 March 2023 RoBE = ZH=+—H - (8,982) (8,982)

RZBZPEZH=+—H BIHE
$E49120,283,0000 0 (& ~=
131,155,000 7T) .H@Tﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ@?
8 2 it Il 26 PR AS B TE I 0 0 A Bl R
R A TE o ARRAH B R AR I
BAT RS L0 0 4B JE T H W 2 R R
PR Ve B 4E 118,542,000 0 (. F =
118,542,000% yT) » T Ji* FH4FE N 2|
25T RMERMIEREA1,741,000
HEoT (2 T =4F 1 12,613,00087T) ©
FAAS AR BE | A HH B B g A B AR AR
FRIEE1E4712,532,0009 90 (& — =
4 ) AL TERE o

At 31 March 2024, the deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses
of approximately HK$120,283,000 (2023: HK$131,155,000) have
not been recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams to utilised such losses. Unrecognised tax losses amounted to
HK$118,542,000 (2023: HK$118,542,000) has no expiry date and
certain unrecognised tax losses amounted to HK$1,741,000 (2023:
HK$12,613,000) expire within five years under the current tax
legislation of the respective jurisdictions. During the current year, due 4
to the disposal of subsidiaries, unrecognised tax losses of approximately
HK$12,532,000 (2023:Nil) was derecognised.

ELUeE R ER S A B A )
2023/2024 4E$
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BORROWINGS

25 fHHE

2024 2023
E T PYLE e S
HK$’0(§) HK$'000
T T
Entrusted loan (note a) g?ﬁfﬁ?j( (Fﬁ'?ﬂfa) 806,726 799,876
Other borrowings (note b) HAbfEE BFEEb) 2,000 61,486
808,726 861,362
Less: Amount due within one year shown under W FIAE R B B 2 H IR
current liabilities: —ERNEBRZ SR
Entrusted loan Tt & (806,726) (799,876)
Other borrowings H A & (2,000) (61,486)
Amount shown under non-current liabilities HIVEIET B B fE 2 S = -
Notes: B sE
(@) On 9 November 2018, J&BRFHAREEAMARF (“Weihai (a) Béiﬁggﬁﬁ“gﬂhﬁ’zt’&ﬁlg
Runhe”), an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered EdGES %‘%Eﬁ% o o i B T R
into an entrusted debt investment agreement with Asia Alliance Asset E%EKEZE,@F&?QH*D }é}ﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁ
Management Co., Ltd. (“Asia Alliance Asset”), an independent third AT R 1T Uuﬁfﬁiﬁ;ﬁﬁj) L
& v S s b NI i A TR A
party, through Harbin Bank Tianjin Branch (“Harbin Bank”) pursuant to A (MR ) 2 BT A G
which Weihai Runhe obtained a loan in the amount of RMB660,000,000 B vE RIEB TR IE S A AR
(equivalent to approximately HK$815,232,000) for a term loan of 3 #660,000,0007T, (FH % iR £9815,232,000
years, bearing interest at 6.6% per annum (“Asia Alliance Asset Loan”). It e E?ﬁﬁﬁﬂ}%iﬁ Ei &
The borrowing is secured by the pledge of Weihai Runhe construction- Fl 26 o wl B (i i 2 e 5% 1) o
in-progress “Real Estate Registered Certificate” which will be in custody ﬁ{ﬁﬁl}{@q@ﬁﬂi%ﬁﬁ’]ﬁg;fﬁ iy
by Harbin Bank. The funding will be used for construction work of rz:iib_@ %Eﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂj Qi;ﬁlﬂﬁﬁuﬁﬁﬁ
Golden Beach No. 1 Project. The final drawdown amount of this loan E%Egé% %$H@E%%T$§%§EEXE§%
was RMB500,000,000 and the remaining undrawn facility amount was ﬁg%ﬁxfgéﬁﬁykﬁmsoo 8/66 OH:)O; s
lapsed. This loan is guaranteed by Mr. Meng Jin Long, being the legal A L 1T 0 R 2 e A 1 A EITE
p _ gu y g] g 8 g BR N RPN il B A O R o 2T
representative of Weihai Runhe and a former director of the Company. SHITHREEARNEEREARLAR
PARSILON I R Ny b e o <
As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, the Group has not paid certain i @E&‘;g:: 435
instalments of principal of HK$541,950,000 (2023: HK$571,400,000) %E:E }fr LILE fﬁﬁ%#%j
(equivalent to approximately RMB500,000,000 (2023: E #‘/"\EH — ?El—‘jfﬂ;f‘\fﬁj;{— EIT
RMB500,000,000)) and interest payments of HK$264,766,000 (2023: :égﬂﬂfq“?:ﬁ SE N g
HK$228,476,000) (equivalent to approximately RMB244,281,000 (2023: ENA-TH % —-—4E1—A8
RMB199,927,000)) of the entrusted loan which was due and payable “t+tHBIHESNS R B
on 20 June 2020, 20 December 2020 and 20 June 2019, 20 December F=H=t+—HKE_ZE_-=4#=H
2019, 20 June 2021, 27 November 2021 and remained overdue as at E‘f‘# El &Ei%ﬁ%ﬁé‘ﬁi%i&?@
31 March 2022 and 31 March 2023 and up to the date of approval of i%ﬁu%z H o )y 8 3] R f E"J év%;ﬁf%
these consolidated financial statements. Harbin Bank has initiated legal %EEJ j?ﬁﬁ$$54l,950,\\009{%75 (g,'
proceedings against the Group to recover the outstanding loan amount W #455'3?&571,40(),000@ TE)>_(1LE§
; ; JR# N R #500,000,0007 (% .=
owed to them. According to the final court order issued on 5 January, FNREM 500.000,00070) ) K& Fl B
2024, the Group is liable for the default principal and interest at an H‘%ﬁ264,766,00’0?%7% (% =4 :
annual rate of 9.9%. Bank has the right to demand immediate repayment 228,476,0004% 7C) (MHE A& N B i
based on the loan agreement, and as a result, the bank has the right to 244,281,0000C (& =4 . \NRW
serve a notice and require Weihai Runhe to repay the entire entrusted loan 199,927,0(\)0/773)_) o g ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁi’j [P
of principal amount and the interest of approximately HK$806,726,000 %@i%@&éﬁﬁ /A %UISUE] ] A 1 22
(equivalent to RMB744,281,000) (2023: HK$799,876,000) (equivalent Bk i 8 o ARIR IS % ~PU4E— 1
to RMB699,927,000) as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 T H U Y fR 8¢ TR B i <2 0 K B2 B0
. N ) HRAE 78 AN AR 5 B 5E R 289,996 1Y Al I, 0
respectively, immediately. On 28 March 2024, the Harbin Bank agreed RS B 20 28 BRAT /5 M 3o vy D
to allow the Group to repay the outstanding amount using the proceeds S (R 0 SR 4T A RE2E H A T 3R
from the pre-sales of the Weihai Project within three years. W AR L BB 2B 4 BIA — 28 — Py 4F =
H=T—HKk 2 =fF=H=1—
H 22 80 A 3 B Rl L £9806,726,0009 7T
CHHE R N R W5744,281,00000) (&
— =4 1799,876,0000 7 (B E A AN R
#699,927,00070) ) B ZE 5L HE K o JR —
Z PO = H A \H IS @ RAT
7] A B B 7% = 4 N 1 ] gkt JE H
TS IS R HE R R E R SR

Crown International Corporation Limited
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25 BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

o
(b)  The Group’s other loans bear interest range from 0% to 10% (2023: 0% (b)  ASHEE H A S R EB0%E10% (=
to 10%) per annum and are repayable within 1 year. All other loans are TR 0% R 10%) w5FE RCHIR
unsecured except for a loan amounting to HK$10,830,000 as at 31 March —ENER-BRR_-Z_=4=H
2023 is secured by deposit of HK$16,179,000 (note 19). =1+—HIM10,830,000% L2 E &

816,179,000 ST AE A (B 5E19)
Ah o BT A H At 55 7R3 o S K o

26 SHARE CAPITAL 26 A
Share capital
Number of A
shares HK$’000
J 8 H Tt
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: CLEAT RS E % e
At 1 April 2022 REEZTAEWH —H
Issued during the year ERNCET
At 31 March 2023, 1 April 2023 and REBD=F=ZH=1+—H>
31 March 2024 CECCENA—HR

SECPUE=H=+—H
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OTHER RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement

of changes in equity.

(i) Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents capital contribution in excess of

nominal value of share capital.

(i) Exchange reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve is used to record exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial statements

of entities of which the functional currency is not HKD.

(iii) Financial assets at FVOCI reserve

The financial assets at FVOCI reserve represents fair value reserve
comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of equity
investment designated at FVOCI that are held at the end of the

reporting period.

(iv) Share option reserve

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share options
granted which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the

accounting policy for share-based payment.

Crown International Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2023/2024

27 H At fif i

A B I 7 A A B 3 T 4 JE 2 i A

(i)

(ii)

LA il i
R % 11 2 A A I ) 6 A
i i o

it 52 fils i

W 56 05 0 k0 PO A SR 44 5 0
B 9 0 B 5 R
A 19 E 5276 5 o

(i) #% 23 PIE s+ A FEAd 2 1hi e

and faff i - 5% i P

2 AR A A A 2 T M2 o O
2 < Pl A A VALK O € 4
T A # A AR A HM 2 T RS
LI 301K 45 A 1 IR A B G
AT R D) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

28 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was approved by
its shareholders to adopt on 25 September 2015 and was amended on

9 September 2019.

Unless otherwise cancelled or amended, the Share Option Scheme will
remain in force for 10 years from 20 September 2021. Under the Share
Option Scheme, the grant of Share Options will provide the Grantees
an opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company with a view to
achieving the objectives of (i) motivating the Grantees to optimise their
performance efficiency for the benefit of the Group; and (ii) attracting
and retaining the Grantees whose contributions are or will be beneficial

to the long-term growth of the Group.

The options granted may be exercised in whole or in part by the
grantees. The exercise period of the options granted shall be a period
of time to be notified by the directors to grantees, which the directors
may in its absolute discretion determine, save that such period shall
not be more than 10 years commencing on the date of the offer of

grant.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon exercise of the options
which may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share options schemes of the Company (including both exercised and
outstanding options) to each participant in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company then in issue. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to the

Company’s shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

eI RMEE @

28 LA D 25 B té Ak ok

— VL Ji P Rt ) T B RE i )l
WRZZF—HENA =+ h A AR
2o R - NEAANBER -

bR IE 55 47 M8 BRAB BT > 75 B Jilk P st
Bl oE A TARBZARK
S 2 104F o RO g e R w3 > 452 L) i R
HE I 25 AR IR BRBEIR AR 2 ] v 3 A A
NHERR 2 B DUZSBUN BAR ()M
il R 32 N 2 A B [ 2 ) 4 e L A
R 5 R (i)W 5] B % B H EH Rk 2 B0
BRI R R AN Z AN -

ARZ N AT AT i 2 0 SR A 4 T 1
PR HE o FIT 52 7 1) 86 PR A A 45 U1 BR ] el
O A R YA ST 0 R R BN M
W% PR A 8 2 LAY R
104E ©

TR AT o AR 48 i P it ) B A 2% W) A AT
L A S P ) (R AT 8 B RAT i
FICT S P HEE ) ] A 457 L Y S P 72 IR (]
1218 91 ] 1 2% 2 815 S AT R R 43
REBHAGEEAAFEFCET
FR A7) {99 19 o NL3E — 2 %% H i 2 1kt BR A
P B P W 9 ZELAE AR % ) R TR B SRR
& bt

SRR A £ L 43)
2023/2024 f?gﬁ 1 9 5
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28 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(a) The terms and conditions of the grants are as

28 LA 25 S e sk )
(a) CEZHRIGEK B T

follows:

Number of  Vesting Contractual life
options granted  conditions of options
Sl R
MRS R GEL]
Date of grant 2 e Immediately vested 10 years
Options granted to employees: B B T 2 i BEAE from date of grant 104

20 September 2021 “ECFEAHSAH 102,900,000  HEZH HBE

7 P i

(b) Wi e Bl 9 H B i 1315

(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices

of share options are as follows: fhEme
2024 2023
TE YA TR
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price options  exercise price options
IHEE-Yy ik R 2]
TTHEME  JEROHESH TR REE e
HKS$ HK$
Ly T
As at 1 April RMA—H - = 0.187 102,900,000
Exercised during the year LR - - 0.187  (102,900,000)
Exercisable at end of the year ERWFATE - - - -

Crown International Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2023/2024
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28 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions

28 LRy 2 FE AT 3K )
(c) MR HE ) 2 i B Il

20 September

2021

—EE

hLA="H

Fair value at measurement date (HK$) ahE HE A EE GEIT) 0.05839

Share price (HK$) R (o) 0.160

Exercise price (HK$) IT1EME (o) 0.187

Expected volatility T HA I R 88.026%

Expected option life TEL 5 I8 R R 10 years 104F

Expected dividend FE IR S 0%

Risk-free rate i Jo b A 22 1.017%
The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility TS0 I LA 1 TR i (4 i I

(calculated based on the expected remaining life of the share
options), adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility
based on publicly available information. Expected dividends are
based on historical dividends. Changes in the subjective input

assumptions could materially affect the fair value estimate.

29 CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(a) Notes supporting cash flow statement

HRAEE-

29 Bl i i &
(@) Bl Rk

A FEUTR R 4F W0t 3D 2 278 3if
AR 23 BA A A5 2 ARk Al 2R 246 5 ek £
- o] Y31 588 Bl 17 ) o 2B o FEUDI AR
i 7% 5 Bl o o 4 % - A w2 R

2024 2023
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T THT
Cash and cash equivalents comprise BlERBlLEFHM B
Bank balances RAT AL BR 177,587 2,481
SUEBRER R A PR A ]

2023/2024 4E$
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29 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

198

activities

29 Bl&mm &R @

(b) il 16 By i 7k 2 L
ik

Borrowings  Lease liabilities Total
fi & e Eiski]
HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$000
Tt Tt Tt
(Note 25) (Note 16)

(Ktzk2s) (W&E16)

At 1 April 2022

Changes from financing cash flows:

Drawdown of borrowings

Repayment of principal portion of
lease liabilities

Repayment of interest portion of

lease liabilities

Total changes from financing cash flows:

Other changes:
Increase in lease liabilities from new leases
Decrease in lease liabilities from
lease termination
Exchange differences

Finance costs

Total other changes:

At 31 March 2023

Crown International Corporation Limited

Annual Report 2023/2024

REZZZHENA—H
ME B &S
JE i &
BEMTARZ AR

EEMEA N FRHD

PR (G R b e L

A 5EE) -
HRERE A
WAOMER LR

IS
S MU

HAb B A

REFZZHEAZH

___ s _Mem B13,564_
28,972 - 28,972
- (3,410) (3,410)
- (432) (432)

oo B _BM) B0
_ 2917 2,917
- (9,246) (9,246)
(60,359) (230) (60,589)
93,862 432 94,294

o Bl e
861,362 4,708 866,070




29 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)

activities (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

i E)

Borrowings  Lease liabilities Total
i s sk
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
Tt Tt Tiln
(Note 25) (Note 16)

(H¥&E25) (W ik16)

At 1 April 2023

Changes from financing cash flows:

Drawdown of borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Interest paid

Repayment of principal portion of
lease liabilities

Repayment of interest portion of

lease liabilities

Total changes from financing cash flows:

Other changes:
Increase in lease liabilities from new leases
Decrease in lease liabilities from
lease termination
Exchange differences

Finance costs

Total other changes:

At 31 March 2024

REBZZFNA—H
B )
B

MR

CHFE
BEMRAEL AR

HEMEAMFEHY

A6 BRI B 6 0 2 A

it -
SR B 2 M S
OB 2 S A

I L7
S A

Jft B

REZZNEZA =4 —H
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29 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries

(i) Disposal of Grandlife Healthcare Holdings Ltd

29 BlehmEr e
(c) HEEAN

(i) M #Grandlife Healthcare

Holdings Ltd
On 5 July 2023, the Company entered into an agreement R =FLHAEH
with an independent third party to dispose of 60% equity vNYNNSIR R VA ety S IR VA
interest in a subsidiary, Grandlife Healthcare Holdings Ltd — 7 ik o DA B — R
incorporated in Samoa, for an aggregate cash consideration | 1 VA = /A |
of HK$20,000. Grandlife Healthcare Holdings Ltd and Grandlife Healthcare Holdings
its subsidiary were principally engaged in provision of Led 2 60% i RE > 48 31 & X
consultancy service for set up of comprehensive healthcare 8 220,000 7T © Grandlife

business.

An analysis of liabilities over which control was lost:

Healthcare Holdings Led e H
i Je 2 i 3 A Sk AR AL K
T i 2 15 42 A4 s af AR5 o

BRI Z A E DT

HK$’000
T#IT
Liabilities i
Other payables and accruals A R A R E B T B (2,162)
Liabilities disposed of sz (2,162)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries A B A | 2 s
HK$’000
T#IT
Cash consideration HERE 20
Liabilities disposed of HEZ Al 2,162
Non-controlling interests JEPE RS M 2 (865)
Exchange reserve released upon disposal T LB 1% R R R 52 £ 1A 203
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries LR =P ol R 1,520

Crown International Corporation Limited
2 O O Annual Report 2023/2024



29 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)

Notes to the

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)

@)

(ii)

29 BIE iR &k @
© HEIE A @

Disposal of Grandlife Healthcare Holdings Ltd (i) M B Grandlife Healthcare
(Continued) Holdings Led (%)
Cash inflow from the disposal of subsidiaries HAEE AR 2 EHEHA
HK$’000
TF#IT
Cash consideration received ERHENRE 20
Disposal of Grandlife Healthcare Corp. Limited (ii) B A A R 4 ]
On 30 November 2023, the Company entered into an NR_Z_=H+—H=+
agreement with an independent third party to dispose of H o AN Gl BN =T 5]
100% equity interest in a subsidiary, Grandlife Healthcare ko U E — R
Corp. Limited incorporated in Hong Kong, for an aggregate B S 2 B A R %
cash consideration of HK$10,000. Grandlife Healthcare KIEEFEBRAR AT 2Z2100%
Corp. Limited was principally engaged provision of HE 1> 48R A8 410,000
administration service in Hong Kong. Lo mARIEFEEBMARAA
FEEHAE T B AT BUR
o
An analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was BRI EE R AaE
lost: I
HK$’000
F#oT
Assets =923
Property, plant and equipment Y26~ W e e 298
Cash at banks RATH & —*
Receivables, prepayment and deposits JRRE W L ~ YA K I B 2

Liabilities it

Other payables and accruals

Net liabilities disposed of

JFC At A L e i 1

iz f i

(3,985)

(3,685)
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- =52
29 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) 29 Bl b 8F ao
(c) Disposal of subsidiaries o HEREAR
(ii) Disposal of Grandlife Healthcare Corp. Limited (i) BB B A R 23 ]
(Continued) (#)
Gain on disposal of subsidiary HH B R B 8 F) 2 W
HK$000
T
Cash consideration e E 10
Liabilities disposed of MEZaE 3,685
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries A B e 2wl 2 B3R 3,695
Cash inflow from the disposal of subsidiary HENE AT ZEHER A
HK$’000
THT
Cash consideration received A& T EA R 10
Cash and bank balances disposed of B 2 BE R RAT BRAE —
10
* Less than HK$1,000 * DBt1,000/87C
(iii) Disposal of Grandlife Healthcare Holdings Ltd (iii) 82K PR A7 B 2 ]
On 30 November 2023, the Company entered into an KRB =4FE+—H=1+
agreement with an independent third party to dispose of H > A2 v B 3258 = 77 &)
100% equity interest in a subsidiary, Grandlife Healthcare SOy TR DU B — R
Holdings Limited incorporated in Hong Kong, for an T AL 2 B R N R R
aggregate cash consideration of HK$100,000. According KA A R A F .2 100%
to the terms of the sales and purchase agreement, the A #8815 AH 2100,000
Group is obligated to pay HK$32,517,000 (equivalent to T o IR IR H H I sk 2 1%
RMB30,000,000) to the buyer for the net liabilities at the FoREHAERBREEH
date of disposal. Grandlife Healthcare Holdings Limited e B 75 304432,517,0009 7T
and its subsidiary were principally engaged in Investment (FHERANRE30,000,000
holding in PRC. JL) BB B EFREH - R K

i/ 2 B A R 2 ) e LR Jag
ATIES -y LR =
%O

Crown International Corporation Limited
2 O 2 Annual Report 2023/2024



Notes to the

29 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries

(iii) Disposal of Grandlife Healthcare Holdings Ltd

29 BIE Wi R EF @)
(o B A ) .
(iii) H B BRI A ]

(Continued) #)
An analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was e PR > B R Al
lost: Vo
HK$’000
THIT
Assets <03
Property, plant and equipment YI2E ~ W Bk 12
Receivables, prepayment and deposits VB USSR T ~ YA K I B 10,069
Cash and cash equivalents W& R B FEY 8
Liabilities fufit
Income tax payable JEAS iS5 (3,884)
Other payables and accruals JFL Al 8 A K T e R £ (44,194)
Deferred tax liabilities IR IH LA _ (8519)
Net liabilities disposed of iz afEm (46,508)
Loss on disposal of subsidiary I8 AR 2 i 1E
HKS$’000
Tl
Cash consideration B AR E 100
Cash compensation Bl (32,517)
Net cash outflow B A (32,417)
Liabilities disposed of iz A 46,508
Exchange reserve released upon disposal TR LB 1% R R B 52 £ 1A (120,158)

Loss on disposal of subsidiaries

LRty PR o ] (106,067)
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29 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries

(iii) Disposal of Grandlife Healthcare Holdings Ltd

29 Bl&mm &R @

(c) HitiBH)E 23]
(iii) HHEE K B HEFERE #7 W 24 i

(Continued) (#)
Cash inflow from the disposal of subsidiary B B B A R 2 BLE TR A
HK$000
Tt
Cash consideration received B S ARE 100
Cash and bank balances disposed of OB B4 B BRAT A i (8)
Cash compensation paid EA B (32,517)
(32,425)

30 COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments

As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, the Group has capital expenditure
contracted for but not provided in the consolidated financial

statements below in respect of the construction of the properties.

30 R

B RYE

BB AR S S S A
Sob B A SRR T SC kA B R
vk 0 3 CLAT 49 (EL R 0 1
AR o

2024 2023

HKS$’000 HK$’000

T Tt

Construction of properties Y 112,277 119,462

Crown International Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2023/2024
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32

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transitions and balances with related parties details
elsewhere in these consolidated finance statements, the Group had
following transactions were carried out with related parties during the

year.

Key management compensation

Key management includes directors and senior management. The
compensation paid or payable to key management for employee

services is shown below:

eI RMEE @

31 BN L35

W% 55 o 0 BV 5 R HL Ath &5 B T s 2
B IR W6 77 1) 22 5 e S R A > A B [ 4
P L B 5 AT 2 A B AN AR o

W P ol

2 L 4 0 AR R o
0% BB O A s A P
WS R T

2024 2023

EE ST NEErEE
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
T Tt
Directors’ fee HHEE 1,967 1,192
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits it B B HAth R 91 (g 5 4 A = -
Pension costs — MPF TR A BRAR — SRl A B = -
1,967 1,192

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, the following items were used to

secure loan facilities granted to the Group:

(i) Pledge of the construction-in-progress “Real Estate Registered
Certificate” held by Weihai Runhe, which represents the hotel
development under construction in progress and the properties
under development for sale as set out in Note 14 and Note 17

respectively.

(ii) Pledge of the entire share capital amounted to RMB425,620,000
of Weihai Runhe.

(iii) Pledge of the entire share capital amounted to US$10,000 of

Grandlife Investment Co. Limited.

(iv) a loan amounting to HK$10,830,000 as at 31 March 2023 was
secured by deposit of HK$16,179,000 (note 19).

32 BM&EE
ATE NER B = =H
=B FAAETY R ERET
R 1

(i) BRI T R P R LR TR
"ARE ESREY )RR
3l B A B S 14 B BN R 17 2 AE
HER 0 B R R R

o
ZR

Gi) EHEEARN AN
R #£425,620,0007T °

(iii) E 4 Grandlife Investment Co.
Limited Y 4 & A A %H10,0003
f]:o

v R-ZE - =F=-HA=+—HH
10,830,000 & 2 & & DL% &
16,179,000 L /EHE AR (Fi5E19) ©

SRR A £ L 43)
2023/2024 f?gﬁ 2 O 5
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33 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

His2dh

33 AL Z W B5IR DL B ik

COMPANY
2024 2023
SEomg o
HK$’000 HK$'000
T RRCP
Assets (=973 .
Non-current assets JEFi B & B
Investment in subsidiaries R AR RE = -
Deposits 154 349 -
. 349 -
Current assets i W 4
Trade receivables JEE AL B 5 R K - 14,650
Other receivables, prepayments and FL Al 8 SRR T~ FEAN KO
deposits B4 3 441
Amounts due from subsidiaries JEE VS BF JE8 2 W) Kk I - 33,491
Cash and cash equivalents HEBHEeEEY 8,386 7
8,389 48,589
Total assets R 8,738 4_8_, 589
Equity @ﬁ
Capital and reserves B A B ik i
Share capital A 1,998,309 1,998,309
Accumulated losses HEtkiE (a) (2,000,678) (2,090,815)
Total deficit Nes &l 4R (2,369) (92,506)
Current liabilities i ) £ 4
Trade payables JEEAS 2 5 B Rk = 2,000
Other payables and accruals EL Al 8 A R I e R £ 7,558 15,486
Borrowings fii 2,000 119,502
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEEAST B I8 2 W] 3R IE 167 1,769
Lease liabilities HEARE 1,004 956
10,729 139,713
Non-current liabilities FE B £
Lease liabilities HEa1E 378 1,382
Total liabilities JER gk 11,107 141,095
Total equity and liabilities HE 3 Be £ (e 48R 8,738 48,589

ARrlzBEAMRCERGR -F
“PAERH =L B At A3 R
ANERBHEAGEE

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of
Directors on 27 June 2024 and was signed on its behalf

Mr. Wei Zhenming Mr. Chan Yuk Charm

Bk 3% e e By it e
Chairman Executive Director
FRE HTH#EF
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Notes to the

33 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

COMPANY (Continued)

(a) Other reserves movement of the Company

i 52 B )

@ AR R

5]

Other
reserves
LA G 0
HK$°000
TH#IT

At 31 March 2022

Loss for the year

At 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023

Profit for the year

At 31 March 2024

REFEZZHE=A=1+—H
N

MRoZB=4=H=+—HK
“EC=HMHA—H
A A T A

REEWE=H=1—H

(1,214,888)
(875,927)




Financial Summary

R 55 4 22

The following is a summary of the consolidated results of the Group for the

A 55 18 R i 20T {1 0 O ) 2 B 5 S A

last five financial periods. YR o
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
CEROBE B E B —E®-= — A
HK$°000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TFH#T T T FiT Tt Tt
Revenue g 14,914 13,866 17,499 - 183,461
Profit/(loss) before income tax e EEEi ]
A,/ (B518) 21,968 (121,705) (919,821) (1,276,533) (115,762)
Income tax (expense)/credit XEL:
(B /% (13,168) 15,823 192,843 206,531 (11,438)
Profit/(loss) for the year EREF, (E1E) 8,800 (105,882) (726,978)  (1,070,002) (127,200)
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners A2\ F A A EAL
of the Company A, (B548) 9,379 (105,243) (726,372) (1,069,359) (126,785)

The following is a summary of the total assets and liabilities of the Group

AEEP B BE B 2

and equity attributable to owners of the Company as at 31 March 2020, TN CSER DR CFENEZ=HA
2021, 2022, 2023 and 2024. =t —HZzEAEHE AEAERIARAAR
A N B RE R AR o
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
ZECRE SR R —ET= ZE YR
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T RV RV Tl Tt
Total assets HEME 3,275,774 3,632,759 2,972,705 1,656,507 1,438,155
Total liabilities B (1,373,713) (1,679,760) (1,660,265) (1,492,989)  (1,316,957)
Net assets HETE 1,902,061 1,952,999 1,312,440 163,518 121,198
Equity attributable to owners . N/NTiE: Z=PN
of the Company JEAG AR 1,901,146 1,952,782 1,312,964 164,779 121,198
Non-controlling interests JEE IR i 915 217 (524) (1,261) =
Total equity HE 2 4R 1,902,061 1,952,999 1,312,440 163,518 121,198
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